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TR AT et WAL /SAA/TAL/TMAT TS A T TG HEIATHT
TR T oo ST THTITTT T, oo
TR T/ DMAT A/C T oo g w1/ gfafafa a=Ee T gergeEr g/ |
BEEEE
Tt ferqeel g&aaEd: TG
qr:

AT THTT-97 .

ARYAT aie=a / DMAT A/C .

T AT (ST YR FAT gART BICTHT ¥ WUl ARG ShRl Hrald FATATET T TRGF TS, |
Tl TGT G AT Jeoid THT YTl HIRTH T A |

8>< ____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________
gaQr-usl

STARERTBT FTH oo AT FHTIT-TT T e
IRIAT GTA/ DMAT A/C T oo FRIT T oo
FRATIATRT TET oo

o

femreram o fafregar fafq R0es are W 3¢ 9 qgaRF G g7 TaTEEl ATMUF AT GAET JURAT gF A ATH! FH9T-07 |

TLA: RG] ATHA el HISee A ard |
(TATRETHT Ta9T T AT FAA-TT J&q T AT 3) /gh/i—— §
faftm arer
(FFT |f=a)
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() Himalayan Bank Ltd.

JarsAl aiffcs AT JaTehT T
Jdcicd AfAADT Ufddcal

ARG HETTHTAET,
fewreraT O fafaieaT aaredl amie AIaRe THTHT 897 919 3% G=ad qrafaEr dhare Tefeedrs eiad
AN T4, |

forra TTET auRtg feATaT S Teieedl AR YATHT TRl B | AT AATTHT ETHIT TheAT HABH! A
EFTAT e TRIET, FTafardAT qar SaT Sehebl T T TRIST Thel TTH o |

MiF ad 200y /9% fewuTaa At A IATESAE e THITTHT THT TEHT SAHAFNT TRIST ATEG | Fl
yaTe, HET Teheld, fayuuraTe AU A1, FHHARIDT [9ebTe T FaTh! (R IATESTE gal ol elehl AehIHE
Y bl ATAHT SRAUHT B | TN FET FAETHT THLT IRGT I AT HFLAT T TLhT PO ATRTAT
FEl AR IH TCH AATT TRET FHE AET =A@wg | A A qT Uk FoAevd ARl AT AIH
TAT ST @Il =Tl AT AT ATRTHAT FBRICHE AT T AT TLHT T |

BT, Sehel TITHRET LY 9@ ¥ 439 I UH. a1 Yeheals GaT [ATE WEHl o | AT Fhebl AeTAH HFIA]T
ferraad Fites fatadea FHEr auHT F=raa Aqafa 9 90 SHA [0 FHATT FTIRTH] TaTH]
FATAT TITIAT TR GO FTHT FATATHT ATGAbb] THT STAHRT TRIST qTSaT Gl AR 3 |

UTESRATRT STBTTPT T [TIaTH, TTARATEEehT TAT-IRTET TEINT ¥ <o AL R! SIS hareferdrare
Sehel TR Ui TeaTgeeal fafed & | @ Sfehg Jumelier! faem T AT qors qor T 941 TS+
AL Aol & UGG o AT TNREHT B |

T GHTHT 0% AT AR HATART ATTATT, ATTE 96 004 /9% HI ATRI-ATFTT f6qTa, ATRT-A =T
FSHiC TAT A [TARIET ATHEAH AT TEqd T4, |

FIATTRT AHIET:
T syatar fAET sfereddt aUEr TAATHT 93,35 AiqeTad dfg 9% F q @ 93 AT & FAS T G | FAl
AMIE 93.05 IFAAA & s & 25 A& 0 IS &3 A [H T |

TETE AT AT Aepebl Bl THART 9%.33 fAT T GF FHIR 93.93 GAAA qgF TS HET: T, § G 33
T U FIIE 99 9@ T F QY AT %% FRIES ¥5 AT [H G |

=TT T qUTer IrSg Sk JAT AUTA ATAE ThTgrard GTATATE SR [TEITTebl ATTTAT TET FwATfaa
AT A=A T FHIET TTHT bl & 3 0 ¥ FS IR ARG FATA AATHT AT T THA TR
B 9T T R A % FIS 35 AT GE HATHT ATSF TH G |
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6 Himalayan Bank Ltd.

AT AT AT Ifeell TTRTAGFAERT Sebepl faciir feafq =R & )

(%, ATEH)
.9 wo® R00% AT AT | Ro9g A A9 | afg/ () gfawa
1. | ®& FH 1,33,9%,99 9,¥3,43,%3 9,9%
2| fAE (& fasir dearer g6 1,43,0%,00 9,9%,03,4% 4.4
3. | et Aty T @i qur fewrsue 25,3053 4,0%,%5,29 ¥.59
TRTE faees

THET FUAT S TUTA AT bl (ATt qiefafas e & ¥ AT@ ¥o g9 FAT ATr@A THN G T
feRTd AUEEHT AT@T AUH FSEE T 9 qT@ ¥3 TAR AGA T AR AUH G | AT [T HA bl
TYATHT ANT THT S AARATINA TITEHATET AT PR TRTEHIA =T AT FHRT ATHTHT FEART T

forearer e e |
T forefr et (%, TG
w9, MY R09¥ /9y R0y /\e% afg/ (@A)

JAT AT HATY AATA gferera

Q| ®= FEafa 9%, ¥%,33 1,33,9%,99 Q% 33

R | ww gt 1%,93,5% ,2%,%¥5 13.93

3 | fAg ’%,9% 30 1,43,0%,00 1335

¥ FoAT, ATITIery ¥ @Rg qgT feThr3ue 5%,5¥ %% 25,053 93.05
T faees

Y | gg = AT %3395 %,033 Q8. ¥R

& | = T 1,30,59 q,%%,04 Y. %9

S | FETET q9T FHART @ 3955 3,%0,40% 2.9

& | FETAT HATRT 325,50 32% 33 3.%0

] | g HATHT 9,5\9,4% 39,35 ¥ 3

AT TAT FHETT GEHT ATATT FHATRT =g qfT FHTILT TRTHT T |

SfeRepl AT, 094 /9% T UL TUET [HET, Fl, AR T @bl ALAATHE AT TRUHT [qaR0T T ATiep
gfqaad T FHEE TRUH G |
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ngiﬁyan Bank Ltd.

Titgy qan srracifed afdw BruThReT T aaae SHaE T3 IHE:

ETAHT AUEEHT f9d AIq Fea TMAHAT Gig TUHT I@wg | AFHT I JHE [aiad ALes Ted AH I,
TRITAT ALEE, Bl TRTATAT TRl AITHT oA (AT FaaT AT gfg wuhr fawg | Tafkar T = fo=e
T SATIRF gael Tl (99 AATHAT TERICHE AT IHT a3, | A0 [SHEHT AT ARTAT ATTH
AR AMIF qigaee Yo TRIET TTHT TUTeh] ATTAT AT Il Ihaw; | THIET TUHT I9THT ASAATTH
AT T FHAVEA AT AUAT 91 [ SAR=eE gaa arasia gcaes s Ad® g g1 arl |
qaife TAT HTRT AT T GIRRF [aiq=1 =ifod Afd [aHe@sr SR A1 A sl ardraR o=
D AT AT |

AT IS ool TTRT TXehT AT T 00y /9% I ATMIF RATTATAR Jqa IMHT FA M€ IJedTad
Ffgar ©.q fqerd (FmIiad) W B | Afdedl a0 TFET Figaw & 3 GATT TEH AT | AR WiEHT a0,
IS ATITAT AU IR T ATI(T HTATAT AT HUEH G ATIF FTgaT I=A 89 TUHI &l | STHRAT
A ST TR Afereed] auHT ¥, GfTTART TAATHT THIET GUHT AT Jig 9 ¥ & FAATHT &l
3 |

AT a9 R00Y /6% T F g% (ATT 9%.% Ufqerae afg 9% T 9 qd 99 FRAS TWH g | TA 9]
AT ATl AHI Y. Y FTTTART TAFTHT FHIEAT THHT 93,2 FqTa AT q¥ & q,¥95 A LY FIS
T G | FIAET At Arard A=t (Fafdar Ao diger e a9 3094 /% AT % 9% ATIR HIel Aol
FIFT %, FfqeTAH! JAATHT 93,4 Ffqerae faear 95 & 9,339 99 ¥3 I Tl F |

Aftredl a¥ ¥ ¥ A Y FASA HTITAT Tl =T @Il U1l JHIET FHAT afq faeqr w5 & |y o9 39
FRS TR G | AHRFT SATHT ATl a9 R A 39 FRSA HTETHT Taeh! =Tl GTal FTHIET TUHT Fal "ia
A 3 TS EH B |

AR AfeTeedl I 3. 2% IS TATH TEhl THT AT feafq THieq auqr TR ¥ $9 Fd ¥0 Fed
HTETHT T @ | T faqoo ATyare qf FHTET auar %% giaerder 9fg 9% ¥ 59 A9 9w TR
B | Aol a9 JHH 4R &.§ giqerd AT fadr | 098 @R AETAT & faaelt fafawa qfs=mta qooy
HIR FATTH & ,90% T L FRIS TAATHT HiE Al ¥ 035 A 3 FUS el G | AdE a5 3004 /%
AT [a&qd HATIET 4.5 T 7 g AUH G | Aol a9 I<h TEIIET 8. % Tl qehl 93T |

AR a9 308y /9% HT ofeh qIT [a<ild GeqTesah] Maq gi=mad 95 qfaerde aedl @ | Atdedl a9 ey
=TT q%,.% UITeTael sraehl (99T | ATe a9 00y, /\% HI aTST dehawehl ol 9T ¥l 92.% giaerdel
Fehl G | Aol I Tl FoAl .Y FIaerael Tl 3T |

A A qar sfw R

AAFH! ATAFEAT A% afT faqorAT 97 TEH1 B | AR &Il aUAT (YTl gfg ITET qUs IARHerad
ATidep TEqRaTHT AT oTeed HETRTHT & | STehT &HT [avTqehl &g a9 IRg ol TG qTATTHT SRGTHT
TS ATHET THHT T HAH T R G | AT Febol [T AT T FaATeT ATESTE T AT AT Goir
=Te = Yo TH G |

AT AT Al HIGTT AT T TGal TALALTHRT HROT bel seb ToT faxirg Feargs MTT e ST TEh!
B | AITA AT SFATE FANA G I AT fa<ira Aearesdr g agfad fataa dear aed 09 d9r
HET=TAT T8l o% AT T R0 FHR HATIH] 50 AUH G |
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{O)Fimalayan Bank Ltd.

ATfdF T 09Y /R00% F FUFHAR wAragq feafq:

- fAfera = (NPA) 9.9% Siqerdr @e |

- faf= TomewT Aot rETES TYAT T AT [URMHT ATH. 09Y, /9% Bl AWR HATT FFHAT STl [ora~
¥ TTTH] AT ATETES @Tefl %ol 4% FLT M@EE T=oeTHl ATSTHT |

- faver rEarEeTs uiEarel, R T AR ST TR FATE A heTge AR g |

- 9Tl qIT ATHT Hrsesd! dal &R ATAEg T 1A AN TS 3 |

- AT AR fafae AT 99 T UH, 8% e T R06% AR WA GEHHET Shdl A UAUH Fe
43R TR G |

- F9d @ral, WU GEdTead d% JG1 Gadesdrs Aeddl ANATaR 99 dATRYE adqls TAaTH ATgUH!
I |

- qIIE TRUH FAEwd! AqAT FHATATS AHAAIES FEedl [GguH g |

- 32 TIT Hise FEIRF UEHAATS I JFdT JaF T L 0¥ I ATd<h ‘T IHAA” 0T B |

- fafwe omETEERT gfeaeTerg araravi #AT Gfaurach aATsT AN BT STEATE TRUH G |

- dfpg TREAAT & ¥ FIIORATS FITATad T GRETH! FHIETE I TG TTHT G |

ATFF T R09% /099 HT FHUHA:

- 9T faRAR AT 99 93 FAT T 997 fAtae ST R / TR FTgvey. FATIAT I |

- fAfSRa & (NPA) @18 %9 7 |

- qIE TRUFT FATEEH TGAT GPRATATE AORAAIEF faeaear fae |

- gt FAT ¥ AT YA TAATHT AT |

- T @, WO AR AE GAT ey Aedhdl ANHATIAR ATRUE a8 TAATH aT3 |

- fafae TaT@T 99 3% feuw AR SIS T ST #d Tleud e q4s TS |

- fae qur Fiee FEIRF UEFHatare 99 qdT YaTd T 000 IF “O9F fHaa” faeqr 19 |

- bkl AT AEARHT AT Febebl RMHTHAT Heiva Sfehgepl FYHT TATIAT WUHT Himalayan Capital &1
farers fawar T |

- fafwe omETEERT gfeaerarg araraeei #E Gfauraes aArss oot |

- dfpg TREIAX & ¥ FIISRATS WIiATad qavd a9 FET T TR T8 A1 |

HEAWT gt g

T ATAITE AMTcas] aTe T Jevael Sebel ATHT TATIATHT FaTdang o fafae Fardardes Arhd farq=
ATATNTS FTITEEHT ARTE [ATSS ATTHT | Aebel TUIET FUAT f9Toa: RTeq, T, da1aTerd, 157,
YARE, AR TAT AIEBIAF TEIET GREAT FIT T THIIaTE GISaars Tors HrahHuT TEaNT TEh
3 |

Fber ATMTE T 00Y /0% AT FXIATTT GTANNTF IJOLNTA Fed TF FHEAT TAHI0 AATT AT ALTETT
ATAATHHET AT T Y 0,000/~ Bldg EAVE ATAATHHE AT & 40,000/ — .19 Fi=a e fasmars qe
fZaa¥T F=aAT HFTUFHHA THH AN & Y0,000/— A Fq9 T Al AR ATATTATE FeAliaa e frfaes
AT 7. 40,000/ —, # fau =ifa fazme edrer faadiers dreme 7 Qs aARiE @it 5 4o,000/ -,
A Ty [qared /Saa S Arareraad giafaied fqemdizssr @it q@r T argaraae FHRiET @it
T ¥R 39%.%%, Jedlh fAiaiy RFaee (qemdigRT amEiiTd gee TTesl HRHH | %, 40,000/~ @]
e R fata eaar fafafafy RTeaT SEM T ART & WY 000/~ ARTE T GHEHTHT G149 FHe
HRTT T GeAehs ATHRITHE AT %, 5%, 9% 30, FAVSA FId Gl [adehl Wad (I T AT %, 400,000/ -,
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{) Himalayan Bank Ltd.

AT frearsr qav wiag T g mfagar grar gft fafeqessr @it frata 7 steqrarar fee e
¥, 300,000/— T % 900,000/~ FAAT HHAAE [T GRITR] AN FH( T o {1 5. 00,000/ —,
T FoX FAGR] ATATSTATHT AUH] [GATAd T FaTebar giqeqarel d1iT & 900,000/ — 419 fasiaqR =ie®
feare faeafa afmy feawar Teeamy gemardter gfaarer e ggfeer fHaorer anf & 999,999/ -, Brafa
Ay THAAT IAATT T GHT FEIIR THEHT AT & Q¥ WY/ —, fagfeusr =rarg faandiessr o
. 950,000/ — SRTER! [afq= 3iferer Turites, faer e FuTer ATHeE FRATaTs W ST [qarede ardieedrg
fafaeT faoaeT o forefl & e AT & 400,000/ —  fa RT&Tor seqarerdr afhcadesd! [asrHeH
ATNT fasTHeel AT THHT ANT F. LY 0,000/ — TEAA T I° AIAATs [Eadr=aR @iKg T I J=ra
GHHI ANT F. 3Y,00,000/— Y& TKEH[ TeH TR TRTIT =eS |

A ATeer dobel AXT TAT AT ATAYTF &TFHT ATHINAF SALEIA AT TET FETAAEe YT T G T AT
famesaT af 73T FRANT AT FAEEHT Gowd TET FHIS T ATITqeh] AT JHer fate T §F gfqag
g |

REICC IR

AT TTAT Shhl FATAREEH TAATIR TIARIAER] THATT T G5 (Gearas SISHT 91T 30, 064
AT TEC TUHT % A MM AR qorare &7 fawra aerey I g=ee Hafftad g1 9 g | Faw
FGTIE (TTTHRT FTAT W7 GoTdhare o U= ST drgarere fafq 9o I3, 094 AT T[T 53
Grel AU STSHT THIT AT Y, R09Y o i1 AT H7 4 HATeAeh [gch FAUH & |

TR ATAT TrTAIAAR] TRATE qh{eqeh TATAFHT 2 A TeTgT ITITRI STSHT HTA q, 0% 1T
A [ AR S (I gTATH 3 |

THIET TUAT Shebl TXATIHEE WA FHART Toad FIUH] THATE JATAE TATTH AT J09% HIics 9 I
el FMUIETe Bank and Financial Institution Act (BAFIA) AT Jeifad YTEETH =¥l F=Tedh q4T SIh{edeh
TATAHAT HHT: AT AU TG TAH ¥ 7 FTHER TG GAECTE AN TR T TEAPT AT I IR
g1 WTH |

FHEAT TTHIT bl GEATTHEE He Efaa Sb UHBEATTh qhare Gl AIHITH] [Hid 09 Hiidd 9 Bl
ISFATE Thfeah oATAFAT AT ATAT AT TEATEA (HIh & HUH G |

bl FEATIE TA. Sfegepl dhare yiafafaed THg = AAISEeTay 5 qeel aHT, ST G-l dhard
ST JAUGHARGY AT, ATAT raxdadadehl dware N e fase arar d=ras 9awq1 J97ad WWAA0H B |

AT FIAT FrEAATAR] TRATE AT T 45, TA.IfgFHT ThATE HHAT T IS qIaq Th{edeh
=T AT JATad FTATH 3 |

A7 feHTad AR ST.9.3 qaad darded GHael THE Godledbi aiers |

AT (IR FATAE TAT AhfeqF TATAFEEdTS ek FuTs FTIT TG Sebebl I T IATHT FeTewel ANTETHRI
AT TSR | A AadH T o qo faerara, e S SUvs HIRI qISAT J9T TH(qh GeATAFET
TG | TH ATGTH bl fedHT a7 FTIT @A FETAs AfAfT ATF Jiqagar 2k T8 |
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{©)Fimalayan Bank Ltd.

AQIIETTT, Fraar T 77 faaon:

0% HYR HHATAH! ATAATT, J09Y /9% el ATHT-ATRITT [EQTd, ATRI-ATFRITT dighic eard, Aeyare faavr
FHITIT ATGAET T AGTIIETREH! GAAET T8 Fiaaael AT TTHT TEqA TRTHT T | AT FFIAT TF
R0%3 FI IRR=E 9 THT Q0% FH IJUSHT (¥) THRITH FAAGTHT Fad Foold gAI FRewelTs afT FHTALT TRTH
B | APl FEIF FEAT [EHTATT PN [ATHIEHT AT SFbI TN TUHT F7T Associate FFIATEEHT
FREwars Nepal Financial Reporting Standards &R FHTEET TRT Teblepd fafad faemor a9 g&aqd TR
g |

ATHRT - AN diShid:

ST AT 0 /\%% AT Sehebl GT HATHT %. I 79 K IS 35 A ¥5 &R &l g 99 Other Comprehensive
Income TITAT T&T SeFehT A ATRTAT I A 93 FIES &¥ A QY ER EH G | A0 ATATT TASTHITHT
TG AR GF HATHTHT 0 FIAAA g ATST & YU FE 9 A &% B GEATSUH G | a1 bl ST
BT T, K0 FUSH! AUSH AN ATHRIETE TJH I§ THEAT & FRAS YO M@ Q¥ &R gve fRal SISTehrsHr
IIRTHT B | TGHT ATARE &, 2 S 9% @ 35 AR ATHIS IJaaacd HFHT, & q FUS Y dq1@ &Y
AR FHERT AT HITAT, &, ¥¥ A % §AR [AFHT GATAST HITAT 4T [HIAETERT HTAT &, QR FRIS
$ A oY EOR [HIATER THATRY TRUHT B | faa audT fafq=T FIuHr IHHR qUE 960 %, 43 a9
R0 B9 fRal W SieWhiceH! AT IUeed qUH 3 |

AIF aT 094 /9% T ATNT ARG FETTATIEEATS =hT TSIl Q0 Iraerd e 9Taerl a1 43 giaerd
TG ATAT (BT Aled) faawor T gL TWH GF | AG ATET AAG AT T AMG ATHITHT AT FHHI:
T GY FS 0 ATE@ Y FAR Y TI ©¥ T T q A R FS ¥ M@ 30 FR O FF § HA Fierq AATHIEE
START XA | T qTHT GEAIad ara Tl (qawer qfeg Shar et Ioil & & oad 39 F=S IR a9 59
TR ¥ T 35 §AG | bl TATIATHARNG o (TATHTETHT ATRAT STARGHEedATs S SR JAT ATHIITRT
ATebTeh HATRT fad TRprdT 79 a9 ufq |1 arg faeeawar fad Febeprar gy TRatf=a o |

PR EICESIRE K

el ITUHT FEATTHT ATNT TR HETAHAEE, TEFaT JAT TITA GLHRHT FrATedd (Hepraarad e
HATAT, AT AT Aeh, TUT AT aTg, "I Teb THFI=~f, HHI[ AR H1arerd, faferq que fmufcy
fataes, &1 AT %o (., e q9T FI FRAT H9 Gfq F=ATAF ATHATTH] TReTE EMaF ATAR TFhe
TEE) | Sehebl ATHER efad S fafadg Tiraare awarde, Shdl THE FTaHRT Afdehd, qS HeTTavdF,
TETH S, AT HETYawdsh, A AR AT AHI FHAT T TEANETATS Shebl YITTHAT TTTHT
Prarefrer ATaTAET AT gvrars favgl | g ETHT BRI geRTcREe T fas SaaHe gorstan
TARSAHT (HTes T TFI0l STH=gheedid 9i aTHl 2Tfed M =a<h i) |

PREIEE!
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Bank Ltd.

HdUch Yol Q0&3 I GBI 90Q 3UCHI 8
3IJARDI AARTH a7

9. W% TIRTH SAREEH! (G
el AT % G A TR TRET S |

. WEIE FHARSHTHR FRIER
el Merchant Banking FFadl Tl el TTRT SATHT qU7 TTHCEHT fEHTeas e fatadg T
TH G | Ih GeTdF FEHT J9rel fadras argare merchant banking ¥ depository participant &r
FTOHT HIH T ATHAT YT T TG0 %, 098 I FATATHT ATTHT B | Ih AeTTH HFIATA ATTAF
TI 00Y, /%% I A=THT EHTTTT SHHT TR HISETT 5. 20,390,005 /-

3 AR SERIHEwATE dhels TS TRISUHT SATHHN :

FET B TR T AT ST |
¥ FHTET 99 (309Y /\9%) HT Skl FETAF TUT TEMIHRIEsd @ivg T JAET |

AT T BRI TUHT el SITARIEAT ATTHT S |

Y. SEET rafead GERIAESH] F GATdE JAT AoThl AfTds! ATAH! AR IR IIAe
TRTSUR] STAHIIH] BT |
AT ol AT SeheATs T TTHT S |

% STg-2ATEk RS SATHT (qa7T:
THTET T bl ATRAT STIREE AThel GRS TR B |

© AR (A ST
Sepepl SAT=ATCe [0 aedT Feqq G | (a0 e saaved TR 9inRares emar 89 |
F) HAGd AT L0 TAT (HAe07 aedm AIATSUa |

g) AT YORATATS SATedd 9 FTAquTet], YRR T A= (AERTRTR saa=ar e |
M) oAl A [AGRTERT ST TR IR 3, |
o) AAATAAT TAT ATRA (AT JUITCATRT AR T B AT AT AT (A0 TRt

EEEZIRIECIN
3) TWAA ATARE AN [T e |
) AGTIRIE qrAfael AT (A= que T J@TIRILvars deaTeUd] YHE HIEEH (qarad

ATITAT T IATET THIATHT |
©.  FUIE qYAT WURT E AT G %,
FHAR G - 4,995, 4 ¥ 03%*
I I @ - 9%,%%,%5,4%3
219 Fel T UReEgT g9- 99 ,09,25,39%
FA AT G - 393,59,40,593

*NFRS ER fai faaromdr #H=mr @9 d=id 3@reusl HHARI A\ T AR A|H] [drad @e qaraer

RTTHT |

] @ AfAfqRT EEETdl ATATE!, T HE, Adr 9T qiadr, J7 AiAfad Tl HH FRATEH]
ferarzor 7 @fAfaer fager qvRTae! faar
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6 Himalayan Bank Ltd.

ST HHT:
& gHUE BTG HTS
T T FH Gl
o7 THeT PHIT faarer (Team Leader - SAR Associates)

LN
qa
qe-gi=g

Tafadr Tarars 95 AERE q= B qATHE /G o T TRUF S | TET-qraaares

HATSTF T ATHEEATE ITa 5% AT FHA: & 0,000/~ ¥ 5,000/~ GaH TRTH |

ST a0 004 /9% AT 9% Tdeh JTATTH! TF ST, STTHT:
F)  ATARE AGTIRIETUTH] TTaarehl THIET TN IRET AT AALATIAATS AT

@) e gfqaeaese FHIET T Faearaqars ATaedsd GeRTd [qgal |
M) Sl AMNH [EHTE, AET A@IETRD] TRIFTE Giaaed T weard debepl (&m0 gfaaed quvem
TVRT T I AR HT GoTeAeh ATHTRT ATRIGHRT AT ATTTF FRTEHRT TG T ATATIAATE
faer fagar |
") ATARE (I FFE T a7 GERATHT aR T T ATAIIHATTAR ATl q97 Irhargad

HIRFT JUIET AIATSH ATXATIAATS (M9 JIT T8 [agal |

e fagam |

Q0.  HETAF, ATLATIHA M, ATARHT RGN T (ASTHT ATl ATTRR TAT FAT FH, HFIAT AGaTE
FFATS T B T THH

Enll

9. FHIET qYAT HATAF, ATLATTR a9k, THE FEAFRT AgRd T AT TIMIFREoATs [GgUH T,
ERIR I EPIFEES

Sapi)
.. HILC SEIEED THE HHRT FEATTH
e

9. TS A 93,98,000 - -
R SEE! - 5R,05,000 99,5%,99%¥5
3 HqT - U3,4%,000 90,3%,33,0%9
. HHABY TN - - 2%,39,49%¢
4. EIREIEVEICIEC R,0%,%¥0V ¥,95,3%4 4,50,%0,9%%
& | fafag ¥ ¥q,595 5,8.,90Y 39%,9% 933
¥0,35,35% 1,%%,99,400 R5,93,%3,50%

o | wmEr Ea g Bl
c. | smEma gl ol o R
. | feamw e E) B
ST He 19 | R
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{) Himalayan Bank Ltd.
feoquf:
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HBL's History

Established as a joint venture of Habib Bank Limited of Pakistan in 1993, Himalayan Bank Limited (HBL) has
been in the forefront of the Nepal’s banking industry since its inception. Starting banking services from the
Employees Provident Fund Building at Thamel, Kathmandu, HBL currently has countrywide network of 64
branches and 127 ATMSs to provide highly reliable modern banking services to its customers across Nepal.

Our Vision

Himalayan Bank Limited holds a vision to become a Leading Bank of the country by providing premium
products and services to its customers, thus ensuring attractive and substantial returns to the stakeholders
of the Bank.

Our Mission

The Bank’s mission is to become preferred provider of quality financial services in the country. There are two
components in the mission of the Bank; Preferred Provider and Quality Financial Services; therefore we at
HBL believe that the mission will be accomplished only by satisfying these two important components with
the Customer at focus. The Bank always strives positioning itself in the hearts and minds of the customers.

Objective

To become the Bank of first choice is the main objective of the Bank.
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Message from the Chairman

It gives me immense pleasure to say that HBL has completed twenty-seventh year of service for which | feel a
sense of extraordinary pride about the Bank and our employees across the country. What began as a small,
but pioneering institution with Rs. 120 million in paid-up capital is today a leading national bank with a paid-
up capital of over Rs. 9.37 billion (with the proposed bonus shares). We have been pioneers from the outset
and innovation has been in our DNA. HBL was first to introduce ATMs in Nepal and was the first bank to issue
HBL Proprietary Card for our customers. We were also first in introducing credit cards and tele banking services
and were among the first banks to introduce advance CBS systems. You can be sure that we will continue to
introduce new and innovative products as we continue our journey.

As we have journeyed from a small start-up bank, to a national leader in the banking space, we have sought
to incorporate better policies, practices and right corporate governance structure to manage the sprawling
organization and to better serve our clients and stakeholders. We understand that sound banking is the backbone
on which all great economies are built, and to that end, over the last decade, we have sought to greatly improve
our governance structures and ensure that HBL is able to provide services to our clients from a secure corporate
footing.

The banking industry in Nepal has come a long way since we started. Banks have modernized and adopted
new technology and thereby have been able to provide most modern banking products and services. We do,
however, see several headwinds including the persistent credit crunch, which seems to be prolonged because
of constrained remittance inflows and excessive credit expansion in the economy. Credit growth is a requirement
for economic expansion, however, we should be mindful that excessive credit growth, without corresponding
risk mitigation infrastructure, could be harmful to long term economic prosperity and while we need regulatory
supervision and guidance to maintain a healthy financial sector, regulation should be consistent and clearly
communicated to industry participants.

The country has experienced several hardships in politics, economics and natural disasters, but we always
remain optimistic about the future of the country. It is this optimism that led us to establish the bank twenty-
seven years ago, when it was less then obvious that we would survive and grow like we have. To that end, we
remain hopeful that the economy will continue to grow and that inflation will remain stable and while we continue
to be careful and prudent stewards of capital, we remain committed to the growth of this country by supporting
the banking and financial needs of our clients.

As we move forward, the board will continue to incorporate the latest corporate governance measures and
ensure that all systems and internal control mechanism are robust and up to date. We will continue to innovate
and provide world-class banking services and as always, we remain aligned with the economic prosperity of
the country. | would like to thank all staff for their motivated and invaluable services in achieving our goals.
Additionally, | would like to express my gratitude to all the well-wishers, regulators, stakeholders for their
continued support and guidance.

Manoj Bahadur Shrestha
Chairman

27th Annual Report | 23



HBL

{©) Himalayan Bank Ltd.

From the desk of CEO

The value of being True,

The value of being Resilience,

The value of being Unprecedented,

The value of being Supportive and lastly,
The value of being Thankful.

HBL knows the value of standing on the ground of TRUST.

Once again, the Bank has completed a year with outstanding performance, service excellence and portfolio diversity.
We feel proud that, during the review period, our balance sheet has recorded an exceptional growth in the overall
portfolio despite the adversities faced by overall financial system of the country.

During the year, the volatility in the deposit rate has been a major issue. The fluctuation on the interest rate has created
uncertainty in the financial market. The shortage of lendable funds during the period has hampered the overall growth
rate thereby shrinking the possibilities of lending in the productive sector, we are proud that the bank has recorded
net profit of Rs. 2.76 Billion with total deposit Base of Rs. 113.09 Billion, total lending of Rs. 98.21 Billion, Total Assets
of Rs. 133.15 Billion and total paid-up of Rs. 9.37 Billion (with the proposed bonus shares). It is all because of the
TRUST of our shareholders and the clients that we have managed this growth.

Our focus for the year was to extend our presence in various part of the country, thus we have opened branches in
various rural and urban areas of the country as per our strategic plans and regulatory directive. These branches have
contributed in collection of deposit and extending credit facilities giving much needed modern banking services to
the local inhabitants. Similarly, the bank has introduced various schemes, products and facilities for the clients as
needed by the market. We have done quite a lot of improvement in IT and IT Security along with Cards and Remittance.
We also focused on technological innovation for diversifying traditional banking habits of our customers to modern,
service-oriented banking system and diversifying business lines like in the past years. Therefore, the bank remained
robust and is positioned in the top tier among the Financial Institutions of the country.

We also focused on providing effective and efficient customer care along with mitigating the risks that are possible
to arise in course of doing business throughout our network in and out of the country. Like in the past years, we focused
on good Corporate Governance, Practices and follow all the sets of parameters and Directives/Circulars of the Regulators
for better transparency and accountability. The Bank has always set an example of internal control for which a separate
vertical, namely Compliance and Internal Control Department has been working closely for better internal control
following the rules and regulations of the Regulator.

Being a main service provider in remittance business, our presence has been increased in and out of the country. This
helped us to grow our business and provide effective and easy solutions to our customers apart from helping generate
revenue along with strengthening our foreign currency position. As in the past years, HBL has continued focusing on
enlarging the Retail and SME Loans portfolio considering the huge potential at the local level. This would also ensure
expansion of economic activities in local level thereby helping increase economic activities and promote financial
inclusion.

It's easy to get on the top, but its really difficult to maintain the position. | feel proud that HBL has maintained its legacy
of being one of the most preferred Banks in Nepal. Here | would like to express my sincere gratitude to the Board of
Directors for their continuous guidance and support throughout the year. Likewise, | would once again like to take this
opportunity to express thanks to our shareholders, well-wishers, Nepal Rastra Bank and other related government
agencies which has given us much needed support and guidance time and again.

Without their TRUST, help and support over and again, HBL would not have succeeded to look beyond the horizon

and stand firmly.

Ashoke SJB Rana
Chief Executive Officer
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Report of the Board of Directors
To the Twenty-Seventh Annual General Meeting

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board of Directors, we cordially welcome all the shareholders present at this Twenty-Seventh Annual General
Meeting of Himalayan Bank Limited.

The bank has been in continuous service to its valued customer for the last 27 years. | feel proud that the Bank has established
itself as one of the most secure and reliable banks among the financial institutions of the Country.

| am pleased to inform you that Himalayan Bank has performed comparatively well during FY 2018/19. Credit disbursement,
deposit solicitation, earnings related to remittance and expansion of services were quite positive due to which the income
of the Bank has increased at the end of the year. Even though the increased loan loss provisioning has created some impact
on profitability of the Bank, we are hopeful that the profitability would increase in the current fiscal year as the Bank Management
is working on to recover those classified loans.

Presently, the Bank has been providing services to its customers from 64 branches and 127 ATM throughout the country.
Likewise, it is our pleasure to inform you that during the review period, fully owned subsidiary company of the Bank, “Himalayan
Capital Ltd.” has started its full-fledged operations from its registered office at Karmachari Sanchaya Kosh Building, Thamel,
Kathmandu.

The Bank has been continuously progressing with the deep faith of customers, direct and indirect support of the shareholders
and creative initiatives of the Bank Management. Since its inception, the Bank has been working in accordance to its aim of
developing healthy banking system as well as extending accessible and quality service to the people.

We would like to present the Balance Sheet as on July 16, 2019, the Profit and Loss Account for the fiscal year 2018/19, the
Profit and Loss Appropriation Account and other financial statements for approval.

Review of the Bank’s Operations
During the review period, the Bank’s total deposit reached Rs. 113.09 billion, an increase of 13.38 percent compared to
previous year. Similarly, the loans and advances reached to Rs. 98.21 billion during the review period, an increment of 13.08

percent compared to previous year.

The net assets of the Bank increased by 13.13%, reaching Rs. 15.99 billion, during the review period, while the total assets
increased by 14.33 % and reaching to Rs. 133.15 billion.

Following the guideline of regulatory body, Nepal Rastra Bank and Institute of Chartered Accountants of Nepal, the Bank was
able to post an operating profit after provision for loan loss to the tune of NPR 3.94 billion during the fiscal year, with net profit

at NPR 2.76 billion.

The status of the Bank as on first quarter end of current fiscal year is presented below:

(In Rs. Millions)
S.N. Particulars As on July 16,2019 | As on Oct 17, 2019 Increase
(Decrease) %
1 Total Assets 133,151 143,529 7.79
2 Deposits (Including BFIs) 113,090 119,026 5.25
3 Loans, Overdrafts and Bills 98,206 102,989 4.87

Purchased and Discounted

During the review period, pursuant to the directives of Nepal Rastra Bank, the Bank wrote off loans to the tune of Rs. 0.54
million whereas the Bank was able to recover Rs 8.74 million from the already-written-off loans.
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The Bank Management has been firmly working to recover the non-performing, bad and written off loan. We would like to
assure you that this will help in enhancing profitability of the Bank in the current fiscal year.

Comparative Financial Indicators of the Bank

The comparative financial indicators of the fiscal years 2017/18 and 2018/19 are presented below:

(In Rs. Millions)
S. N. Particulars 2017/2018 2018/2019 Increase
As on July 16 As on July 16 (Decrease) %
1 Total Assets 116,462 133,151 14.33
2 Net Assets 14,139 15,995 13.13
3 Deposits 99,743 113,090 13.38
4 Loans, Overdrafts and Bills Purchased 86,847 98,206 13.08
and Discounted
5 Net Interest Income 4,322 5,031 16.42
6 Other Income 1,308 1,640 25.41
7 Operating and Staff Expenses 2,187 2,605* 19.12
8 Operating Profit 2,989 3,942 31.90
9 Net Profit 1,876 2,764 47.36

*QOperating and Staff Expenses includes Staff Bonus Expenses

The comparative status of deposit, credit, income and expenditure of the Bank during the fiscal year 2018-19 and the year
under review is presented in separate annexes as detailed below:

Deposit composition : Annex A
Credit composition : Annex B
Income composition . Annex C
Expenditure composition : Annex D

National and International Events and their Impact on the Bank

In recent years, the world economy continues to grow sluggishly. Most of the developed countries having dominance over
world economy, particularly the United States of America, European countries, China and India, are finding it difficult to attain
encouraging growth thereby the economic growth of the world, as a whole, has observed lethargic growth. Besides, the trade
war between USA and China has negative impact in the world economy. Similarly, the low growth rate of our Southern
neighbour has direct/indirect impact on the economic growth of Nepal.

Nonetheless, Nepal has attained encouraging growth during the review period after the settlement of political uncertainty and
end of transition period with the formation of stable government. However, due to the hike in taxation, some of the policies
declared by the government have affected the investment environment in the country.

Nepal Rastra Bank has anticipated the GDP growth rate of 7.1% during 2018/19, whilst the GDP growth rate in the previous
year was 6.3%. Favorable monsoon rain, improvement in energy supply and simplification on supply chain has contributed
to this highest economic growth. Consumer’s average inflation rate remained by increasing slightly at 4.6% during the review
period in comparison to last year’s 4.2%.

Total exports, during the FY: 2018/19, have increased by 19.4% to Rs. 97.11 billion. Similarly, the import increased by 13.9%
to Rs. 1,418.54 billion in the review period in comparison to last FY’s increment rate of 25.5%. Higher growth in export in
comparison to import, during the review period, had led to increase in trade deficit by only 13.5% to Rs. 1,321.43 billion in
comparison to the growth of 26.7% in last FY’s.
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Similarly, deficit in current account has increased to Rs. 265.37 billion from previous year’s Rs. 247.57 billion. The Current
account deficit in US Dollar value is recorded as Rs. 2.35 billion in comparison to last year’s Rs. 2.37 billion.

Likewise, the surplus in BOP of Rs. 960 million during the previous FY has recorded deficit of Rs. 67.40 billion in the review
period. Additionally, inflow of remittance had recorded growth of 16.5% to Rs. 879.27 billion in the review period. In the
corresponding previous year, the remittance growth rate was only 8.6%. At the end of fiscal year 2018/19, the gross foreign
exchange reserves have remained at Rs. 1,038.92 billion compared to fiscal year end 2017/18 figure of Rs. 1,102.59 billion.
The broad money supply during the review period increased by 15.8% as compared to last year’s increment of 19.4%.

During the year under review, the total deposit in the banking sector increased by 18% compared to 19.2% in the previous
year. Similarly, the total loans and advances had increased by 19.4% in FY 2018/19 compared to 22.5% in the previous year.

Current Financial and Banking Environment

The economy of the country is still dependent on remittance. But fluctuation in growth rate in the remittance inflow, in recent
years, has created doubts about economic stability. Like in the previous years, the banking industry witnessed crisis in loanable
fund during the review period too. Thus, bank has introduced various schemes to attract deposit.

Due to the policy of Nepal Rastra Bank and fierce competition in banking industries, many financial institutions are in process
of merger. Thus, the number of registered financial institutions excluding micro-finances as of FY 2018/2019 has decreased
to 80, which were 86 during the last FY end.

Implementation Status of the Strategy and Program of the Bank for the FY 2018/2019
1. Non Performing Loan limited to 1.12 percent as of fiscal year end.

2. As per the branch expansion plan, HBL has opened 4 new branches in various part of the country to reach the total of
59 branches by the fiscal year end 2018/19.

3. Necessary arrangement is done to extend remittance business to various Asian, European and US market.
Different plans and policies are adopted to improve the service standard of branches and profit center.

The total number of ATMs reached to 122 with addition of new ATMs in various locations as per the plan by the fiscal
year end 2018/19.

6. Deposit product, loan product and other banking facilities were made more attractive as per the demand of the general
public.

7. Continuity has been given to the recovery of written-off loans in an active manner.
8. Additional 504 POS terminals have been installed for the convenience of the debit and credit card holders.

9. Continuous effort being made to renovate and expand various branches to make the ambience of branches pleasing
and environment- friendly.

10. T24 banking software browser has been upgraded and made it more secure.

Strategies and Programs for FY 2019/2020

1. To establish 12 new branches and extension counters within and outside the valley as per branch expansion plan.
To lower the NPA.

To give continuity to recovery of written-off loans in an active manner.

To introduce new deposits, credit products and innovative banking services.

o > 0D

Deposit product, loan product and other banking facilities shall be made more attractive as per the demand of the general
public.

To set up 36 additional ATMs at various places as well as newly set up branches to total the number to 158.

To install additional 2,000 POS machines so as to facilitate debit/credit card holders.

To enlarge the operation of Himalayan Capital so as to broaden the bank’s business.

To renovate and expand various branches to make the ambience of branches pleasant and environment- friendly.

= © ® N o

0. To upgrade and fine-tune CBS system T24 technically as per requirement and complying all the necessary security
measures for better performance.
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Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)

Since its commencement, the Bank has been discharging its corporate social responsibilities through various social and allied
institutions. The Bank, in the review period, has focused its CSR activities in the field relating to education, healthcare,
orphanage, differently-abled people, old aged home, sports, culture, preservation of cultural heritages and rehabilitation of
victims of natural calamities and social services.

During review period, under the CSR initiative, we are pleased to inform you all that the Bank has given financial assistance
of Rs. 50,000/- each to Nava Kiran Orphans and Helpless Children Society and Helping Hand Children Society, Rs. 50,000/-
to Department of Home Science, TU for creating awareness program on world heart day, Rs. 50,000/- to Lions Club and Bhula
Sudhar Samiti for conducting health camp, Cloths and educational material worth Rs. 50,000/ to the students of Shree Deep
Jyoti School, Hetauda, Fans and musical instrument worth Rs. 49,319.96 for blind students of Shree Panchodaya School/Jeevan
Jyoti Hostel, Dhangadhi, Rs. 50,000/ to the Student of IOE Pulchowk for organizing Hult Prize Event, Rs. 75,000/ for installation
of CCTV Camera in Pokhara Metropolitan city, Rs. 89,872.30 for purchase of Grass Cutter and Sports Material for Barakh Gan,
Dhankuta, Rs. 100,000/- for construction of Police Bit at Kupondol, Relief Material worth Rs. 200,000/- and Rs. 100,000/-
respectively for storm victims of Subarna and Prasauni Village Municipal of Bara District, Table and Chair worth Rs. 100,000/-
to Janata Community School, Dharan, Rs. 100,000/- to Youth Corner Club for organizing drawing competition, Rs. 111,111/-
for construction of pavement around Singha Devi Temple, Rs. 149,545/- for painting and maintenance of Tridevi Temple,
Thamel, Educational Materials worth Rs. 180,000/- to the destitute students of Chepang Community, Rs. 500,000/- to Teach
For Nepal for deploying volunteer for providing quality education on various subjects to the students of community school
of remote areas, Rs. 550,000/- for construction of rest/leisure room for the doctors of TU Teaching Hospital, Rs. 2,500,000/-
to Spinal Injury Sangh Nepal for purchase of Wheelchairs and operational expenses, etc along with many other social causes.

The Bank is active in the development of sports culture like in the past. The Bank has sponsored as well as co-sponsored
various sports activities such as Golf, Badminton, Football tournament for deaf students, Judo/Martial Art events, etc.

The Bank is fully aware of its corporate social responsibilities towards the community/nation and committed to continue its
CSR initiative in coming days as well.

Board of Directors

During the review period, Mr. Bijay Bahadur Shrestha (representing public shareholder) is elected as Director by the 26th
AGM held on January 14, 2019 replacing Mr. Surendra Silwal. Similarly, Mr. Radha Krishna Pote is appointed as Independent
Professional Director effective from February 08, 2019 in vacant position after resignation of Mr. Upendra Keshari Poudyal
on January 06, 2019.

Similarly, Mr. Bhisma Kumar Chudal (representing Ava International) is appointed as Alternate Director effective from July 17,
2019 replacing Mr. Sunil Bahadur Thapa.

During the review period, as per the provision of BAFIA, Mr. Tulsi Prasad Gautam and Mr. Damodar Prasad Subedi (representing
Employee Provident Fund) are appointed as Director and Alternate Director of the Bank respectively from the BOD Meeting
held on October 24, 2019 till the upcoming Annual General Meeting of the Bank.

Similarly, Ms. Maya Inayat Ismail has been appointed as Alternate Director of the Bank representing Habib Bank Limited,
Pakistan by the BOD Meeting held on October 24, 2019.

Mr. Manoj Bahadur Shrestha (representing N. Trading) and Mr. Prachanda Bahadur Shrestha (representing Chhaya International)
have continued as Chairman and Director on the Bank’s Board of Directors respectively. Similarly, Mr. Sushil Bickram Thapa
(representing Ava International) has continued as Director on the Bank’s Board of Directors.

Similarly, Ms. Menuka Shrestha (representing Chhaya International) and Mrs. Ranjana Shrestha (representing N. Trading)
have continued as Alternate Directors on the Bank’s Board of Directors.

Mr. Himalaya SJB Rana continues to hold the position of Chief Advisor.

We would like to congratulate and welcome all the newly appointed Director and Alternate Directors and are grateful to Former
Directors, Mr. Surendra Silwal and Mr. Upendra Keshari Poudyal and Former Alternate Directors Mr. Bijaya Kumar Shrestha
and Mr. Sunil Bahadur Thapa for their sterling contribution towards the Bank’s progress and prosperity. On this occasion, |
would like to declare that the Board of Directors of the Bank is committed towards prosperity of the Bank.
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Audit, Balance Sheet and Other Financials

The Balance Sheet as on July 16, 2019, the Profit and Loss Account, the Profit and Loss Appropriation Account, Cash Flow,
related annexure and Auditors’ Report for the fiscal year 2018/19, are enclosed with this report. Further, information required
to be disclosed as per the provisions of Company Act 2063, Chapter 7, Clause 109, Sub-Clause (4) are presented as Annex
E. Consolidated Financial Statement has been prepared and presented including the Financial Statement of the Bank’s fully
owned subsidiary “Himalayan Capital Ltd” and other Associate Companies in which the Bank has invested according to the
“Financial Reporting Standards”.

Profit and Loss Appropriation

The net profit of the Bank amounted to Rs. 2,763.85 million for the fiscal year 2018/19 whereas the total net profit of the bank,
including other comprehensive income, amounted to Rs. 2,736.50 million. 20% of the net profit i.e. Rs. 552.77 million, has
been appropriated to the Statutory General Reserve Fund. In addition, the Bank has allocated Rs. 85.71 million from its profit
and transferred it to the Bond Repayment Reserve for the Bond issued worth Rs. 600 million. Additionally, as per the circular
of Regulatory Body, the Bank has transferred Rs. 27.64 million in the reserve for its Corporate Social Responsibility, Rs. 19.56
million has been transferred to Employee Training Reserve, Rs. 4.42 Million has been transferred to Foreign Exchange
Adjustment Reserve and Rs. 120.79 Million has been transferred to Regulatory Reserve.

Out of the fund transferred to various Reserves in the previous year, Rs. 5.32 Million is also available for appropriation.

For fiscal year 2018/19, 10% bonus share and 12% cash dividend (including tax) have been proposed to the shareholders.
For the proposed bonus shares and cash dividends, an amount of Rs. 852,025,584/- and Rs. 1,022,430,701/- respectively
has been allocated from the retained profit. After the distribution of the proposed bonus shares, the paid-up capital of the
Bank will amount to Rs. 9,372,281,428/-. We are proud of the fact that the Bank has been able to provide good returns in the
form of cash dividends and bonus shares to its shareholders right from the commencement of its operations.

Vote of Thanks

On behalf of the Board of Directors, | would like to extend sincere thanks to the shareholders, esteemed customers, related
divisions of the Government of Nepal such as Finance Ministry, Nepal Rastra Bank, Security Board of Nepal (SEBON), Nepal
Stock Exchange, Company Registrar Office, CDS and Clearing Ltd, Credit Information Bureau of Nepal, Deposit and Credit
Guarantee Fund and all the other Regulatory Bodies for their guidance and invaluable support in discharging banking services.
| would also like to place on record special thanks to the management of our joint venture partner Habib Bank Limited,
Pakistan, the Bank’s Chief Executive Officer, including entire staff for making dynamic contributions to the progress and
prosperity of the Bank. Finally, | would like to extend hearty thanks to the media for giving wide coverage to our activities and
to all our well-wishers.

Thank you.

On behalf of the Board of Directors

Manoj Bahadur Shrestha
Chairman
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PRINCIPAL INDICATORS

FY FY FY FY FY FY
Particulars Unit 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 2016/17 2017/18 2018/19
2071/72 2072/73 2072/73 2073/74 2074/15 2075/76
Restated

Profit before Bonus and Tax/Total Income Percent 23.08 42.89 36.48 40.93 26.15 32.64
Per Share Income Rs. 33.37 43.03 33.55 35.15 23.11 32.44
Per Share Market Value Rs. 813 1500 886 886 551 552
Price Earning Ratio Ratio 24.36 34.86 26.40 25.21 23.84 17.02
Dividend on Share Capital (Including Bonus) Percent 4211 31.58 26.32 26.32 15.79 22.00
Cash Dividend on Share Capital Percent 711 1.58 1.32 1.32 10.79 12.00
Interest Income/Loan and Advances Percent 8.35 7.26 8.94 9.52 11.64 11.67
Staff Expenses/Total Operating Expenses Percent 45.66 52.96 56.01 56.34 53.02 53.79
Interest Expenses on Total Deposit Percent 2.66 1.79 3.42 3.52 5.61 6.13
FX Fluctuation Gain/Total Income Percent 6.84 8.55 6.52 7.00 5.81 5.50
Net Profit after Tax/Total Assets (ROA) Ratio 1.34 1.94 2.03 2.19 1.67 2.21
Net Profit after Tax/Total Equity (ROE) Percent 17.06 24.53 21.22 21.58 14.17 18.34
Total Loan/Deposits Percent 75.37 79.12 83.59 85.10 88.31 87.37
Total Operating Expenses/Total Income Percent 30.44 28.23 23.97 22.36 16.96 16.68
Capital Adequacy Ratio:

A. Core Capital Percent 9.48 9.43 10.93 10.93 11.40 11.63

B. Supplementary Capital Percent 1.66 1.41 1.22 1.22 1.06 0.97

C. Total Capital Fund Percent 11.14 10.84 12.15 12.15 12.46 12.60
Liquidity Percent 30.32 28.74 26.64 26.64 23.05 26.25
Non-performing Loan/Total Loan Percent 3.22 1.23 0.85 0.85 1.40 1.12
Weighted Average Interest Rate Spread Percent 4.35 4.59 4.44 4.44 4.70 4.47
Book Networth per share Rs. 208.81 196.12 180.31 189.91 174.24 187.73
Total Share Number | 33,327,000 = 44,991,450 64,916,235 ' 64,916,235 | 81,145,294 = 85,202,558
Total Staff Number 856 857 835 835 834 910
Number of Branches Number 42 42 47 47 55 59
Number of ATMs Number 80 84 93 93 105 122

e Figures of FY 2073/74 have been regrouped/restated based on NFRS wherever necessary.
e Figures for FY 2074/75 onwards have been presented based on NFRS.
e Staff Bonus has not been considered while calculating the ratios for Staff Expenses and Operating expenses
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Key Indicators

50
45
40
35
30
25 o
20
15
10
5
0
% Ne) x \a} ©
/\’\<\ /\‘YX\ /\‘5<\ gg@\ /\"g\ '\‘°<\
® P P WS ® o
\
e
P
—— EPS —#— P/E Ratio
1600
1400
1200
1000
800
600
400
200 *r— —O— —_—— — —— N
0
) ™ 2\ \a} )
® ® o N ® o
\
@
P
=== Book Networth per share == Market price per share

27th Annual Report | 33



€. Himalayan Bank Ltd.

Key Indicators

30
25
20
15
10
5
¢ = — >— - —
0
> X \») ©
P DY DY A\ o N
\
e
®
—4— ROA —— ROE
(Rs. '000)
120,000,000 /
100,000,000
80,000,000 /
60,000,000
40,000,000
20,000,000
’ ) H 4.
— — — s —
2071/72 2072/73 2073/74 2074/75 2075/76
—¢— Share Capital
—l— Net Worth
== Gross Loan and advances (BFls and Customers)
=>&= Total Deposits (BFIs and Customers)

34 | 27th Annual Report




) Wﬁﬁsyan Bank Ltd.

Deposits-From Customers and BFls

Financial Year 2074/75 (2017/18)

Other Deposit
2.13%
Call Deposit Current Deposit
6.69% 10.03%

\ _

Saving Deposit
42.05% 39.10%

Fixed Deposit

Financial Year 2075/76 (2018/19)

Other Deposit

4.72% )
Call Deposit Current Deposit

4.78% 8.85%

\ _

Saving Deposit

Fixed Deposit 34.04%

47.61%

Loans and advances

Financial Year 2074/75 (2017/18)

Deprived
Hire Purchase Sector Loan Bills Purchased &
Loan 4.77% Discounted  Qther Loan

Margin -~ 7.49%
Lending
1.55%

0.08%

8.80%

Term Loan
16.42%

Real Working Capital
Estate Import/ Loan
4.38% Export 40.22%

16.29%

Financial Year 2075/76 (2018/19)

Deprived
Hire Purchase Sector Loan Bills Purchased &
Loan 4.70% Discounted  Qther Loan

Margin ~ 7.66%
Lending
1.53%

0.09%

8.99%

Term Loan
17.04%

Real Working Capital
Estate Import/ Loan
3.82% Export 42.53%

13.63%
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Income Composition

Financial Year 2074/75 (2017/18)

Other Operating
Net Fee and Net Trading I?C;ST;
Commission lincome I
Income 12.28%
12.12%

Net Interest Income
73.81%

Financial Year 2075/76 (2018/19)

Other Operating
i Income
NetFeeand  Net Trading
Commission lincome 2.62%
Income 10.75%

11.32%

Net Interest Income
75.31%

Expense Composition

Financial Year 2074/75 (2017/18)

Other Operating Expense
36.45%

Financial Year 2075/76 (2018/19)

Other Operating Expense
36.75%

Staff Expenses excluding

Depreciation and statutory bonus
Amortization 54.74%
8.81%

Staff Expenses excluding

Depreciation and statutory bonus
Amortization 55.40%
7.85%
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BRS Neupane & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Kumari Marg, House No. 43
P.O. Box 8137, Naxal,
Kathmandu, Nepal

T Ll g BRS Neupane
E-mail : ch ; .
ooy o & Co.

Independent Auditors’ Report

To the shareholders on the Financial Statements of Himalayan Bank Limited for the year ended
315 Asar 2076 (16" July 2019).

Opinion

In our opinion, the accompanying Consolidated Financial Statements give a true and fair view, in
all material respects, the Consolidated Financial Position of the Group, as at 31% Asar 2076 (16"
July 2019) and of the results of its Financial Performance, Consolidated Change in Equity and its

cash flows for the year then ended thereon in accordance with Nepal Financial Reporting
Standards (NFRSs).

We have audited the accompanying Consolidated Financial Statements of Himalayan Bank
Limited (“the Bank”) and its subsidiary (“the Group”), which comprise the Consolidated
Statement of Financial Position as at 31 Asar 2076 (corresponding 16" July 2019), the
Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss, the Consolidated Statement of Other Comprehensive
income, the Consolidated Statement of Change in Equity and the Consolidated Statement of Cash
Flows for the year then ended and summary of Significant Accounting Policies and Notes to the
Consolidated Financial Statement for the year then ended 3 1% Asar 2076.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Nepal Standards on Auditing (NSAs). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the
Group in accordance with The Institute of Chartered Accountants of Nepal (ICAN) Handbook of
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants together with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the Financial Statements in Nepal and we have fulfilled our Ethics for
Professional Accountants. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Other Matter

We did not audit the Financial Statement and Other Financial Information of the subsidiary namely
Himalayan Capital Limited. The Financial Statement and Other Financial Information has been
audited by Other Auditor whose report has been furnished to us by the management. Our opinion
on the Financial Statement so far as it relates to the accounts and disclosures included in respect
of the subsidiary is based solely on the report of the Other Auditor.

The auditor’s report is intended solely for the intended users, and should not be distributed to or
used by other parties.

A member of

Nexia

International
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Other Information

Management is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The Other Information
comprises the information included in the Annual Report but does not include the consolidated
Financial Statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the Consolidated Financial Statements does not cover the other information and
we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

Our responsibility is to read the Other Information and, in doing so, consider whether the Other
Information is materially inconsistent with the Consolidated Financial Statements or our
knowledge obtained in the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If,
based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibility of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated
Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the Consolidated Financial
Statements in accordance with Nepal Financial Reporting Standards (NFRSs) and for such internal
control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of the Financial
Statement that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error and applying
appropriate accounting policies; and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the
circumstances. Those Charged with Governance are responsible for overseeing the organization's
financial reporting process.

In preparing the Consolidated Financial Statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Group’s ability to continue as going concern, disclosing as applicable the matters related to going
concern dnd using the going concern basis of accounting unless the management either intends to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations or has no realistic alternative but to do so

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Financial Statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with NSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these Financial Statements.

As part of an audit, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:
= Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Financial Statements, whether

due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations or the override of internal control.
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* Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the internal control.

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

* Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of going concern basis of
accounting and based on audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the Financial
Statements or if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

* Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Consolidated Financial
Statements, including the disclosures and whether the Consolidated Financial Statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

= Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the
Group’s activities to express an opinion on Financial Statements.

* We communicate with senior officials of the management regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

Report on other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

We have obtained all the information and explainations, which to the best of our knowledge and
belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit and we have not come across any fradulence in
the accounts, so far as it appeared from our examination of the books of accounts. The accounts
and records of the bank has been maintained as required by the law and Financial Statements are
in agreement with the Books of Account maintained by the bank. In our opininon, so far as
appeared from our examination of the books, the bank has maintained adequate capital funds and
adequate provisions for possible impairment of assets in accordance with the Directives of Nepal
Rastra Bank.

To the best of our information and according to the explanation given to us, the Board of Directors,
the representative or any employee of the bank has not acted contrary to the provision of law
relating to accounts nor caused direct loss or damage to the bank deliberately or acted in a manner
that would jeopardize the interest and security of the bank and the bank has not acted in a manner
to jeopardize the interest and security of the depositors and the investors.

CA. Anup K. Shrestha
Managing Partner

Place: Kathmandu, Nepal
Date: 14" November 2019
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Himalayan Bank Limited

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

As on 31 Asar 2076 (16 July 2019)

Group Bank

Particulars Note Asar 2076 Asar 2075 Asar 2076 Asar 2075
Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents 4.1 4,658,563,974 4,658,553,979 4,741,359,383
Due from Nepal Rastra Bank 4.2 4,883,535,225 4,883,535,225 5,159,259,737
Placements with Bank and Financial Institutions 4.3 5,231,235,350 5,231,235,350 4,989,524,816
Derivative financial instruments 4.4 127,145,274 127,145,274 33,444,999
Other trading assets 4.5 - - -
Loans & Advances to BFls 4.6 4,772,752,717 4,772,752,717 3,685,218,985
Loans & Advances to Customers 4.7 92,697,318,360 92,697,318,360 82,474,993,680
Investment Securities 4.8 16,466,201,909 16,466,201,909 11,654,171,810
Current Tax Assets 4.9 225,444,808 224,947,032 154,307,606
Investments in subsidiaries 410 - 200,000,000 -
Investments in Associates 411 1,104,665,844 195,785,700 195,785,700
Investment Property 412 109,134,713 109,134,713 2,299,307
Property & Equipment 413 2,394,090,867 2,391,830,155 2,222,677,268
Goodwill and Intangible Assets 4.14 117,677,347 117,677,347 85,852,688
Deferred Tax Assets 4.15 - - -
Other Assets 416 1,074,449,208 1,075,024,312 1,063,405,401
Total Assets 133,862,215,596 133,151,142,073 116,462,301,380
Liabilities
Due to Bank and Financial Institutions 417 3,702,916,346 3,702,916,346 754,253,957
Due to Nepal Rastra Bank 418 560,812,042 560,812,042 -
Derivative financial instruments 4.19 6,540,600 6,540,600 9,109,574
Deposits from Customers 4.20 109,184,801,597 109,387,060,433  98,988,791,212
Borrowing 4.21 - - -
Current Tax Liabilities 4.9 - - -
Provisions 4.22 - - 2,299,307
Deferred Tax Liabilities 4.15 98,894,441 98,843,796 131,264,033
Other Liabilities 4.23 2,776,920,829 2,777,021,958 1,814,328,754
Debt Securities Issued 4.24 623,148,518 623,148,518 623,357,548
Subordinated Liabilities 4.25 - - -
Total Liabilities 116,954,034,373 117,156,343,693 102,323,404,385
Equity
Share Capital 4.26 8,520,255,844 8,520,255,844 8,114,529,375
Share Premium - - -
Retained Earnings 3,083,584,531 2,171,146,878 1,500,405,440
Reserves 4.27 5,304,340,848 5,303,395,658 4,523,962,180
Total Equity attributable to Equity Holders 16,908,181,223 15,994,798,380 14,138,896,995
Non Controlling Interest -
Total Equity 16,908,181,223 15,994,798,380 14,138,896,995
Total Liabilities and Equity 133,862,215,596 133,151,142,073 116,462,301,380
Contingent liabilities and commitment 4.28 33,859,116,570 33,859,116,570  36,183,796,482

Net assets value per share

198

188

174

Satish Raj Joshi
Executive Financial Officer

Sushiel Joshi
General Manager

Ejaz Qadeer Gill

- As per our attached report of even date
Senior General Manager

Ashoke SJB Rana
Chief Executive Officer

Mr. Manoj B. Shrestha
Chai
airman Anup K. Shrestha, FCA
Managing Partner
BRS Neupane & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Mr. Faisal N. Lalani
Director

Mr. Prachanda B. Shrestha
Director

Mr. Tulasi Prasad Gautam
Director

Mr. Sushil Bickram Thapa
Director

Mr. Bijay Bahadur Shrestha
Director

Mr. Radha Krishna Pote
Director

Thursday, November 14, 2019
Kathmandu
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Himalayan Bank Limited

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
For the year ended 31 Asar 2076 (16 July 2019)

Group Bank

Particulars Note Asar 2076 Asar 2075 Asar 2076 Asar 2075
Interest Income 4.29 11,625,415,050 11,625,415,050 9,724,870,892
Interest Expense 4.30 6,583,850,344 6,594,074,206 5,403,047,172
Net interest income 5,041,564,706 5,031,340,844 4,321,823,720
Fee and Commission Income 4.31 821,306,480 821,306,480 772,037,821
Fee and Commission Expenses 4.32 65,065,606 65,065,606 62,155,952
Net Fee and Commission Income 756,240,874 756,240,874 709,881,869
Net interest, fee and commission income 5,797,805,580 5,787,581,718 5,031,705,589
Net Trading Income 4.33 718,157,896 718,157,896 718,904,848
Other Operating Income 4.34 116,577,355 175,116,610 104,848,090
Total Operating Income 6,632,540,831 6,680,856,224 5,855,458,527
Impairment charges/(reversal) for Loans 4.35 133,622,099 133,622,099 679,917,035
and Other losses
Net operating income 6,498,918,732 6,547,234,125 5,175,541,492
Operating expense
Personnel Expenses 4.36 1,638,125,616 1,638,125,616 1,322,248,139
Other Operating Expenses 4.37 800,067,062 796,698,563 696,351,599
Depreciation & Amortisation 4.38 170,202,450 170,198,215 168,276,177
Operating Profit 3,890,523,604 3,942,211,731 2,988,665,577
Non operating income 4.39 317,097,948 49,327,264 309,525,238
Non operating expense 4.40 58,378,395 58,378,395 533,011,412
Profit before income tax 4,149,243,157 3,933,160,600 2,765,179,403
Income Tax Expense 4.41

Current Tax
Deferred Tax

Profit for the year
Profit attributable to:

Equity holders of the Bank

Non-controlling interest

Profit for the year

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share
Diluted earnings per share

Satish Raj Joshi

Executive Financial Officer

Ashoke SJB Rana
Chief Executive Officer

Mr. Faisal N. Lalani
Director

Mr. Sushil Bickram Thapa
Director

Sushiel Joshi
General Manager

Mr. Manoj B. Shrestha
Chairman

Mr. Prachanda B. Shrestha
Director

Mr. Bijay Bahadur Shrestha
Director

1,194,380,193
(22,760,671)

2,977,623,635

2,977,623,635

2,977,623,635

34.95
34.95

Ejaz Qadeer Gill

1,192,123,441
(22,811,316)

2,763,848,475

2,763,848,475

2,763,848,475

32.44
32.44

877,612,392
11,956,544

1,875,610,467

1,875,610,467

1,875,610,467

23.37
23.37

As per our attached report of even date

Senior General Manager

Mr. Tulasi Prasad Gautam
Director

Mr. Radha Krishna Pote
Director

Anup K. Shrestha, FCA
Managing Partner
BRS Neupane & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Thursday, November 14, 2019

Kathmandu
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Himalayan Bank Limited

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
For the year ended 31 Asar 2076 (16 July 2019)

Group

Bank

Particulars

Asar 2076

Asar 2075

Asar 2076

Asar 2075

Profit or loss for the year

Other comprehensive income, net off income tax

a) Items that will not be reclassified to profit

or loss

- Gains/(losses) from investments in equity

instruments measured at fair value

- Gains/(losses) on revaluation

- Actuarial gains/(losses) on defined benefit

plans

- Income tax relating to above items

Net other comprehsive income that will not be

reclassified to profit or loss

b) Items that are or may be reclassified to

profit or loss

- Gains/(losses) on cash flow hedge

- Exchange gains/(losses) (arising from

translating financial assets of foreign operation)

- Income tax relating to above items

- Reclassify to profit or loss

Net other comprehsive income that are or may

be reclassified to profit or loss

c) Share of other comprehensive income of

associate accounted as per equity method

Other comprehensive income for the period,

net of income tax

Total comprehensive income for the period 2,950,270,521 2,736,495,361 1,896,168,012

Total comprehensive income attributable to:

Equity holders of the Bank 2,950,270,521 2,736,495,361 1,896,168,012

Non-controlling interest

Total comprehensive income for the period 2,950,270,521 2,736,495,361 1,896,168,012
Satish Raj Joshi Sushiel Joshi Ejaz Qadeer Gill As per our attached report of even date

Executive Financial Officer

Ashoke SJB Rana
Chief Executive Officer

General Manager

Mr. Manoj B. Shrestha
Chairman

2,977,623,635

(32,029,738)

(4,932,297)

9,608,921
(27,353,114)

(27,353,114)

Senior General Manager

2,763,848,475

(32,029,738)

(4,932,297)

9,608,921
(27,353,114)

(27,353,114)

1,875,610,467

(13,193,277)

29,792,839

3,957,983
20,557,545

20,557,545

Anup K. Shrestha, FCA

Managing Partner
BRS Neupane & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Mr. Tulasi Prasad Gautam
Director

Mr. Prachanda B. Shrestha
Director

Mr. Faisal N. Lalani
Director

Mr. Radha Krishna Pote
Director

Mr. Sushil Bickram Thapa
Director

Mr. Bijay Bahadur Shrestha
Director

Thursday, November 14, 2019
Kathmandu
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Himalayan Bank Limited

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For the year ended 31 Asar 2076 (16 July 2019)

Group Bank
Particulars Asar 2076 Asar 2075 Asar 2076 Asar 2075

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Interest received 10,813,849,461 10,813,849,461 9,307,833,312
Fees and other income received 821,306,480 821,306,480 850,208,832
Dividend received - -
Receipts from other operating activities 856,610,453 856,651,485 16,371,060
Interest paid (6,390,142,124) (6,400,365,986)  (5,373,959,963)
Commission and fees paid (65,065,606) (65,065,606) (64,236,793)
Cash payment to employees (1,362,698,471) (1,362,698,471)  (1,339,474,335)
Other expense paid (857,826,693) (854,458,194) (743,334,398)

Operating cash flows before changes in operating
assets and liabilities

(Increase)/Decrease in operating assets

Due from Nepal Rastra Bank

Placement with bank and financial institutions

Other trading assets

Loan and advances to bank and financial institutions
Loans and advances to customers

Other assets

Increase/(Decrease) in operating liabilities
Due to bank and financial institutions

Due to Nepal Rastra Bank

Deposit from customers

Borrowings

Other liabilities

Net cash flow from operating activities before tax paid
Income taxes paid

Net cash flow from operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of investment securities

Receipts from sale of investment securities
Purchase of property and equipment

Receipt from the sale of property and equipment
Purchase of intangible assets

Receipt from the sale of intangible assets
Purchase of investment properties

Receipt from the sale of investment properties
Interest received

Dividend received

Net cash used in investing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Receipt from issue of debt securities
Repayment of debt securities

Receipt from issue of subordinated liabilities
Repayment of subordinated liabilities

Receipt from issue of shares

Dividends paid

Interest paid

Other receipt/payment

Net cash from financing activities

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at Sawan 1, 2075

Effect of exchange rate fluctuations on cash and cash
equivalents held

Cash and cash equivalents at Asar end 2076

3,816,033,500

275,724,512
(241,710,534

)
(1,093,002,884)
(10,347,959,008)
(199,567,203)

(11,606,515,117)

2,948,662,389
560,812,042
10,196,010,385

384,831,215

14,090,316,031
(1,265,517,395)

5,034,317,019

(18,678,495,599)
13,895,538,029
(358,328,221)
52,543,219
(66,209,101)

3,500,000
701,810,401
63,317,521

(4,386,323,750)

(680,232,451
(68,235,352

| ——

(748,467,803)

(100,474,535)
4,741,359,383
17,679,126

4,658,563,974

3,809,219,169

275,724,512
(241,710,534

(10,347,959,008
(200,142,306

(11,607,090,220)

)
a ,093,002,884;
)
)

2,948,662,389
560,812,042
10,398,269,221

384,932,343

14,292,675,995
(1,262,762,867)

5,232,042,077

(18,878,495,599)
13,895,538,029
(356,232,954)
52,712,899
(66,209,101)

3,500,000
701,810,401
63,317,521

(4,584,058,804)

(680,232,451)
(68,235,352)

(748,467,803)

(100,484,530)
4,741,359,383
17,679,126

4,658,553,979

2,653,407,715

981,892,180
1,290,684,047
(358,406,256)

(8,868,199,821)

(44,717,953)

(6,998,747,803)
167,594,370

6,654,336,544

(391,389,583)

6,430,541,331
(1,003,806,311)

1,081,394,932

(15,108,205,471)
13,162,845,600
(199,688,334)
20,932,209
(45,310,356)

251,976,376
241,116,731
48,597,350

(1,627,735,895)

(50,000)

(75,238,708
(47,645,840

==

(122,934,548)

(669,275,511)
4,734,344,144
676,290,750

4,741,359,383
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STATEMENT OF DISTRIBUTABLE PROFIT OR LOSS

For the year ended 31 Asar 2076 (16 July 2019)
(As per NRB Regulation)

Bank

Particulars

Asar 2076

Asar 2075

Net profit or (loss) as per statement of profit or loss
Appropriations:
a. General reserve
. Foreign exchange fluctuation fund
. Capital redemption reserve
. Corporate social responsibility fund
. Employees' training fund
Other
- Capital Adjustment Reserve

- 0O O O T

- Bond Redemption Reserve
- Investment Adjustment Reserve

Profit or (loss) before regulatory adjustment

Regulatory adjustment :
a. Interest receivable (-)/previous accrued interest received (+)

. Short loan loss provision in accounts (-)/reversal (+)
. Short provision for possible losses on investment (-)/reversal (+)
. Short loan loss provision on Non Banking Assets (-)/reversal (+)
. Deferred tax assets recognised (-)/ reversal (+)

Goodwill recognised (-)/ impairment of Goodwill (+)
. Bargain purchase gain recognised (-)/reversal (+)

>oSQ ™S 0o o O T

. Actuarial loss recognised (-)/reversal (+)
Other (+/-)

Distributable profit or (loss)

2,763,848,475

(552,769,695)
(4,419,782)
(27,638,485)
(19,564,872)

(85,714,287)
(1,214,859)

2,072,526,495

(9,017,808)

(106,835,406)

(4,932,297)

1,951,740,984

1,875,610,467

(375,122,093)

(18,756,105)
(20,375,572)

(85,714,286)

1,375,642,411

(681,321,143)

(2,299,307)

(39,977,401)

652,044,560
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 Asar 2076 (16 July 2019)

1.1

1.2

1.3

2.1

2.2

23

24

REPORTING ENTITY
Corporate Information

Himalayan Bank Limited ("the Bank") is a public limited liability company domiciled in Nepal, with its corporate office
in Kamaladi, Kathmandu, Nepal. The Bank is operating through 59 branches, one extension counter and one overseas
representative office. The shares of the Bank are listed in Nepal Stock Exchange Limited.

Parent Entity and Ultimate Parent Entity

The Bank is not a subsidiary of any entity. The bank has established a wholly owned subsidiary to carry out merchant
banking services which has come into operation from August 2019. The subsidiary Himalayan Capital Limited is licensed
by Securities Board of Nepal to carry out merchant banking activities and also act as depository participant.

Principal Activities

The Bank is licensed by Nepal Rastra Bank, the central bank of Nepal, to carry out commercial banking activities in
Nepal as class 'A' financial institution under the Bank and Financial Institution Act, 2073. The Bank provides a comprehensive
range of financial services that include accepting deposits, corporate and retail lending, project financing, trade financing,
fund transfer. The Bank also offers remittance services, card services and other ancillary services like safe deposit locker
services as well as a wide range of electronic banking facilities.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

The consolidated financial statement of the bank and its subsidiary is prepared on going concern basis under historical
cost convention except where the accounting standard adopted by the bank explicitly requires the use of fair market
value. All judgments, estimates and assumptions used by the bank and its subsidiary while preparing the financial
statement have been disclosed in the relevant sections of notes to accounts.

Statement of Compliance

The consolidated financial Statements of the Bank and its subsidiary which comprise of the Statement of Financial
Position, Statement of Profit or Loss, Statement of Comprehensive Income, Statement of Changes in Equity, Statement
of Cash flow and Significant Accounting Policies and Notes have been prepared in accordance with Nepal Financial
Reporting Standards (NFRSs) laid down by the Accounting Standards Board of Nepal, except where alternative treatments
have been adopted in line with carve-outs approved by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Nepal (ICAN), the
accounting regulating body of the country. The bank has adopted the format prescribed by the regulator (Nepal Rastra
Bank) for the preparation of the financial statements.

The financial statement of the subsidiary has been regrouped/ restated accordingly to facilitate consolidation.
Reporting period and approval of financial statements

The consolidated financial statements cover the financial year commencing from Sawan 01, 2075 and ending on Asar
31, 2076 (17 July 2018 to 16 July 2019). The financial statements were authorized for issue in accordance with the
resolution of the Board of Directors dated Kartik 27, 2076 (November 13, 2019).

Functional and presentation currency

Nepalese Rupees is the functional and presentation currency of the Bank and its subsidiary as it is the currency of the
primary economic environment in which they operate. Hence, items included in the consolidated Financial Statements
are presented in Nepalese Rupees.

Use of estimates, assumptions and judgments

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with NFRSs requires management to make judgments, estimates
and assumptions for application of accounting policies that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income
and expenses. Actual results may differ from the estimates so made. Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis and the effect of revisions to accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the
estimate is revised and in any future periods affected. The most significant uses of judgment and estimates are as
follows:
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(a) Going concern

The management has made an assessment of the entity's ability to continue as a going concern and is satisfied
that it has the resources to continue in business for the foreseeable future. Furthermore, management is not aware
of any material uncertainties that may cast significant doubt upon the entity's ability to continue as a going concern.
Therefore, the financial statements continue to be prepared on the going concern basis.

(b) Fair value of financial instruments

Where the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded on the statement of financial position cannot
be derived from active markets, they are determined using judgments that may, among other things, include
considerations of liquidity and model inputs such as volatility for longer dated derivatives and discount rates,
prepayment rates and default rate assumptions for asset backed securities.

(c) Classification of financial instruments

The bank and its subsidiary have classified the financial assets and liabilities under different accounting classification
as per NFRS 9. These are either measured at fair value or amortized cost. According to NFRS 9, debt instruments
are recognized at amortized cost and investment in equity instrument can be elected to be recognized as fair value
through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI) or fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL). The bank has elected
to measure its investment in equity instrument at fair value through other comprehensive income unless recognized
as associate or subsidiary.

(d) Impairment losses on loans and advances

As per the carve-out approved by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Nepal, Bank and Financial Institutions
shall measure impairment loss on loans and advances as the higher of the amount derived as per rule-based norms
prescribed by the Regulator and the amount determined as per paragraph 63 of NAS 39, with proper disclosures
of the same. Accordingly, the Bank has assessed impairment loss under both norms and impairment provided in
the financial statements is the impairment under norms prescribed by the Regulator with separate disclosure of
impairment calculated under NAS 39.

(e) Impairment of Equity Instruments

The Bank and its subsidiary records impairment charges on quoted equity investments by comparing with the fair
market value as on the reporting date. In case of un-quoted equity investments, impairment is recorded only where
there is objective evidence of permanent decline in the value of investment.

(f) Taxation

The Bank and its subsidiary is subject to income taxes. Significant judgment was required to determine the total
provision for current and deferred taxes pending the issue of tax guideline on the treatment of the adoption of NFRSs
in the financial statements and the taxable profit for the purpose of imposition of taxes. Uncertainties exist, with
respect to the interpretation of the applicability of tax laws, at the time of the preparation of these financial statements.

The Bank and its subsidiary has recognized assets and liabilities for current, deferred and other taxes based on
estimates of whether additional taxes will be due. Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different from the
amounts initially recorded, such differences shall impact the income of that year.

(g) Deferred tax

Deferred tax asset and liabilities are recognized in respect of temporary difference in tax bases of assets and liabilities
and their carrying amount in the financial statement. Deferred income tax is determined using tax rate applicable
to the bank and its subsidiary as at the reporting date which is expected to apply when the related deferred income
tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled. Deferred tax assets are recognised where it is
probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilized.

(h) Defined Benefit plan

The bank has recognized gratuity and accumulated leave encashment as defined benefit plan. The cost of the
defined benefit plan is determined using actuarial valuation by an actuary. The actuarial valuation involves making
assumptions about discount rates, salary increment rate, age of retirement, and mortality rates, among other things.
Due to the long-term nature of these plans, such estimates are subject to significant uncertainty. The assumptions
used for valuation is disclosed in detail in Note 4.23

The subsidiary is operating under a full scope management contract and hence long term liability with respect to
employee is not there.
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(k)

Materiality

In compliance with NAS 01 on Presentation of Financial Statements, each material class of similar items is presented
separately in the Financial Statements. ltems of dissimilar nature or functions too are presented separately, if they
are material.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the statement of financial position
only when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle
on a net basis, or to realize the assets and settle the liability simultaneously. Income and expense is not offset in
the income statement unless required or permitted by any accounting standard or interpretation, and as specifically
disclosed in the accounting policies of the Bank and its subsidiary.

Depreciation of Assets

The depreciable amount of an asset has been allocated on a systematic basis over its useful life using diminishing
balance method and depreciation rate determined by the management on the basis of nature and expected use
of the asset class. The systematic basis has however been determined using the best management judgment.

Details regarding the useful lives of property and equipment are disclosed in Note 3.7.
Fair Value of Investment Property

Non-Banking Assets, which are assets mortgaged with the bank and subsequently taken over by the Bank in the
course of recovery of the loan, are shown under Investment Properties. The value at which such assets are taken
over in line with the guidelines issued by the Regulator have been considered as fair value of such assets.

Changes in Accounting Policies

There are changes in accounting policy adopted by the bank in this fiscal year due to expiration of carve out on operating
lease provided by ICAN and issuance of new guidelines on interest income recognition by Nepal Rastra Bank.

Operating Lease: As per NAS 17 Para 33, Lease payment under an operating lease shall be recognized as an
expense on a straight line basis over the lease term unless another systematic basis is more representative of the
time pattern of the users benefit. As per carve out provided by ICAN for the fiscal year 2017-18, an entity may opt
not to recognize rental expense under SLM basis if another more systematic basis is more representative of the
time pattern of the users benefit even if the payments to the lessors aren't on that basis or the payments are structured
to increase in line with the expected general inflation to compensate for the lessors expected inflammatory cost
increases. The bank had availed of this carve-out as, the increase in rental payments over the terms of the rental
agreement generally falls in line with the expected general inflation and hence payments under operating leases
was recognized on actual basis on FY 74/75.

However, due to the expiry of the said carve-out, for recognizing rental expense under operating lease for this fiscal
year, SLM method has been adopted. The total rental expense for the remaining term of the rental agreement
including all incremental clauses divided by the remaining term of the agreement gives the rental expense of each
year under SLM method.

Recognition of Interest Income on loans and advances: Under NFRS interest income is required to be recognized
fully on accrual basis. However, as per the guideline issued by Nepal Rastra Bank accrual of interest income is
suspended when the defined criteria for suspension are met. The bank has accordingly suspended income
recognition in cases where the given criteria are met.

Discounting

Discounting has only been used for actuarial valuation. The assumptions used for valuation is disclosed in detail in Note

4.23

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of Measurement

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis, except for the following material items in the
Statement of financial position, all of which are measured at fair value.

Investment in equity instruments measured at FVTOCI

Investment Properties
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3.2 Basis of Consolidation

The bank has a fully owned subsidiary incorporated to carry out merchant banking activities. Although the subsidiary
came into operation from August 11, 2019 only, the consolidated accounts have been prepared for the year 2075/76
(2018/19) in order to cover investing and related activities carried out during the year. The consolidated financial
statements have been prepared in accordance with NFRS 10, Consolidated Financial Statements.

3.3 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise of cash-in-hand, balances with other bank and financial institutions, money at call
and short notice, and highly liquid financial assets with original maturities of three months or less from the acquisition
date that are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in their fair value, and are used by the Bank and its subsidiary
in the management of its short-term commitments. Cash and cash equivalents are carried at amortized cost in the
Statement of Financial Position.

3.4 Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity
instrument of another entity. Financial assets refer to assets that arise from contractual agreements on future cash flows
or from owning equity instruments of another entity. Financial liabilities are obligations that arise from contractual
agreements and that require settlement by way of delivering cash or another financial asset. The bank and its subsidiary
has applied NFRS 9 in defining, classifying and measuring its financial instrument.

(a) Recognition

All financial assets and liabilities are initially recognized on the trade date, i.e., the date that the entity becomes a
party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. This includes “regular way trades”: purchases or sales of
financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame generally established by regulation or convention
in the marketplace.

(b) Classification

Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities are classified under NFRS 9. The categorization of financial assets and
financial liabilities is based on the business model of holding the instrument and contractual cash flow characteristics
of the financial instrument. Business model reflects how groups of financial instrument are managed to achieve a
particular business objective. Business Model can be either to hold the asset in order to collect contractual cash
flows (hold to collect) or to trade the asset for market gains and Contractual Cash Flow are the contractual terms
that give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding.

Financial Instrument

® Financial Instrument at amortized cost: Financial Instrument are held at amortized cost when the business
model is to hold the asset in order to collect the contractual cash flows of the asset. The entire debt instrument
that the bank holds has been categorized as held at amortized cost.

e Financial Instrument at fair value: If financial assets aren’t measured at amortized cost then they are measured
at fair value.

- Financial Instrument at Fair Value Through Profit or Loss (FVTPL): Management designates an instrument
at fair value through profit or loss upon initial recognition when the designation eliminates or significantly
reduces the inconsistent treatment that would otherwise arise from measuring the assets or liabilities or
recognizing gains or losses on them on a different basis.

The Bank and its subsidiary has not designated any financial instrument as at fair value through profit or
loss.

- Financial Instrument at Fair Value Through Other Comprehensive Income (FVTOCI): If the instrument
aren’t categorized at amortized cost or fair value through profit or loss then it is classified as fair value
through OCI.

(c) Measurement
The measurement of financial instrument is based on the classification of the instrument:

Financial Instrument At Amortized Cost: Initially, the asset or liability is measured at fair value plus/minus transaction
cost and any immediate payment related to the instrument. Subsequently, the instrument is amortized using the
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effective interest rate. Effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts future cash flows to the present
outstanding amount.

Effective interest rate of loans and advance: While recognizing loans and advances at amortized cost, the bank
has opted the carve out provided by the ICAN for determining effective interest rate. As a result of this alternative
treatment, the bank hasn’t included the loan processing fees received by the bank while calculating the effective
interest rate to be used to amortize the loans and advances justifying that such fees and commission are immaterial
to the total income from such loans and advances. The fees and commission are recognized as income in the same
period when loan is approved and subsequently implemented/ disbursed.

Staff Loans and advances: When the transaction price differs from the fair value of other observable current market
transactions in the same instrument, the Bank immediately recognizes the difference between the transaction price
and fair value as Prepaid Benefit. Bank accordingly estimates the Prepaid Benefit in relation to Staff Loans and
advances given under subsidized rate of interest. While calculating the fair value in case of Staff Loans, the average
base rate for past 13 months of the Bank has been considered to be the market rate for the loan. Further, the
amortization income and expense of such prepaid benefit is shown both under Interest Income as well as Personnel
expense as it is the notional income and expense for the Bank.

e Base Rate is the minimum lending rate recommended by Nepal Rastra Bank and is calculated separately for
each individual bank every month as per the method prescribed by Nepal Rastra Bank.

Financial Instrument At Fair Value Through Profit or Loss (FVTPL): When the instrument is recognized at fair
value through profit or loss, then the initial transaction cost is expensed to profit or loss and subsequently any
change in its fair value is recognized in statement of financial performance.

Financial Instrument At Fair Value Through Other Comprehensive Income (FVTOCI): While measuring the
instrument at fair value through other comprehensive income the instrument is initially recognized at fair value.
Subsequently, any changes in the fair value are recognized in other comprehensive income.

(d) De-recognition of financial assets and financial liabilities
Financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is de-
recognized when:

® The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired.

® The entity has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay
the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass—through’ arrangement; and
either:

e The entity has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or

e The entity has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has
transferred control of the asset.

When the entity has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through
arrangement, and has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor
transferred control of the asset, the asset is recognised to the extent of the entity’s continuing involvement in the
asset. In that case, the entity also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability
are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Bank has retained. Continuing involvement
that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying amount
of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the entity could be required to repay.

Financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.
Where an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms,
or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a
derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference between the carrying value
of the original financial liability and the consideration paid is recognised in profit or loss.

(e) Determination of fair value

‘Fair value’ is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability (exit price) in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value for financial instruments traded
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in active markets at the statement of financial position date is based on their quoted market price. In case of all
other financial instruments not traded in an active market, the Bank and its subsidiary recognizes such unquoted
equity instruments at their cost price.

(f) Impairment

Loans & Advances: The Bank recognises impairment on loans and advances as the higher of the amount computed
as per the norms prescribed by the Regulator and amount determined as per paragraph 63 of NAS -39.

Under the norms prescribed by the Regulator, impairment is provisioned from 0.25% to 100% of the outstanding
balance depending on the categorization of the individual loans & advances. For assessment of impairment under
NAS 39, the Bank reviews its individually significant loans and advances at each statement of financial position date
against pre-determined criteria to assess whether an impairment loss should be recorded in the income statement.
The Bank has set the criteria of Significance for Individual Impairment as follows:

1. Top 50 Customers based on the amortized cost, outstanding as at year end date
2. The loans those are overdue for more than 180 days as at year end date.

In particular, management judgment is required in the estimation of the amount and timing of future cash flows
when determining the impairment loss. These estimates are based on assumptions about a number of factors and
actual results may differ, resulting in future changes to the allowance. All individually not significant loans and
advances and those significant loans & advances not individually impaired are assessed collectively, in groups of
assets with similar product nature (viz. Home Loan, Hire Purchase Loan, Short Term Loan, Term Loan and Personal
Loan), to determine whether impairment need to be recognized due to incurred loss events for which there is
objective evidence but whose effects are not yet evident. The collective assessment takes account of data from the
loan portfolio (such as levels of arrears, credit utilization, loan to collateral ratios, etc.), and judgments to the effect
of concentrations of risks and economic data (including levels of unemployment, real estate prices indices, country
risk and the performance of different individual groups).

Financial investments at FVOCI: For these financial investments, the entity assesses at each reporting date whether
there is objective evidence that an investment is impaired. The entity assesses individually whether there is objective
evidence of impairment based on the same criteria as financial assets carried at amortised cost.

In the case of equity investments, objective evidence would also include a ‘significant’ or ‘prolonged’ decline in the
fair value of the investment below its cost. Where there is evidence of impairment, the cumulative loss measured
as the difference between the acquisition cost and the current fair value, less any impairment loss on that investment
previously recognized in the income statement is removed from equity and recognized in the income statement.
Impairment losses on equity investments are not reversed through the income statement; increases in the fair value
after impairment are recognized in other comprehensive income.

3.5 Trading Assets

Trading assets are those assets that the Bank and its subsidiary acquires principally for the purpose of selling in the
near term, or holds as part of a portfolio that is managed together for short-term profit. The other trading asset includes
non derivative financial assets. It includes Government bonds, NRB Bonds, Domestic Corporate bonds, Treasury bills,
Equities etc held primarily for the trading purpose.

3.6 Derivative assets and derivative liabilities

Derivatives are financial instruments that derive their value in response to changes in interest rates, financial instrument
prices, foreign exchange rates. Derivatives are categorized as trading unless they are designated as hedging instruments.

Derivative instruments-both assets as well as liabilities; like interest rate swap, currency swap, forward foreign exchange
contract etc. held for trading as well as risk management purposes are presented under this head.

3.7 Property and Equipment
(a) Recognition and measurement

Property & Equipment are recognized if it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the asset will
flow to the entity and the cost of the asset can be measured reliably in accordance with NAS 16 on Property, Plant
& Equipment. Initially property and equipment are measured at cost.
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3.9

(b) Cost Model

Property and equipment (including equipment under operating leases where the Bank and its subsidiary is the
lessor) is stated at cost excluding the costs of day-to—day servicing, less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment in value. Changes in the expected useful life are accounted for by changing the amortisation period
or method, as appropriate, and treated as changes in accounting estimates.

(c) Subsequent Cost

These are costs that are recognised in the carrying amount of an item, if it is probable that the future economic
benefits embodied within that part will flow to the entity and it can be reliably measured.

(d) Depreciation

Depreciation is calculated using the diminishing balance method to write down the cost of property and equipment
using the rates stipulated as follows. Land is not depreciated.

e Buildings 5%

e Computer Hardware 20%
® Machinery and Equipment 15%
e Motor Vehicle 15%
e  Furniture and Fittings- Wood 15%
® Furniture and Fittings- Metal 10%

(e) De-recognition

Property and equipment is derecognised on disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its
use. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is recognised in ‘Other operating income' in the income statement
in the year the asset is derecognised.

(f) Assets under Grant:

Where grant is received to compensate the cost of acquiring a depreciable asset fully or partially, the grant can be
either presented as deferred income or is deducted at arriving the carrying amount of the asset. The entity has
opted to present the grant as deferred income and therefore the asset has been shown in full purchase value.

Goodwill /Intangible assets

The Bank and its subsidiary’s intangible assets include the value of computer software. An intangible asset is recognised
only when its cost can be measured reliably and it is probable that the expected future economic benefits that are
attributable to it will flow to the entity. Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost.
The cost of intangible assets acquired in a business combination is their fair value as at the date of acquisition. Following
initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment
losses.

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to be either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite lives are
amortised over the useful economic life. The amortisation period and the amortisation method for an intangible asset
with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at each financial year-end. Changes in the expected useful life or the expected
pattern of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the asset are accounted for by changing the amortisation
period or method, as appropriate, and treated as changes in accounting estimates. The amortisation expense on
intangible assets with finite lives is recognised in the income statement in the expense category consistent with the
function of the intangible asset.

Amortisation is calculated using the straight-line method to write down the cost of intangible assets to their residual
values over their estimated useful lives. Computer software is amortised equally over the estimated useful life of five
years.

Investment Property

“Investment Property” is shown as a separate line item in the face of Statement of Financial Position as these assets
are assets of the bank from the date of repossession and are intended to dispose off from the legal process in due
course of time. They are recognized at fair value in the books. However, non-banking assets shown under investment
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property and which are taken over at the lower of fair value (Panchakrit Mulya) or total amount due from the borrower
as per guidelines issued by the Regulator is continued to be shown at the recorded value till the same is disposed.

3.10 Income Tax
(a) Current tax

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior years are measured at the amount expected to be recovered
from or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are
enacted or substantively enacted as at the reporting date.

(b) Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided on temporary differences at the statement of financial position date between the tax bases
of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes. Deferred tax liabilities are
recognised for all taxable temporary differences.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, carry forward of unused tax credits and
unused tax losses, to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilized.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each statement of financial position date and reduced
to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the
deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at each statement of financial
position date and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profit will allow the
deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences, except:

® Where the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or of an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting
profit nor taxable profit or loss

® |n respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, where the timing of the
reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences will
not reverse in the foreseeable future

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the
asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted at the statement of financial position date.

Current tax and deferred tax relating to items recognised directly in OCI are also recognised in OCI and not in the
income statement.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax
assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation
authority.

3.11 Deposits, debt securities issued and subordinated liabilities

Financial instruments issued by the Bank and its subsidiary, that are not designated at fair value through profit or loss,
are classified as liabilities under Deposits from Customers, Due to Bank and Financial Institutions, Borrowings, and other
Liabilities where the substance of the contractual arrangement results in the Bank and its subsidiary having an obligation
either to deliver cash or another financial asset to the holder, or to satisfy the obligation other than by the exchange of
a fixed amount of cash or another financial asset for a fixed number of own equity shares.

3.12 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Bank or its subsidiary has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result
of a past event and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle
the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. The expense relating to any
provision is presented in the income statement net of any reimbursement.Where the effect of the time value of money
is material, the amount of a provision is determined by discounting the anticipated future cash flows expected to be
required to settle the obligation at a pre-tax rate that reflects the risks specific to the liability.

Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.
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3.13 Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognised to the extent it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the bank and its subsidiary
and the revenue can be reliably measured. The following specific recognition criteria must also be met before revenue
is recognised.

(a) Interest income

For all financial instruments measured at amortized cost and financial instruments designated at fair value through
profit or loss, interest income or expense is recorded using the EIR, which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments or receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, where
appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial asset. The calculation takes into account all contractual
terms of the financial instrument (for example, prepayment options) and includes any fees or incremental costs that
are directly attributable to the instrument and are an integral part of the EIR, but not future credit losses.

Interest income on loans and advance: While recognizing loans and advances at amortized cost, the bank has
opted the carve out provided by ICAN for determining effective interest rate. As a result of this alternative treatment,
the bank hasn’t included the loan processing fees received by the bank while calculating the effective interest rate
to be used to amortize the loans and advances justifying that such fees and commission given their proportion are
immaterial to the total income from such loans and advances. The fees and commission are recognized as income
in the same period when loan is approved and the amount is received.

Interest Income on Staff Loans and advances: For measuring the staff loan and advances at fair value which is
provided below market rate of interest, base rate of past 13 months has been considered to be the market rate of
the loan. The difference between the loan outstanding and fair value of loan is treated as prepaid employee
expenditure. After initial measurement at fair value, the loan is amortized using the rate used to determine fair value.
And the prepaid employee expense is amortized as staff expense under NFRS throughout the period of the loan.

Interest Income of impaired assets

Once the recorded value of a financial asset or a group of similar financial assets has been reduced due to an
impairment loss, interest income shall be recognized using the interest rate used to discount the future cash flow
for the purpose of measuring the impairment loss. However, bank has used the alternative treatment as per carve-
out by applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset unless the financial asset
has been written off either partially or fully.

Suspension of Accrual of Interest Income in loans and advance

Based on the guideline issued by regulator (Nepal Rastra Bank), accrual of interest income on loans and advances
are suspended when any of the following criteria is satisfied.

a. Loans where there are reasonable doubt about the ultimate collectability of the principal or interest
b. Loans against which individual impairment as per NAS 39 or life time impairment as per NFRS 9 has been made

c. Loans where contractual payment of principal and/or interest are more than 3 months in arrear and where the
net realizable value of security is insufficient to cover payment of principal and accrued interest

d. Loans where contractual payments of principal and/or interest are more than 12 months in arrears, irrespective
of the net realizable value of collateral

e. Overdrafts and other short term facilities which haven’t been settled after the expiry of the loan and even not
renewed within 3 months of the expiry, and where the net realizable value of the security is insufficient to cover
payment of principal and accrued interest

f.  Overdraft and other short term facilities which haven’t been settled after the expiry of the loan and even not
renewed within 12 months of the expiry irrespective of the net realizable value of collateral

Where there is suspension of accrual of interest income, interest income is recognized on cash basis until there is
change in circumstances to resume the accrual of interest income. For, resuming accrual of interest income a period
of continued repayment of 12 months can be considered reasonable.

(b) Fee and commission income

The Bank earns fee and commission income from a diverse range of services it provides to its customers. Fee
income can be divided into the following two categories:
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e Fee income earned for services that are provided within the reporting period.
e Fees earned for provision of services over a period of time and accrue over that period.

In case of the first category of fees & commission earned, the Bank and its subsidiary recognises the income at
the time of receipt itself whereas in case of the latter category, the commission is deferred over the period of service.
However, if the transaction fees are not material, the Bank and its subsidiary recognises such fees in income
immediately.

Loan commitment fees for loans that are likely to be drawn down and other credit related fees are deferred (together
with any incremental costs) and recognised as an adjustment to the EIR on the loan. When it is unlikely that a loan
will be drawn down, the loan commitment fees are recognised over the commitment period on a straight-line basis.
However, such amount collectively tantamount to less than 1% of the total gross loan portfolio of the bank and the
cost of extraction tend to exceed the benefit from its use; hence on materiality ground, such costs is not considered
in the measurement of effective interest rate and accordingly, the coupon rate embedded in the instrument has
been considered to be the Effective Interest Rate for the instrument.

(c) Dividend income

Dividend income is recognized at an amount net of applicable final withholding tax when the entity’s right to receive
the payment is established.

(d) Net Trading Income

Net trading income includes gains and (losses) from changes in fair value, related capital gains/ losses, foreign
exchange trading gains/ (losses), interest income from trading assets and dividend from trading assets

(e) Net Income from other financial instrument at fair value through Profit or Loss

The bank and its subsidiary has not designated any investments as financial instrument at fair value through Profit
or Loss, income also has not been recognized under this head.

(f) Deferred Grant Income

Grants related to assets are presented as deferred grant income. Such deferred grant income is recognized as
income proportionately in the period in which such assets are consumed. For this determining the consumption
of asset, depreciation charged on such asset has been taken as basis.

3.14 Interest Expense

The Bank and its subsidiary recognizes the interest expenses on financial liabilities. The interest expenses are recognized
on accrual basis using the applicable interest rate.

Interest expenses include interest on deposits from customers, deposits from banks, debt securities issued, and other
interest bearing financial liabilities.

3.15 Employee Benefits

Employee benefits are compensation paid to employee for the services rendered. Such compensation are recognized
as expense when obligation to make payment arises.

(a) Defined Benefit Plan- Gratuity

Based on the Nepal Accounting Standard NAS19- Employee Benefits, the Bank has adopted the actuarial valuation
method for employee benefit liability. Actuarial valuation is carried out every year to ascertain the liability under
gratuity.

The liability recognized in the statement of financial position in respect of defined benefit plan is the present value
of the defined benefit obligation at the date of the statement of financial position less the fair value of plan assets,
together with adjustments for unrecognized actuarial gains or losses and past service costs. The defined benefit
obligation is calculated annually by independent actuaries using the projected unit credit method. The present value
of the defined benefit obligation is determined by discounting the estimated future cash outflows using interest rates
of high-quality corporate bonds that are denominated in the currency in which the benefits will be paid, and that
have terms to maturity approximating the terms of the related liability. The defined benefit plan liability is discounted
using rates equivalent to the market yields at the date of statement of financial position that are denominated in
the currency in which benefits will be paid, and that have a maturity approximating to the terms of the related pension
liability.
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Actuarial gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are charged
or credited to other comprehensive income. Interest cost, present service cost and past-service costs are recognized
in statement of profit or loss.

The principal assumptions, which have the most significant effects on the valuation, are the rate of discount, rate
of salary revision, rate of turnover at the selected age groups, rate of disability, death benefits and expenses.

The subsidiary is operating under a full scope management contract and hence long term liability with respect to
employee is not there.

(b) Long Term Paid Absences

Liability towards long term paid absences, accumulated and payable on separation from services of the bank under
Staff Service Bye-Laws, has been assessed using actuarial valuation method and Current service cost, Interest Cost
as well as the actuarial gain/(loss) has been charged to Income Statement. For leave accumulated in excess of
prescribed limit as per Staff Service Bye- Laws, actual amount is charged to income statement in the same year.

(c) Defined Contribution Plan - Employees' Provident Fund

Employees are eligible for Employees' Provident Fund Contributions in line with the respective Statutes and
Regulations. The Bank contributes at 10% with equal contribution from the employees.

(d) Staff Loans and Advances

Staff loans and advances are provided at below market rate of interest. Staff loan is measured at amortized cost
using the effective rate of interest. Effective rate of interest is determined at the average of base rate of past 13
months. Initially staff loans are measured at fair value using the effective interest rate and the difference in fair value
and staff loan is recognized as prepaid expense. Subsequently, interest income on loans and advance is recognized
using the effective interest rate and the prepaid expense is amortized throughout the life of loan as finance expense
under NFRS.

3.16 Leases

The determination of whether an arrangement is a lease or it contains a lease, is based on the substance of the
arrangement and requires an assessment of whether the fulfillment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of a
specific asset or assets and the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset.

Operating Leases

Bank/Subsidiary as a lessor: Leases where the entity does not transfer substantially all the risk and benefits of ownership
of the asset are classified as operating leases. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating operating leases are added to
the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised over the lease term on the same basis as rental income.
Contingent rents are recognized as revenue in the period in which they are earned.

Bank/Subsidiary as a lessee: In line with NAS 17, lease payments under an operating lease are recognized as an expense
on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Finance Leases

Assets leased to customers which transfer substantially all the risks and rewards associated with ownership other than
legal title, are classified as ‘Finance Leases’. Amounts receivable under finance leases are included under ‘Loans and
Receivables to Customers’ in the Statement of Financial Position after deduction of initial rentals received, unearned
lease income and the accumulated impairment losses. When assets are held subject to a finance lease, the present
value of the lease payments, discounted at the rate of interest implicit in the lease, is recognised as a receivable. The
difference between the total payments receivable under the lease and the present value of the receivable is recognised
as unearned finance income, which is allocated to accounting periods to reflect a constant periodic rate of return.

3.17 Foreign currency translation

All foreign currency transactions are converted to Nepalese Rupees (NPR) which is Bank and its subsidiary’s functional
& reporting currency, at the rates of exchange prevailing at the time the transactions are effected.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the close of the year are translated to Nepalese
Rupees using the spot foreign exchange rate as on that date and differences are taken to ‘Other operating income’ in
the Income Statement, being of non-trading nature. Non-monetary items in a foreign currency that are measured in
terms of historical cost are translated using the exchange rates as at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary
items in foreign currency measured at fair value are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value
is determined.
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Foreign exchange differences arising on the settlement or reporting of monetary items at rates different from those which
were initially recorded are dealt with in the Income Statement.

3.18 Financial Guarantee and Loan Commitment

The Bank may give financial guarantees in the ordinary course of business. The guarantees are initially recognised in
the financial statements (within ‘other liabilities’) at fair value. Subsequent to initial recognition, the Bank’s liability under
each guarantee is measured at the higher of the amount initially recognised less, when appropriate, cumulative
amortization recognised in the income statement, and the best estimate of expenditure required to settle any financial
obligation arising as a result of the guarantee. Any increase in the liability relating to financial guarantees is recorded
in the income statement as expense. The premium received is recognised in the income statement in ‘on a straight-
line basis over the life of the guarantee.

3.19 Share Capital and Reserves

Increment in Share Capital results with the issue of Right Share, Further Public Offers and Bonus Share. However,
proposed bonus shares are not shown as increment to share capital until approved by annual general meeting.

Dividends on ordinary shares

Dividends on ordinary shares are recognized as a liability and deducted from equity when they are approved by the
Bank’s shareholders. Interim dividends are deducted from equity when they are declared and no longer at the discretion
of the entity. Dividends for the year that are approved after the statement of financial position date are disclosed as an
event after the reporting date.

Statutory Reserves:

Statutory reserves represent the mandatory reserves maintained by the Bank/subsidiary as required by the Regulator
or under other applicable laws & regulations and are not available for distribution as dividend to the shareholders. This
includes general reserve, exchange fluctuation reserve, capital redemption reserve, interest capitalization reserves,
corporate social responsibility reserve, employee training reserve and other reserves as may be notified from time to
time.

Equity reserves:
1. Retained Earnings

Retained earnings represents the cumulative net earnings or profit available for distribution after accounting for
dividends and all mandatory reserves.

2. Regulatory Reserve

The Regulatory Reserve is mandated under directives issued by the Regulator for adjustment of specified differences
on account of initial period of adoption of NFRS in order to ensure a fair representation of financial statements. The
Reserve is required to be created by adjustment to Retained Earnings. The amount in Regulatory Reserve is not
allowed to be considered for Capital Adequacy purposes.

3. Other Reserves

Other reserves recorded in equity (other comprehensive income) on the Bank’s/subsidiary statement of financial
position include:

® ‘Fair Value Reserve’ comprises of changes in fair value of investments, net of deferred tax, recognized through
Other Comprehensive Income.

® Actuarial Reserve comprises of actuarial gains/losses of defined benefit plans as required by NAS 19- Employee
Benefits.
3.20 Earnings per share including diluted
The bank presents basic and diluted Earnings per Share (EPS) for its ordinary shares.

Basic earnings per share (EPS) is calculated by dividing the net profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity-holders
of Bank by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year.

Diluted Earnings per Share is determined by adjusting both the profit attributable to the ordinary equity holders and
the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding, for the effects of all dilutive potential ordinary shares if
any.
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There have been no transactions involving ordinary shares or potential ordinary shares between the reporting date and
the date of the completion of these financial statements which would require the restatement of EPS.

3.21 Segment reporting

A segment is a distinguishable component of the Bank that is engaged in providing services (Business Segments) or
in providing services within a particular economic environment (Geographical Segment) which is subject to risks and
rewards that are different from those of other segments.

In accordance with the Nepal Financial Reporting Standards NFRS 8 on ‘Segmental Reporting’, segmental information
is presented in respect of the Bank based on Bank management and internal reporting structure.

The Bank’s segmental reporting is based on the geographical operating segments.

Management monitors the operating results of its business units separately for the purpose of making decisions about
resource allocation and performance assessment. Segment performance is evaluated based on operating profit or loss
of respective segment.

3.22 Investment in Associates

The Bank’s investment in its associates, entities in which the Bank has significant influence, is accounted for using the
equity method. Significant influence is considered to exist where the bank has representation in the Board and participates
in policy making processes, including participation in decisions about dividends or other distribution. Under the equity
method, the investment in the associate is initially recognized at cost. The carrying amount of the investment is adjusted
to recognize changes in the Bank’s share of net assets of the associate since the acquisition date.

Due to the fact that associates are yet to adopt NFRS in preparing their financial statement, there is no uniformity in
the accounting policy adopted by the associates and the bank. Accordingly, as per the carve out issued by ICAN
investment in associates have been accounted at cost. However, equity method has been used for accounting of
investment in associates in preparing the consolidated financials. Accordingly share of income received from associates
recognized in standalone financial statements of the bank has been derecognized since share of net worth prior to
distribution is consolidated.

3.23 Rounding Off and Comparative Figures

The financial statements are presented in Nepalese figure, rounded off to the nearest rupee. Previous year figure have
been reclassified/ rearranged/ regrouped to facilitate their comparison, where necessary.
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4.1 Cash and cash equivalent

Cash and cash equivalent are total amount of cash-in-hand, balances with other bank and financial institutions, money at
call and short notice, and highly liquid financial assets with original maturities of three months or less from the acquisition
date that are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in their fair value, and are used by the licensed institution in the
management of its short term commitments. In addition to cash in hand and current balance with other BFls, placements
with original maturity of less than 3 months, outstanding at the reporting date and accrued interest receivable on such
placements has been categorized as cash and cash equivalent.

Group Bank
Particulars Asar 2076 Asar 2075 Asar 2076 Asar 2075
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.
Cash in Hand 2,194,566,293 2,194,556,298 1,716,614,874
Balance with B/Fls 1,124,274,914 1,124,274,914 1,924,653,557
Money at Call and Short Notice - - 500,039,726
Other 1,339,722,767 1,339,722,767 600,051,226
Total 4,658,563,974 4,658,553,979 4,741,359,383

4.2 Due from Nepal Rastra Bank

Due from NRB are cash balances held with NRB in local and foreign currency. The total balance with NRB is further classified
into balances held for statutory purpose(to maintain CRR) and free balances which is classified as other deposit and receivable
from NRB.

Group Bank
Particulars Asar 2076 Asar 2075 Asar 2076 Asar 2075
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.
Statutory balances with NRB 2,818,034,800 2,818,034,800 3,776,355,800
Securities purchased under resale agreement - - -
Other deposit and receivable from NRB 2,065,500,425 2,065,500,425  1,382,903,937
Total 4,883,535,225 4,883,535,225 5,159,259,737

4.3 Placements with Bank and Financial Instituitions

Placements with Bank and Financial Institutions are interest bearing balances held in local and foreign banks. Placements
are used as an instrument to manage liquid assets. Placements are held at amortized cost using effective interest rate.
Placement with original maturity of less than 3 months are considered to be highly liquid financial instruments and hence,
classified into cash and cash equivalents and not shown under placement.

Group Bank
. Asar 2076 Asar 2075 Asar 2076 Asar 2075
Particulars
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.
Placement with domestic B/Fls 1,431,927,193 1,431,927,193 -
Placement with foreign B/Fls 3,799,308,157 3,799,308,157  4,989,524,816
Less: Allowance for Impairment - - -
Total 5,231,235,350 5,231,235,350 4,989,524,816
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4.4 Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments include various hedging instruments like interest rate swap, currency swap, forward foreign
exchange contract etc. held for trading as well as risk management purposes. All proprietary deals are shown as held for
trading whereas those entered into on behalf of customers are shown as held for risk management.

Group Bank
Particulars Asar 2076 Asar 2075 Asar 2076 Asar 2075
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.
Held for trading
Interest rate swap - - -
Currency swap - - -
Forward exchange contract 52,925,200 52,925,200 33,444,999
Others - _
Held for risk management
Interest rate swap - - -
Currency swap - - ;
Forward exchange contract 74,220,074 74,220,074 -
Other - - -
Total 127,145,274 127,145,274 33,444,999

4.5 Other trading assets

Trading assets are those assets that the entity acquires principally for the purpose of selling in the near term, or holds as part
of a portfolio that is managed together for short-term profit. Other trading asset includes non derivative financial assets. It
includes Government bonds, NRB Bonds, Domestic Corporate bonds, Treasury bills, Equities etc held primarily for the trading
purpose. The bank holds no such assets.

Group Bank

Particulars Asar 2076 Asar 2075 Asar 2076 Asar 2075
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Teasury bills - - -
Government bonds - - -
NRB Bonds - - -
Domestic Corporate bonds - - -
Equities - - -
Other - - -
Total - 5 -

Pledged - - -
Non-pledged - - -

4.6 Loan and advances to B/Fls

Loans and advances to BFI are loans and advances provided to micro- financial institution as a part of deprived sector lending.
Loans and advances to BFI are short-term in nature. Such loans and advances are initially recognized at fair value and
subsequently amortized using the effective interest rate. For calculating effective interest rate initial loan documentation fees
hasn't been taken into consideration since its impact is immaterial.

Impairment provided is the amount of Loan Loss Provision (higher of amount derived based on LLP norms as prescribed
by the regulator and the amount of impairment calculated based on NAS 39) as mandated by the Carve-out provided by
ICAN.
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Group

Bank

Particulars

Asar 2076
Rs.

Asar 2075
Rs.

Asar 2076
Rs.

Asar 2075
Rs.

Loans to microfinance institutions

4,820,831,795

4,820,831,795

3,722,373,307

Other 527,324 527,324 -

Less: Allowances for impairment (48,606,402) (48,606,402) (37,154,322)

Total 4,772,752,717 4,772,752,717 3,685,218,985
Loan and advances to B/FIs have been measured at amortized cost. The detail break-up of the same has been provided
below:

Loans and advances (Principal) 4,808,435,098 4,808,435,098 3,715,432,214

Add: Accrued Interest 12,924,020 12,924,020 6,941,093

Total Amortized Cost

4,821,359,119

4,821,359,119

3,722,373,307

*Based on NAS 39, Loans and advances to banks and financial institutions are individually tested for impairment. No any
specific impairment has arisen for the year and the previous years. Further, there is no figure for collective impairment for
loans and advances to BFls as no historical loss ratio exists for such loans and advances.

4.6.1: Allowances for impairment

Group Bank
Particulars Asar 2076 Asar 2075 Asar 2076 Asar 2075
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Balance at Sawan 1 (87,154,322) (87,154,322) (33,570,260)
Impairment loss for the year:

Charge for the year (42,606,402) (42,606,402) (32,746,734)

Recoveries/(reversal) 31,154,322 31,154,322 29,162,672
Amount written off - - -
Balance at Asar end (48,606,402) (48,606,402) (37,154,322)

4.7 Loans and advances to customers

Loans and advances extended to the customers and staffs other than loan which has been classified as loan to BFls as well
as bills purchased and discounted less the amount of impairment allowances and prepaid staff expense have been presented
as loans and advances to customers. Loans and advances are classified as financial instrument held at amortized cost having
floating rate of interest. So, initially loans and advances are measured at fair value then amortized using the effective interest
rate. For calculating effective interest rate initial loan documentation fees hasn't been taken into consideration since its impact
is immaterial.

Staff loans and Advances are provided at below market rate of interest, hence to initially measure them at fair value the total
cash flow from such loans and advances are discounted to present value by using the average base rate of past 13 months
as discount rate. The difference between the fair value of staff loans and advances and the loan amount disbursed has been
recognized as deferred employee benefits and amortized throughout the loan period.

Group Bank
Particulars Asar 2076 Asar 2075 Asar 2076 Asar 2075
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.
Loan and advances measured at amortized cost 94,708,968,682 94,708,968,682 84,364,473,983

Less: Impairment allowances
Collective impairment
Individual impairment

Net amount
Loan and advances measured at FVTPL
Total

(1,023,223,669)
(988,426,653)

92,697,318,360

92,697,318,360

(1,023,223,669)
(988,426,653)

92,697,318,360

92,697,318,360

(917,968,864)
(971,511,439)

82,474,993,680

82,474,993,680
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4.7.1: Analysis of loan and advances - By Product

The bank offers a variety of loan products to clients. The bank assesses the requirement of the borrower in terms of amount
and nature and then records loan under appropriate product category. Product wise loan break up is as follows.

Group

Bank

Particulars

Asar 2076
Rs.

Asar 2075
Rs.

Asar 2076
Rs.

Asar 2075
Rs.

Product
Term loans
Overdraft
Trust receipt/Import loans
Demand and other working capital loans
Personal residential loans
Real estate loans
Margin lending loans
Hire purchase loans
Deprived sector loans
Bills purchased
Staff loans
Other

Sub total
Interest receivable

Grand total

16,738,671,961
8,476,020,784
13,384,670,534
33,287,891,943
4,257,821,340
3,752,914,054
1,505,654,965
7,524,061,323
325,805,168
91,535,955
602,465,940
4,052,822,050

94,000,336,016
708,632,666
94,708,968,682

16,738,671,961
8,476,020,784
13,384,670,534
33,287,891,943
4,257,821,340
3,752,914,054
1,505,654,965
7,524,061,323
325,805,168
91,535,955
602,465,940
4,052,822,050

94,000,336,016
708,632,666
94,708,968,682

4.7.2: Analysis of loan and advances - By Currency

14,262,979,714
8,407,923,810
14,143,814,267
26,522,607,304
4,494,038,687
3,807,106,896
1,344,048,443
6,506,662,052
425,738,869
66,073,499
558,880,033
3,150,220,358

83,690,093,933
674,380,050
84,364,473,983

In addition to NPR, the bank also offers loan on other currencies within the regulatory framework. The detail is as follows.

Group Bank
Particulars Asar 2076 Asar 2075 Asar 2076 Asar 2075
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.
Nepalese rupee 87,040,353,218 87,040,353,218  78,276,113,108
Indian rupee 6,807,037 6,807,037 29,468,151
United State dollar 7,652,856,455 7,652,856,455 6,050,159,555
Great Britain pound 8,830,433 8,830,433 8,716,604
Euro 104,839 104,839 -
Japenese yen - - -
Chinese yuan - - -
Other 16,700 16,700 16,566
Total 94,708,968,682 94,708,968,682 84,364,473,983

4.7.3: Analysis of loan and advances - By Collateral

All loan and advances are backed by some form of collateral. The bank has an authority matrix wherein authority to approve
loans vis-a-vis collateral requirement is stated for various levels of authority. Loan categorization on the basis of type of

collateral is as follows.
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Group Bank
Particulars Asar 2076 Asar 2075 Asar 2076 Asar 2075
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.
Secured
Movable/immovable assets 92,090,948,009 92,090,948,009 81,916,000,431
Gold and silver - - -
Guarantee of domestic B/Fls - - -
Government guarantee - - -
Guarantee of international rated bank 184,819,240 184,819,240 38,670,059
Collateral of export document 342,260 342,260 237,421
Collateral of fixed deposit receipt 761,060,748 761,060,748 668,632,851
Collateral of Governement securities - - -
Counter guarantee 10,527,324 10,527,324 269,536,626
Personal guarantee - - 6,104,348
Other collateral 1,661,271,101 1,661,271,101 1,465,292,248
Sub total 94,708,968,682 94,708,968,682 84,364,473,983
Unsecured - - -
Grand total 94,708,968,682 94,708,968,682 84,364,473,983

4.7.4: Allowances for impairment
Allowance for impairment has been charged as the higher of the impairment as per NRB Directives and impairment as per
Nepal Financial Reporting Standard.

The total impairment as per NRB Directive is higher than the total impairment as per NFRS. Impairment as per both guidelines
has been disclosed below.

Group Bank
Particulars Asar 2076 Asar 2075 Asar 2076 Asar 2075
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Specific allowances for impairment
Balance at Sawan 1 971,511,439 971,511,439 417,628,412
Impairment loss for the year:

Charge for the year 138,154,752 138,154,752 797,483,701

Recoveries/(reversal) during the year (121,239,538) (121,239,538) (243,600,674)
Write-offs - - -
Exchange rate variance on foreign currency - - -
impairment
Other movement - - -
Balance at Asar end 988,426,653 988,426,653 971,511,439
Collective allowances for impairment
Balance at Sawan 1 917,968,864 917,968,864 795,518,918
Impairment loss for the year: -

Charge/(reversal) for the year 105,254,805 105,254,805 122,449,946
Exchange rate variance on foreign currency - - -
impairment
Other movement - - -
Balance at Asar end 1,023,223,669 1,023,223,669 917,968,864

Total allowances for impairment

2,011,650,322

2,011,650,322

1,889,480,303
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Collective allowance for impairment is the total impairment for loans and advances categorized as pass and watchlist under
NRB directives whereas specific allowance for impairment is total impairment for loans and advances classified as restructured,
substandard, doubtful and loss.

Allowances for impairment based on NAS 39 using Incurred Loss Model

Group Bank
Particulars Asar 2076 Asar 2075 Asar 2076 Asar 2075
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.
Specific allowances for impairment
Balance at Sawan 1 590,100,860 590,100,860 396,766,582
Impairment loss for the year:

Charge for the year 281,391,062 281,391,062 193,334,278

Recoveries/(reversal) during the year - - -
Write-offs - - -
Exchange rate variance on foreign currency impairment - - -
Other movement - - -
Balance at Asar end 871,491,921 871,491,921 590,100,860
Collective allowances for impairment
Balance at Sawan 1 145,262,546 145,262,546 204,617,011
Impairment loss for the year:

Charge/(reversal) for the year (23,388,353) (23,388,353) (59,354,465)
Exchange rate variance on foreign currency impairment - - -
Other movement - - -
Balance at Asar end 121,874,193 121,874,193 145,262,546
Total allowances for impairment 993,366,114 993,366,114 735,363,406

4.8 Investment securities

As a part of strategic management of assets and for meeting various regulatory and other legal requirements, investments
are made in different equity and debt instruments. Investments are categorized as investment measured at amortized cost
and investment measured at fair value through other comprehensive income. Debt securities are classified as investment
measured at amortized cost and equity investments where the holding ratio is less than 20% and aren't recognized as
associates are measured at fair value through other comprehensive income.

In the schedule 4.8.1 Debt Securities represents the investments in foreign bonds. Foreign bonds are measured at amortized
cost using effective interest rate. Effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or
receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the net carrying amount
of the financial asset or financial liability. For the purpose of calculating effective interest rate premium or discount paid on
such bond has been considered.

Fair value of investment at fair value through OCI are valued using the fair value hierarchy as disclosed in notes 2.4 (b)

Group Bank
Particulars Asar 2076 Asar 2075 Asar 2076 Asar 2075
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.
Investment securities measured at amortized cost  16,418,996,469 16,418,996,469 11,579,736,432
Investment in equity measured at FVTOCI 47,205,440 47,205,440 74,435,378
Total 16,466,201,909 16,466,201,909 11,654,171,810

27th Annual Report | 67



HBL

#Himalayan Bank Ltd.

4.8.1: Investment securities measured at amortized cost

Group Bank

Particulars

Asar 2076
Rs.

Asar 2075 Asar 2076
Rs. Rs.

Asar 2075
Rs.

Debt securities

Government bonds

Government treasury bills

Nepal Rastra Bank bonds

Nepal Rastra Bank deposits instruments
Other

Less: specific allowances for impairment

Total

1,056,581,788
6,287,884,146
9,074,530,535

16,418,996,469

1,056,581,788
6,287,884,146
9,074,530,535

16,418,996,469

1,278,304,716
5,372,251,441
4,929,180,275

11,579,736,432

4.8.2: Investment in equity measured at fair value through other comprehensive income

Group Bank
Particulars Asar 2076 Asar 2075 Asar 2076 Asar 2075
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.
Equity instruments
Quoted equity securities 40,867,281 40,867,281 68,097,219
Unquoted equity securities 6,338,159 6,338,159 6,338,159
Total 47,205,440 47,205,440 74,435,378

4.8.3: Information relating to investment in equities

Investment in quoted equities are measured at fair value using the closing market price of such equity at the reporting date.
For the purpose of valuating shares of Grameen Bikas Laghubitta Bittiya Sansthan Ltd. which are promoter shares, 60% of
the market price of the public share of that institution has been considered since the bank holds promoter share in the entity.

Investment in unquoted equities has been valued at their cost

Further, the Bank possess 5,860 Class C shares of VISA Card International and 7,320 Class B shares of Master Card
International, which has not been recognized in the books as the shares do not have any carrying cost. Also, the shares are
not tradable & hence the fair value of such shares are not available to account for them at fair value.

Group Bank
Particulars Asar 2076 Asar 2075 Asar 2076 Asar 2075
Rs. Rs. Rs.
Fair Value ' Cost Fair Value Cost  Fair Value Cost Fair Value

Investment in quoted equity
Grameen Bikas Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd.
143,994 shares of Rs. 100 each

Siddhartha Equity Fund
967,748 shares of Rs. 10 each

VISA Card International
5860 Common Stock of C Class

Mastercard Worldwide
7302 Common Stock of B Class

7,799,800 31,102,704

9,677,480 9,764,577

Total 17,477,280 40,867,281

7,799,800 31,102,704 3,000,000 58,845,548

9,677,480 9,764,577 9,677,480 9,251,671

17,477,280 40,867,281 12,677,480 68,097,219
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Investment in unquoted equity

Swift SC
6 shares

Credit Information Center Limited
132,651 shares of Rs. 100 each

Nepal Clearing House Limited
30,000 shares of Rs. 100 each

National Banking Institute Limited
12,000 shares of Rs. 100 each

Total

4.9 Current tax assets

1,214,859 1,214,859

1,423,300 1,423,300

2,500,000 2,500,000

1,200,000 1,200,000

6,338,159 6,338,159

1,214,859 1,214,859 1,214,859| 1,214,859

1,423,300 1,423,300 1,423,300 1,423,300

2,500,000 2,500,000 2,500,000 2,500,000

1,200,000 1,200,000 1,200,000/ 1,200,000

6,338,159 6,338,159 6,338,159 6,338,159

The bank being a financial institution is subject to income tax at 30%. Taxable income is separately determined in line with
the provisions of Income Tax Act 2058 and is generally different from accounting profit. Tax liability on such taxable income
is shown as current tax liability. Further, additional tax liability may arise on re-assessment of tax liability by tax authorities in

subsequent years. Any such additional liability is charged to income statement in the year of re assessment.

The bank is required to pay income tax in advance and the same is retained as advance and not set off against liability until
such time the tax liability is determined/ confirmed by the tax authorities and duly accepted by the bank. The current position
of advance tax and provision made for taxes is shown below.

Group Bank
Particulars Asar 2076 Asar 2075 Asar 2076 Asar 2075
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.
Current tax assets
Current year income tax assets 6,566,872,091 6,564,117,563 5,301,354,696
Tax assets of prior periods 6,064,553 6,064,553 2,571,952
6,572,936,644 6,570,182,116 5,303,926,648

Current tax liabilities

Current year income tax liabilities

Tax liabilities of prior periods

Total Current Tax Assets

4.10 Investment in subsidiaries

An entity over which the bank holds controlling interest shall be recognized as subsidiary. The bank has established a wholly
owned subsidiary namely Himalayan Capital Limited for carrying out merchant banking activities.

6,341,427,283
6,064,553

6,347,491,836
225,444,808

6,339,170,531
6,064,553

6,345,235,084
224,947,032

5,147,047,090
2,571,952

5,149,619,042
154,307,606

Bank
Particulars Asar 2076 Asar 2075
Rs. Rs.
Investment in quoted subsidiaries - -
Investment in unquoted subsidiaries 200,000,000 -
Total investment 200,000,000 -
Less: Impairment allowances - -
Net carrying amount 200,000,000 -
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4.10.1: Investment in quoted subsidiaries

Bank
Particulars Asar 2076 Asar 2075
Cost Fair Value Cost Fair Value
........................................... Ltd. - - - -
............ shares of Rs. ........... each
........................................... Ltd.
............ shares of Rs. ........... each i i i i
Total - - - R
4.10.2: Investment in unquoted subsidiaries
Bank
Particulars Asar 2076 Asar 2075
Cost Fair Value Cost Fair Value
Himalayan Capital Ltd. 200,000,000 = - -
2,000,000 shares of Rs. 100 each
Total 200,000,000 - - -
4.10.3: Information relating to subsidiaries of the Bank
Bank
Percentage of ownership held by the bank
Particulars Asar 2076 Asar 2075
Himalayan Capital Ltd. 100 %

4.11 Investment in associates

The bank has investment in both quoted and unquoted share of different associates. Associates are those entities in which
the bank has significant influence but not control over the financial and operating policies. An entity is generally deemed to
have significant influence over another entity if it holds 20% - 50% ownership of the entity. An entity can still be an associate
even if holds less than 20% of the share capital if there are other circumstances that suggest significant influence. Investments
given below has been classified as investment in associate although holding in such entity are less than 20% because
Himalayan Bank has representation in the Board of Directors of the entity which is deemed to be having significant influence.
The bank has accounted investment in associates using equity method for preparing its consolidated financial statements.

Group Bank
Particulars Asar 2076 Asar 2075 Asar 2076 Asar 2075
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.
Investment in quoted associates 1,088,073,988 97,661,700 97,661,700
Investment in unquoted associates 16,591,856 98,124,000 98,124,000
Total investment 1,104,665,844 195,785,700 195,785,700
Less: Impairment allowances - - -
Net carrying amount 1,104,665,844 195,785,700 195,785,700
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4.11.1: Investment in quoted associates

Group Bank
Particulars Asar 2076 Asar 2075 Asar 2076 Asar 2075
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Cost Fair Value = Cost | Fair Value Cost Fair Value Cost Fair Value
RMDC Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd. 48,000,000/ 222,890,816 48,000,000 - 48,000,000 -
737,906 shares of Rs. 100 each
Nirdhan Utthan Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd. 12,793,300 316,637,488 12,793,300 - 12,793,300 -
1,346,790 shares of Rs.100 each"
Chhimek Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd. 24,377,900 337,727,821 24,377,900 - 24,377,900 -
1,413,995 shares of Rs. 100 each
Swabalamban Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd. 12,490,500 210,817,863 12,490,500 - 12,490,500 -
756,035 shares of Rs. 100 each"
Total 97,661,700 1,088,073,988 97,661,700 - 97,661,700 -

4.11.2: Investment in unquoted associates

Group Bank
Particulars Asar 2076 Asar 2075 Asar 2076 Asar 2075
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.
Cost Fair Value Cost Fair Value Cost Fair Value Cost  |Fair Value
Smart Choice Technologies Ltd. 98,124,000 16,591,856 98,124,000 - 98,124,000 -
230,880 shares of Rs. 100 each
Total 98,124,000 16,591,856 98,124,000 - 98,124,000 -

4.11.3: Information relating to associates of the Bank

Percentage of ownership Percentage of ownership
held by the Group held by the Bank
Particulars Asar 2076 Asar 2075 Asar 2076 Asar 2075
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.
RMDC Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd. 9.23% 9.23% 9.23%
Nirdhan Utthan Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd. 11.22% 11.22% 11.22%
Chhimek Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd. 11.98% 11.98% 11.98%
Swabalamban Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd. 12.02% 12.02% 12.02%
Smart Choice Technologies Limited 9.23% 9.23% 20.00%
4.11.4: Equity value of associates
Group
Particulars Asar 2076 Asar 2075
Rs. Rs.
RMDC Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd. 222,890,816 -
Nirdhan Utthan Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd. 316,637,488 -
Chhimek Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd. 337,727,821 -
Swabalamban Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd. 210,817,863 -
Smart Choice Technologies Limited 16,591,856 -
Total 1,104,665,844 -
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As this is the first year that the bank has prepared consolidated financials, the excess of net worth over the cost of the
investment in associates has been recognized in opening retained earning where as the differential net worth pertaining to
current year has been absorbed in current year consolidated profit and loss. The net worth of the associates has been
computed on the basis of information available from the unaudited financials on the date of preparation of financial statements.

Proportionate

Addition

Charged

Associate Cost Net Book |Difference to opening to profit Total
Value reserve | and loss
RMDC Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd. 48,000,000 222,890,816 174,890,816 150,239,953 24,650,863 174,890,816
Nirdhan Utthan Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd. 12,793,300 316,637,488 | 303,844,188 243,317,778 60,526,410 303,844,188
Chhimek Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd.| 24,377,900 337,727,821 313,349,921 227,014,649 86,335,272 313,349,921
Swabalamban Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd. 12,490,500 210,817,863 | 198,327,363 | 153,585,614 44,741,749 198,327,363
Smart Choice Technologies Limited 98,124,000 16,591,856 | (81,532,144) | (74,550,312) (6,981,832) (81,532,144)
Total 195,785,700 1,104,665,844 908,880,144 699,607,682 209,272,461 908,880,144

4.12 Investment properties

The asset pledged as collateral which has been taken over by the bank while settling its bad loans are non banking assets
and have been categorized as investment properties. Investment properties are generally measured at fair value. The initial
takeover value of the investment properties is lower of Panchakrit Mulya and total dues which is determined as per the NRB
guidelines. The same value has been considered as the fair value of such asset. The bank doesn't intend to hold such asset

for long term.

Group

Bank

Particulars

Asar 2076
Rs. Rs.

Asar 2075

Asar 2076

Asar 2075

Rs. Rs.

Investment properties measured at fair value

Balance as on Sawan 1, 2075
Addition/disposal during the year

Net changes in fair value during the year

Adjustment/transfer

Net amount

Investment properties measured at cost

Balance as on Sawan 1, 2075
Addition/disposal during the year

Adjustment/transfer

Accumulated depreciation
Accumulated impairment loss

Net amount
Total

2,299,307
106,835,406

109,134,713

109,134,713

2,299,307
106,835,406

109,134,713

109,134,713

233,378,063
(231,078,756)

2,299,307

2,299,307
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Assets received under grant

The bank has received grant from SAKCHYAM NEPAL, under SAKCHYAM NEPAL ACCESS TO FINANCE project in the form
of reimbursement of cost of establishing a branch in remote areas. The project aims to work with the public and private sector
to leverage access and facilitate financial sector development in Nepal for small and medium enterprises (SMEs) and for poor
people. The accounting policy adopted for the recognition of such grant asset has been disclosed in the accounting policies
of the bank in note 3.7 (F). The detail accounting of the assets under grant for the year is as follows.

Particulars Cost of |Depreciation| Remaining Grant Depreciation Deferred
asset on such Book Value | Received |charged and Income

asset of such taken to

asset income

31.84% of BV of FA and Leasehold
development cost of Kumakha
Branch provided as grant income

by Sakchyam 2,969,691 137,340 2,832,351 945,550 43,729 901,821
31.84% of BV of FA and Leasehold

development cost of Chededaha
Branch provided as grant income

by Sakchyam 1,262,306 46,739 1,215,567 401,918 14,882 387,037
Total 4,231,997 184,079 4,047,919 1,347,468 58,611 1,288,857
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4.14 Goodwill and Intangible Assets

The entity’s intangible assets include the value of computer software. Such assets are accounted using the policy of the bank
as disclosed in notes 3.8.

Goodwill arises during the purchase of another entity or during the consolidation with the subsidiary. It is the excess of value
of asset received over the value of cost incurred to purchase the asset. Bank doesn’t have any such goodwill.

Group

Software
Goodwill Other

Particulars Total Asar end

Purchased

Developed

Cost:

As on Sawan 1, 2074

Addition during the Year
Acquisition
Capitalization

Disposal during the year

Adjustment/Revaluation

Balance as on Asar end 2075

Addition during the Year
Acquisition
Capitalization
Disposal during the year
Adjustment/Revaluation
Balance as on Asar end 2076
Amortization and Impairment

As on Sawan 1, 2074
Amortization charge for the Year
Impairment for the year
Disposals

Adjustment

Balance as on Asar end 2075

Amortization charge for the Year
Impairment for the year
Disposals

Adjustment

Balance as on Asar end 2076
Net book value:

Balance as on Asar end 2074
Balance as on Asar end 2075

Balance as on Asar end 2076

597,518,877

66,209,101

663,727,978

511,666,189
34,384,442

546,050,631

85,852,688
117,677,347

597,518,877

66,209,101

663,727,978

511,666,189
34,384,442

546,050,631

85,852,688
117,677,347
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Bank
Software
Particulars Gooduwill Other Total Asar end
Purchased Developed

Cost:
As on Sawan 1, 2074 - 552,208,521 - 552,208,521
Addition during the Year

Acquisition - 45,310,356 - 45,310,356

Capitalization - - - -
Disposal during the year - - - -
Adjustment/Revaluation - - - -
Balance as on Asar end 2075 - 597,518,877 - 597,518,877
Addition during the Year

Acquisition - 66,209,101 - 66,209,101

Capitalization - - - -
Disposal during the year - - - -
Adjustment/Revaluation - - - -
Balance as on Asar end 2076 - 663,727,978 - 663,727,978
Amortization and Impairment
As on Sawan 1, 2074 - 476,182,713 - 476,182,713
Amortization charge for the Year - 35,483,476 - 35,483,476
Impairment for the year - - - -
Disposals - - - -
Adjustment - - - -
Balance as on Asar end 2075 - 511,666,189 - 511,666,189
Amortization charge for the Year - 34,384,442 - 34,384,442
Impairment for the year - - - -
Disposals - - - -
Adjustment - - - -
Balance as on Asar end 2076 - 546,050,631 - 546,050,631
Net book value:
Balance as on Asar end 2074 - 76,025,808 - 76,025,808
Balance as on Asar end 2075 - 85,852,688 - 85,852,688
Balance as on Asar end 2076 - 117,677,347 - 117,677,347
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4.15 Deffered Tax

Deferred tax is provided on temporary differences at the statement of financial position date between the tax bases of assets
and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes. Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable
temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, carry forward of unused tax
credits and unused tax losses, to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible

temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilized.

Group Bank
Asar 2076 Asar 2076
Particulars Deferred | Deferred Tax Net Deferred Deferred Deferred Tax Net Deferred
Tax Assets Liabilities Tax Tax Assets Liabilities Tax
Assets/ Assets/
(Liabilities) (Liabilities)

Deferred tax on temporary
differences on following items
Loan and Advance to B/Fls - (891,086) (891,086) - (891,086) (891,086)
Loans and advances to customers - 1(178,846,382)  (178,846,382) - (178,846,382) (178,846,382)
Investment properties - - - - - -
Investment securities 297,583 (7,017,000) (6,719,417) 297,583 (7,017,000) (6,719,417)
Property & equipment - (2,556,086) (2,556,086) - (2,505,441) (2,505,441)
Employees' defined benefit plan 81,740,253 - 81,740,253 81,740,253 - 81,740,253
Lease liabilities 8,378,277 - 8,378,277 8,378,277 - 8,378,277
Provisions - - - - - -
Other temporary differences - - - - - -
Deferred tax on temporary 90,416,113 (189,310,554) (98,894,441) 90,416,113 (189,259,909) (98,843,796)
differences
Deferred tax on carry forward of - - - - - -
unused tax losses
Deferred tax due to changes in - - (98,894,441) - - (98,843,796)

tax rate

Net Deferred tax asset/(liabilities)
as on year end of Asar 2076

Deferred tax (asset)/liabilities as
on Sawan 1, 2075

Origination/(Reversal) during
the year

Deferred tax expense/(income)
recognised in profit or loss

Deferred tax expense/(income)
recognised in other
comprehensive income

Deferred tax expense/(income)
recognised in directly in equity

(131,264,033)

32,369,592

22,760,671

9,608,921

(131,264,033)

32,420,237

22,811,316

9,608,921

Continue
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Group Bank
Asar 2075 Asar 2075
Particulars Deferred | Deferred Tax Net Deferred Deferred  Deferred Tax Net Deferred
Tax Assets | Liabilities Tax Tax Assets = Liabilities Tax
Assets/ Assets/
(Liabilities) (Liabilities)

Deferred tax on temporary
differences on following items
Loan and Advance to B/Fls - (891,086) (891,086)
Loans and advances to customers - 1(178,846,382) (178,846,382)
Investment properties - - -
Investment securities 310,944 @ (16,625,922) (16,314,978)
Property & equipment - (8,809,758) (8,809,758)
Employees' defined benefit plan 73,598,171 - 73,598,171

Lease liabilities - - R
Provisions - - -
Other temporary differences - - -

Deferred tax on temporary 73,909,115 (205,173,148) (131,264,033)
differences

Deferred tax on carry forward of - - -
unused tax losses

Deferred tax due to changes in tax - - -
rate

Net Deferred tax asset/(liabilities) -
as on year end of Asar 2075

(131,264,033)

Deferred tax (asset)/liabilities as on - -| (123,265,472)
Sawan 1, 2074

Origination/(Reversal) during the - - 7,998,561
year

Deferred tax expense/(income) - - 11,956,544

recognised in profit or loss

Deferred tax expense/(income) - - (8,957,983)
recognised in other
comprehensive income

Deferred tax expense/(income) - -
recognised in directly in equity
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4.16 Other assets

Other Assets include tangible and intangible assets that hasn’t been classified above. It consists primarily of accounts
receivable, bills receivable, prepayments and other accrued income.

Assets held for sale are the assets that the bank intends to sell and is actively involved in finding the prospectus buyer at

the present condition of the assets.

Other non- banking assets are assets taken over by bank while settling its bad loans other than land and building. Such land
and buildings are categorized as investment properties.

Income tax deposits are deposits made by the bank for disputed income taxes which are under administrative review.

Deferred employee expenditure are prepaid employee expenses recognized while recognizing staff loans and advances at

fair value.
Group Bank
Particulars Asar 2076 Asar 2075 Asar 2076 Asar 2075
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.
Assets held for sale - - -
Other non banking assets - - -
Bills receivable - - -
Accounts receivable 212,811,808 213,388,183 327,841,588
Accrued income - - -
Prepayments and deposit 95,826,531 95,825,260 78,155,834
Income tax deposit 101,489,000 101,489,000 68,365,933
Deferred employee expenditure 569,784,214 569,784,214 477,530,067
Other 94,537,655 94,537,655 111,511,979
Total 1,074,449,208 1,075,024,312 1,063,405,401

Provision against account receivable is made where the regulator so requires or where the management is doubtful regarding
recovery of the receivables. The provision includes Rs. 497.2 Mil made for amount receivable from Max Money SDN, Malaysia

fully provided as required by the regulator.

Break up of Accounts Receivable
Accounts Receivable

Provision against accounts receivable
Net Accounts Receivable

804,777,458
(591,965,650)
212,811,808

4.17 Due to Bank and Financial Institutions

805,353,833
(591,965,650)
213,388,183

Due to BFl include deposits from A, B, C and D class financial institutions and interbank bank borrowings. Further accounts
operated by A, B, C and D class institution for settlement and clearing purpose has been categorized as settlement and
clearing accounts. They are accounted at amortized cost using effective interest rate.

Group Bank
Particulars Asar 2076 Asar 2075 Asar 2076 Asar 2075
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.
Money market deposits - -
Interbank borrowing - - -
Other deposits from BFls 3,472,102,792 3,472,102,792 570,430,497
Settlement and clearing accounts 230,813,554 230,813,554 183,823,460
Other deposits from BFls - - -
Total 3,702,916,346 3,702,916,346 754,253,957
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4.18 Due to Nepal Rastra Bank

Amount Payable to NRB for refinancing, standing liquidity facility, lender of last resort facility, securities sold under repurchase
agreement and any other payable to NRB has been included as due to NRB. Due to NRB are accounted at amortized cost
using effective interest rate.

Group Bank
Particulars Asar 2076 Asar 2075 Asar 2076 Asar 2075
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.
Refinance from NRB 560,812,042 560,812,042 -
Standing Liquidity Facility - - -
Lender of last resort facility from NRB - - -
Securities sold under repurchase agreements - - -
Other payable to NRB - - -
Total 560,812,042 560,812,042 -

4.19 Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments include various hedging instruments like interest rate swap, currency swap, forward foreign
exchange contract etc. held for trading as well as risk management purposes. All proprietary deals are shown as held for
trading whereas those entered into on behalf of customers are shown as held for risk management.

Group Bank

Particulars Asar 2076 Asar 2075 Asar 2076 Asar 2075
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Held for trading
Interest rate swap - - -
Currency swap - - -
Forward exchange contract 6,540,600 6,540,600 -
Others - - -
Held for risk management
Interest rate swap - - -
Currency swap - - -
Forward exchange contract - - 9,109,574
Other - - -

Total 6,540,600 6,540,600 9,109,574

4.20 Deposits from customers

Deposit from customer are accounted at amortized cost using applicable interest rate.

Institutional customers are government institution, public limited companies, savings and credit co-operatives and funds
operated by such entities while rest of the deposits are shown as individual depositors as per the definition given by the
regulator.
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Group

Bank

Particulars

Asar 2076

Asar 2075

Asar 2076

Asar 2075

Institutions customers:
Term deposits
Call deposits
Current deposits
Other

Individual customers:
Term deposits

22,457,438,100
5,243,925,085
1,887,158,657
1,632,189,622

27,971,128,883

22,652,438,100
5,243,925,085
1,894,417,493
1,632,189,622

27,971,128,883

9,888,724,174
4,027,837,839
605,468,087
390,785,306

31,770,447,366

Saving deposits 38,494,636,993 38,494,636,993 38,996,612,798
Current deposits 7,793,398,376 7,793,398,376  8,994,368,281
Other 3,704,925,881 3,704,925,881 4,314,547,361
Total 109,184,801,597 109,387,060,433 98,988,791,212
4.20.1: Currency wise analysis of deposit from customers
Group Bank
Particulars Asar 2076 Asar 2075 Asar 2076 Asar 2075
Nepalese rupee 102,626,515,024 102,828,773,860 90,790,154,922
Indian rupee - - -
United State dollar 6,209,604,362 6,209,604,362 7,972,051,334
Great Britain pound 111,244,500 111,244,500 85,338,446
Euro 174,910,072 174,910,072 124,410,242
Japenese yen 56,995,240 56,995,240 13,024,942
Chinese yuan 208,522 208,522 868,185
Other 5,323,877 5,323,877 2,943,140
Total 109,184,801,597 109,387,060,433 98,988,791,212

4.21 Borrowing

Borrowings are long term domestic and foreign loans availed by the bank. As on the reporting date the bank doesn’t have

any borrowings from any other institution.

Group

Bank

Particulars

Asar 2076

Asar 2075

Asar 2076

Asar 2075

Domestic Borrowing
Nepal Government
Other Institutions
Other

Sub total

Foreign Borrowing
Foreign Bank and Financial Institutions
Multilateral Development Banks
Other Institutions

Sub total
Total
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4.22 Provisions

A provision is recognized when as a result of a past event, the licensed institution has a present legal or constructive obligation
that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation.
Provision for redundancy, provision for onerous contracts, provision for restructuring, pending legal issues and tax litigation,
credit commitments and guarantees etc. are presented under this account head. Provision for redundancy is benefits payable
as a result of employment being terminated or based on a dismissal plan of the licensed institution. Provision for employees'
termination benefits like voluntary retirement scheme are presented under this account head. Provision for restructuring
includes sale or termination of a line of business, closure of business locations or relocation in a region, changes in management
structure, fundamental reorganizations that have a material effect on the nature and focus of the bank's operations etc.
Provision for onerous contract are recognized when expected benefits to be derived by the licensed institution from a contract
is lower than the unavoidable cost of meeting its obligation under the contract.

Group Bank
Particulars Asar 2076 Asar 2075 Asar 2076 Asar 2075
Provisions for redundancy - - -
Provision for restructuring - = -
Pending legal issues and tax litigation - - -
Onerous contracts - - -
Other - - 2,229,307
Total . . 2,229,307
4.22.1: Movement in provision Group Bank
Particulars Asar 2076 Asar 2075 Asar 2076 Asar 2075
Balance at Sawan 1 2,299,307 2,299,307 233,378,063
Provisions made during the year - - -
Provisions used during the year - - (231,078,756)
Provisions reversed during the year (2,299,307) (2,299,307) -
Unwind of discount - - -
Balance at Asar end - - 2,299,307

The provision in the books towards non-banking assets acquired in earlier years has been reversed as a separate reserve
is now earmarked for such assets under the regulatory directives.

4.23 Other liabilities

Liabilities for employees defined benefit obligations and liability for long service leave are net liabilities of the bank against
gratuity and long service leave. Defined benefit liabilities of these nature are valuated using actuarial calculation. Gratuity is
funded benefit plan whereas liability against long service leave is non funded obligation. Bank has separate approved retirement
fund maintained for gratuity payment. The obligation against gratuity as shown in the books is the shortfall in asset of retirement
fund to the total liability of the fund. The bank transfers this shortfall amount in fund every fiscal year after determination of
the amount by actuary.

The subsidiary of the bank is managed under a full scope management contract and hence there is no long term employee
liability.

Liabilities against deferred grant income are grant received from Sakchyam Nepal which are yet to be recognized as income.

Other Liabilities include bills payable, creditors and accruals, interest payable on deposit and borrowing, unpaid dividend,
employee bonus payable and other liabilities.

Liabilities are recognized at fair value of the expected outflow to the best estimate of management.
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Group Bank
Particulars Asar 2076 Asar 2075 Asar 2076 Asar 2075
Liability for employees defined benefit obligations 90,752,567 90,752,567 26,848,604
Liability for long-service leave 272,467,511 272,467,511 245,327,235
Short-term employee benefits - - -
Bills payable 124,056,580 124,056,580 142,131,638
Creditors and accruals 23,630,563 21,871,350 21,354,299
Interest Payable on deposits 571,244,111 573,104,453 449,610,396
Interest payable on borrowing 1,996,519 1,996,519 -
Liabilities on defered grant income 1,288,857 1,288,857 -
Unpaid Dividend 227,265,450 227,265,450 31,980,755
Liabilities under Finance Lease - - -
Employee bonus payable 437,017,844 437,017,844 276,517,940

Other

1,027,200,827

1,027,200,827

620,557,887

Total 2,776,920,829 2,777,021,958 1,814,328,754

4.23.1: Defined benefit obligations

The liability for the defined benefit obligation is the present value of defined benefit obligation as determined by the actuary
less the fair value of the plan assets.

Group Bank
Particulars Asar 2076 Asar 2075 Asar 2076 Asar 2075
Present value of unfunded obligations - -
Present value of funded obligations 569,089,362 524,723,683
Total present value of obligations 569,089,362 524,723,683
Fair value of plan assets 478,336,795 497,875,079
Present value of net obligations 90,752,567 26,848,604
Recognised liability for defined benefit 90,752,567 26,848,604

obligations

4.23.2: Plan assets

Assets held by the retirement fund can be considered as plan assets if, the fund is legally separate from the reporting entity
and exists solely to pay or fund employee benefits and are not available to the reporting entity’s own creditors (even in
bankruptcy), and cannot be returned to the reporting entity. Since HBL retirement fund is legally separable entity and the
amount in fund isn't available to the bank in case of bankruptcy, the bank deposit held by the retirement fund has been
recognized as plan assets.

Group Bank
Particulars Asar 2076 Asar 2075 Asar 2076 Asar 2075
Equity securities - -
Government bonds - -
Bank deposit 478,336,795 497,875,079
Other - -
Total 478,336,795 497,875,079

Actual return on plan assets - -
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4.23.3: Movement in the present value of defined benefit obligations

Group Bank
Particulars Asar 2076 Asar 2075 Asar 2076 Asar 2075
Defined benefit obligations at Sawan 1 524,723,683 551,129,511
Actuarial losses 7,492,799 (29,792,839)
Benefits paid by the plan (48,947,390) (84,748,908)
Current service costs and interest 85,820,270 88,135,919
Defined benefit obligations at Asar end 569,089,362 524,723,683
4.23.4: Movement in the fair value of plan assets
Group Bank
Particulars Asar 2076 Asar 2075 Asar 2076 Asar 2075
Fair value of plan assets at Sawan 1 497,875,079 510,803,659
Contributions paid into the plan 26,848,604 71,820,328
Benefits paid during the year (48,947,390) (84,748,908)
Actuarial (losses) gains 2,560,502 -
Expected return on plan assets = -
Fair value of plan assets at Asar end 478,336,795 497,875,079
4.23.5: Amount recognised in profit or loss
Group Bank
Particulars Asar 2076 Asar 2075 Asar 2076 Asar 2075
Current service costs 40,236,858 42,943,575
Interest on obligation 45,583,412 45,192,344
Expected return on plan assets = -
Total 85,820,270 88,135,919
4.23.6: Amount recognised in other comprehensive income
Group Bank
Particulars Asar 2076 Asar 2075 Asar 2076 Asar 2075
Actuarial (gain)/loss on DBO 7,492,799 (29,792,839)
Actuarial (gain)/loss on Plan Assets (2,560,502) -
Total 4,932,297 (29,792,839)
4.23.7: Actuarial assumptions
Group Bank
Particulars Asar 2076 Asar 2075 Asar 2076 Asar 2075
Discount rate 9.00% 9.00%
Expected return on plan asset 0.00% 0.00%
Future salary increase 6.00% 6.00%
Withdrawal rate 5.00% 5.00%
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4.24 Debt securities issued

Debt Securities issued is the 7 year bond issued by the bank in Asar 2070. The bond matures in Asar 2077( July 2020). The
bond has been recognized at amortized cost using effective interest rate. Debenture redemption reserve has been created
for the full value of the bond.

Group Bank
Particulars Asar 2076 Asar 2075 Asar 2076 Asar 2075
Debt securities issued designated as at fair value
through profit or loss - - -
Debt securities issued at amortised cost 623,148,518 623,148,518 623,357,548
Total 623,148,518 623,148,518 623,357,548
4.25 Subordinated Liabilities
Group Bank
Particulars Asar 2076 Asar 2075 Asar 2076 Asar 2075

Redeemable preference shares - - -

Irredemable cumulative preference shares (liabilities - - -
component)

Other - - -
Total - - -

4.26 Share capital

Share capital has been issued and recognized at par value. Share capital of the bank comprises of ordinary shares.

Group Bank
Particulars Asar 2076 Asar 2075 Asar 2076 Asar 2075
Ordinary shares 8,520,255,844 8,520,255,844 8,114,529,375
Convertible preference shares (equity component only) - - -
Irredemable preference shares (equity component only) - - -
Perpetual debt (equity component only) - - -
Total 8,520,255,844 8,520,255,844 8,114,529,375
4.26.1: Ordinary shares
Group Bank
Particulars Asar 2076 Asar 2075 Asar 2076 Asar 2075
Authorized Capital
100,000,000 Ordinary share of Rs. 100 each 10,000,000,000 10,000,000,000
Issued capital
85,202,558 Ordinary share of Rs. 100 each 8,520,255,844 8,114,529,375
Subscribed and paid up capital
85,202,558 Ordinary share of Rs. 100 each 8,520,255,844 8,114,529,375
Total 8,520,255,844 8,114,529,375
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4.26.2: Ordinary share ownership

Group Bank
Particulars Asar 2076 Asar 2075 Asar 2076 Asar 2075

Domestic ownership % Amount % | Amount % Amount % Amount

Nepal Government - - - -

“A” class licensed institutions - - - -

Other licensed intitutions - - - -

Other Institutions 65% 5,538,166,299 65% @ 5,274,444,094

Public 15% 1,278,038,377 15% 1,217,179,406

Other - - - -
Foreign ownership 20% 1,704,051,169 20% 1,622,905,875
Total 100% 8,520,255,844 100%  8,114,529,375

Foreign Ownership of 20% is held by Habib Bank Limited, Pakistan which is the joint venture partner of the bank from the
date of incorporation. Details of shareholders holding more than 0.5% Shares is as follows.

Name Percent
HABIB BANK LIMITED 20.00
KARMACHARI SANCHAYA KOSH 14.00
N. TRADING COMPANY P. LTD. 12.71
MUTUAL TRADING COMPANY P. LTD. 11.85
AVA INTERNATIONAL P. LTD 11.38
CHHAYA INTERNATIONAL P. LTD. 8.89
SHASHI KANT AGARWAL 2.65
SYAKAR CO. LTD. 0.99
ANJU KHETAN 0.77
SHARMA & CO. P. LTD. 0.66

4.27 Reserves

Reserves are appropriation of profit made for specific purpose under various regulatory and other local requirements.

Statutory General Reserve: 20% of the net profit of each fiscal year is allocated to general reserve and the same is retained
till it becomes double of the paid up capital.

Exchange Equalization Reserve: 25% of revaluation gain on foreign currency is allocated to exchange equalization reserve.

Corporate Social responsibility reserve: 1% of net profit of each fiscal year is allocated to this reserve and it is utilized towards
corporate social responsibility expenditure in the following years.

Regulatory Reserve: Regulatory reserve is required to be made under specific instruction of the regulator. The reserve
represents allocation with respect to portion of, interest income on loans and advances recognized on accrual basis, fair value
recognized for investment properties (non banking assets) and actuarial gain or loss.

Fair Value Reserve: The fair value reserve comprises of the cumulative net change in the fair value of financial assets that
are measured at fair value and the changes in fair value is recognized in other comprehensive income, until the assets are
derecognized. The cumulative amount of changes in fair value of those financial assets are presented under this reserve.

Actuarial gain: Actuarial gain or loss that represents change in actuarial assumptions used to value employee obligations
has been presented under this reserve.
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Other reserve: Other reserve includes debenture redemption reserve and employee training and development fund. 3% of
staff expenses of previous fiscal year excluding statutory bonus, finance expense under NFRS and employee training and
development expense less actual staff training and development expenditure of this year is appropriated to this reserve in
current fiscal year. Debenture redemption reserve has been created by appropriating equal amount from the profit of each
period to this reserve. This amount will be release after the redemption of the bond.

Details on the movement of these reserve has been presented on statement of change in equity

Group Bank
Particulars Asar 2076 Asar 2075 Asar 2076 Asar 2075
Statutory general reserve 3,737,834,765 3,736,889,575 3,184,119,880
Exchange equilisation reserve 39,056,093 39,056,093 34,636,311
Corporate social responsibility reserve 47,666,793 47,666,793 25,349,207
Capital redemption reserve - - -
Regulatory reserve 844,383,362 844,383,362 723,597,851
Investment adjustment reserve 1,214,859 1,214,859 -
Capital reserve - - -
Assets revaluation reserve - - -
Fair value reserve 16,373,000 16,373,000 38,793,817
Dividend equalisation reserve - - -
Actuarial gain (44,909,698) (44,909,698) (89,977,401)
Special reserve - - -
Other reserve 662,721,674 662,721,674 557,442,515
Total 5,304,340,848 5,303,395,658 4,523,962,180
Notes Asar 2076 Asar 2075 Asar 2076 Asar 2075

Other reserve includes:

Bond Redemption Reserve 600,000,000 600,000,000 514,285,713
Employee Training and Development Fund 62,721,674 62,721,674 43,156,802
Total Other Reserve 662,721,674 662,721,674 557,442,515

4.28 Contingent liabilities and commitments

A contingent liability is possible obligation that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the entity; or a present
obligation that arises from past events but is not recognised because it is not probable that an outflow of resources embodying
economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation; or the amount of the obligation cannot be measured with sufficient

reliability.
Group Bank
Particulars Asar 2076 Asar 2075 Asar 2076 Asar 2075
Contingent liabilities 28,172,428,806 28,172,428,806 32,269,432,841
Undrawn and undisbursed facilities 4,373,250,690 4,373,250,690 3,455,484,420
Capital commitment 39,352,665 39,352,665 32,406,951
Lease commitment 916,610,540 916,610,540 -
Litigation 357,473,868 357,473,868 426,472,271
Total 33,859,116,570 33,859,116,570 36,183,796,482

88 | 27th Annual Report



Py e i

Himgi";yan Bank Ltd.

4.28.1: Contingent liabilities

Group Bank
Particulars Asar 2076 Asar 2075 Asar 2076 Asar 2075
Acceptance and documentary credit 11,590,699,137 11,590,699,137 14,371,288,695
Bills for collection 576,499,185 576,499,185 1,076,037,596
Forward exchange contracts 8,137,163,142 8,137,163,142 5,890,999,775
Guarantees 6,279,255,542 6,279,255,542 6,408,163,036

Underwriting commitment

Other commitments 1,588,811,800 1,588,811,800 4,522,943,739
Total 28,172,428,806 28,172,428,806 32,269,432,841
4.28.2: Undrawn and undisbursed facilities
Group Bank
Particulars Asar 2076 Asar 2075 Asar 2076 Asar 2075
Undisbursed amount of loans - - -
Undrawn limits of overdrafts 4,373,250,690 4,373,250,690  3,455,484,420
Undrawn limits of credit cards - - -
Undrawn limits of letter of credit - - -
Undrawn limits of guarantee - - -
Total 4,373,250,690 4,373,250,690 3,455,484,420

4.28.3: Capital commitments

Capital expenditure approved by relevant authority of the bank but provision has not been made in financial statements

Group Bank

Particulars Asar 2076 Asar 2075 Asar 2076 Asar 2075
Capital commitments in relation to Property
and Equipment
Approved and contracted for 30,828,227 30,828,227 24,768,644
Approved but not contracted for 8,524,439 8,524,439 7,638,307
Sub total 39,352,665 39,352,665 32,406,951
Capital commitments in relation to Intangible
assets
Approved and contracted for - - -
Approved but not contracted for - - -
Sub total - - -
Total 39,352,665 39,352,665 32,406,951
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4.28.4: Lease commitments

The amount shown represents total rent payable during the lease period under legally enforceable operating lease contracts

entered into by the bank for operating its branches.

Group

Bank

Particulars

Asar 2076

Asar 2075

Asar 2076

Asar 2075

Operating lease commitments

Future minimum lease payments under non
cancellable operating lease, where the bank is
lessee

Not later than 1 year

Later than 1 year but not later than 5 years
Later than 5 years

Sub total

Finance lease commitments

Future minimum lease payments under non
cancellable operating lease, where the bank is
lessee

Not later than 1 year

Later than 1 year but not later than 5 years
Later than 5 years

Sub total

Grand total

4.28.5: Litigation

137,490,999
613,050,575
166,068,967
916,610,540

916,610,540

137,490,999
613,050,575
166,068,967
916,610,540

916,610,540

Claims & litigation is a common occurrence in the banking industry due to the nature of the business undertaken. The Bank
has formal controls and policies for managing legal claims. Once professional advice has been obtained and the amount of
loss reasonably estimated, the Bank makes adjustments to account for any adverse effects which the claims may have on
its financial standing. At the year end, the Bank had no major unresolved claims other than following:

Group Bank
Particulars Asar 2076 Asar 2075 Asar 2076 Asar 2075
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Claims on Institutions but not accepted by bank
- Unpaid guarantee claims 128,873,763 128,873,763 216,975,035
Contingent liabilities on income tax - - -
- Assessment under appeal 228,600,105 228,600,105 209,497,236

357,473,868 357,473,868 426,472,271

4.29 Interest income

Interest income includes interest income received from loans and advances and investment. Interest income is calculated
using effective interest rate on accrual basis. Loan Documentation fees received hasn’t been considered while calculating
interest income from loans and advances as its impact is immaterial.

Interest income on cash and cash equivalents is interest income on money at call and short notice, interbank lending and
placement with original maturity less than 90 days. Interest on Placement with bank and financial institution is interest income
on placement with original maturity greater than 90 days. Interest income on securities is interest income on T-Bills, NRB
bonds and foreign bonds.

90 | 27th Annual Report



() Himalayan Bank Ltd.

Interest income on loans and advances to customer is interest on all loans and advances excluding interest received on staff
loan and interest received on loans and advances provided to microfinance which has been categorized separately. Interest
income from loans and advances to customer has been recognized on accrual basis expect for interest on loan and advances
where principal or interest has been past dues for more than 90 days. For such outstanding, the collateral value is compared
to the total outstanding & if the outstanding amount is within the collateral value then the interest income is recognized,
otherwise accrual of such interest income is suspended. However, if the loan is in past dues for more than 12 months then
the accrual of interest income is suspended irrespective of the value of collateral.

Group Bank
Particulars Asar 2076 Asar 2075 Asar 2076 Asar 2075
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Cash and cash equivalent 119,459,361 119,459,361 66,030,332
Due from Nepal Rastra Bank 8,740,430 8,740,430 -
Placement with bank and financial institutions 111,175,427 111,175,427 74,832,369
Loan and advances to bank and financial

institutions 433,395,630 433,395,630 337,595,991
Loans and advances to customers 10,363,680,542 10,363,680,542 8,820,245,079
Investment securities 523,537,450 523,537,450 387,014,543
Loan and advances to staff 65,426,210 65,426,210 39,152,578
Other - - -
Total interest income 11,625,415,050 11,625,415,050 9,724,870,892

Loans and Advances to customer during the year includes Rs. 10,381,379 recognized as income on take over of investment
properties.

4.30 Interest expense

Interest expense has been recognized using applicable interest rate. Interest expense on deposit from customer represents
all interest expense on deposits except deposits from banks and financial institutions which has been categorized separately
as interest expense on due to banks and financial institutions. Interest expense on due to Nepal Rastra Bank is interest
expense on refinancing received from Nepal Rastra Bank. Interest expense on debt securities is interest expense on bond.

Group Bank
Particulars Asar 2076 Asar 2075 Asar 2076 Asar 2075
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.
Due to bank and financial institutions 22,214,163 22,214,163 7,356,364
Due to Nepal Rastra Bank 5,793,379 5,793,379 -
Deposits from customers 6,507,842,802 6,518,066,664 5,347,690,808
Borrowing - - -
Debt securities issued 48,000,000 48,000,000 48,000,000
Subordinated liabilities - - -
Other - - -
Total interest expense 6,583,850,344 6,594,074,206 5,403,047,172
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4.31 Fees and Commission Income

Fees and commission income are income earned by the entity while providing services to the customer which includes fees
and commission earned for issuance and renewal of cards, loan administration fees, remittance fees, commission on issuing
letter of credit and guarantee contract, locker rental, purchase of bills, etc. Such fees and commission are recognized when
services are rendered.

Group Bank
Particulars Asar 2076 Asar 2075 Asar 2076 Asar 2075
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.
Loan administration fees 146,322,980 146,322,980 94,985,361
Service fees - - -
Consortium fees 11,650,000 11,650,000 904,130
Commitment fees - - -
DD/TT/Swift fees 25,905,343 25,905,343 25,877,006
Credit card/ATM issuance and renewal fees 238,839,936 238,839,936 239,385,449
Prepayment and swap fees - - -
Investment banking fees - - -
Asset management fees - - -
Brokerage fees - - -
Remittance fees 104,423,463 104,423,463 115,833,270
Commission on letter of credit 79,216,965 79,216,965 81,498,688
Commission on guarantee contracts issued 81,416,436 81,416,436 90,144,198
Commission on share underwriting/issue - - -
Locker rental 21,016,466 21,016,466 20,481,454
Other fees and commission income 112,514,891 112,514,891 102,928,265
Total Fees & Commission Income 821,306,480 821,306,480 772,037,821

4.32 Fees and commission expense

Fees and commission expense incurred by the bank and its subsidiary are recognized when the services are availed by the
bank. Such fees and commission expense are included mainly on account of card issuance charges, communication charges,
and other registration fees and charges.

Group Bank
Particulars Asar 2076 Asar 2075 Asar 2076 Asar 2075
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.
ATM management fees - - -
VISA/Master card fees 32,961,180 32,961,180 33,215,292
Guarantee commission - - -
Brokerage - - -
DD/TT/Swift fees 9,891,205 9,891,205 9,788,125
Remittance fees and commission - - -
Other fees and commission expense 22,213,221 22,213,221 19,152,535
Total Fees & Commission Expense 65,065,606 65,065,606 62,155,952
Net Fees & Commission Income 756,240,874 756,240,874 709,881,869

4.33 Net trading income

The entity doesn’t hold any trading assets. The trading income represents the income from foreign currency transaction only.
Gain or loss on foreign currency transaction are measured as difference on the carrying amount of the currency held to the
disposed amount.
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Group Bank
Particulars Asar 2076 Asar 2075 Asar 2076 Asar 2075
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.
Changes in fair value of trading assets - - -
Gain/loss on disposal of trading assets - - -
Interest income on trading assets - = -
Dividend income on trading assets - s -
Gain/loss on foreign exchange transaction 718,157,896 718,157,896 718,904,848
Other - - -
Net Trading Income 718,157,896 718,157,896 718,904,848

4.34 Other operating income

Other operating income are income earned by the entity while carrying out its normal transaction. These income are recognized
when right to receive such income arises. Income on revaluation of foreign currency is recognized on mark to market basis.

Group Bank
Particulars Asar 2076 Asar 2075 Asar 2076 Asar 2075
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.
Foreign exchange revaluation gain 17,679,126 17,679,126 (42,614,098)
Gain/loss on sale of investment securities - - -
Fair value gain/loss on investment properties - - -
Dividend on equity instruments 4,819,299 63,317,521 48,597,350
Gain/loss on sale of property and equipment 1,453,636 1,453,636 821,207
Gain/loss on sale of investment property 2,878,906 2,878,906 19,872,620
Operating lease income - - -
Gain/loss on sale of gold and silver - - -
Other 89,746,388 89,787,421 78,171,011
Total 116,577,355 175,116,610 104,848,090

4.35 Impairment charge/(reversal) for loan and other losses

Impairment is the reduction in the value of the asset. The bank assess impairment of loan and advances at the end of each
reporting period under both incurred loss model as per NAS 39 and loan loss provision as prescribe by NRB. Impairment
provided is the amount of Loan Loss Provision (higher of amount derived based on LLP norms as prescribed by the regulator
and the amount of impairment calculated based on NAS 39) as mandated by the Carve-out provided by ICAN.

Group Bank
Particulars Asar 2076  Asar 2075 Asar 2076 Asar 2075
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Impairment charge/(reversal) on loan and advances to B/Fls 11,452,080 11,452,080 3,584,062
Impairment charge/(reversal) on loan and advances to customer 122,170,019 122,170,019 676,332,973
Impairment charge/(reversal) on financial Investment - - -
Impairment charge/(reversal) on placement with banks and - - -
financial institutions

Impairment charge/(reversal) on property and equipment - - -
Impairment charge/(reversal) on goodwill and intangible assets - - -
Impairment charge/(reversal) on investment properties - - -
Total 133,622,099 133,622,099 679,917,035
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4.36 Personnel Expense

Personnel expense includes both short term and long term employee expense of the bank. Short term expenses such as
salary, allowance, insurance, provident fund are recognized when they become due on actual basis. Long term employee
expense include gratuity and leave encashment expenses. Long term benefits are paid to employee when they are separated
from the bank. Such benefits are evaluated using actuarial valuation technique as advised by an actuary. Staff bonus is

provided as per the statutory requirement.

Finance expense under NFRS is the notional expense incurred by the bank while providing staff loan at below market rate
of interest. For recognizing benefit provided to the employee as staff loan is valuated at fair market value, the difference
between the loan amount and fair market value is amortized as finance expense on staff loan over the loan period.

Group Bank
Particulars Asar 2076 Asar 2075 Asar 2076 Asar 2075
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.
Salary 373,761,846 373,761,846 355,083,763
Allowances 516,983,812 516,983,812 429,322,578
Gratuity Expense 85,820,270 85,820,270 88,135,919
Provident fund 31,935,813 31,935,813 31,767,926
Uniform 11,000,000 11,000,000 9,000,000
Training & development expense 11,099,233 11,099,233 11,255,172
Leave encashment 72,156,082 72,156,082 39,999,565
Medical - - -
Insurance 25,343,196 25,343,196 27,933,063
Employees incentive 18,733,015 18,733,015 10,092,070
Cash-settled share-based payments - - -
Pension expense - = -
Finance expense under NFRS 29,253,737 29,253,737 12,338,194
Other expenses related to staff 25,020,768 25,020,768 30,801,949

Subtotal
Employees bonus
Grand total

1,201,107,772

437,017,844

1,638,125,616

1,201,107,772

437,017,844

1,638,125,616

1,045,730,199

276,517,940

1,322,248,139

The total leave encashment expense shown in the above schedule includes encashment of accrued sick leave above 120
days under staff By-Laws and accrued annual leave above 120 days apart from the leave expense as per actuarial valuation.

The leave encashment expense for the year as per actuarial valuation is Rs 47,564,411.

4.37 Other operating expense

Operating expense are incurred on day to day basis for conducting the normal activities of the bank. Expense are recognized

on accrual basis.

However, operating lease expense has been recognized on straight line method considering all the incremental expense

through the period of the rental agreement as per NAS 17 on leases.

Fees paid under management contract in case of subsidiary has been shown under other operating expense.

Group Bank
Particulars Asar 2076 Asar 2075 Asar 2076 Asar 2075
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.
Directors’ fee 1,377,000 1,377,000 1,394,000
Directors’ expense 7,582,088 7,582,088 6,460,231
Auditors’ remuneration 2,197,850 2,113,100 1,921,000
Other audit related expense - - -
Professional and legal expense 33,084,421 33,033,971 24,281,044
Office administration expense 451,456,368 451,405,309 434,522,082
Operating lease expense 228,130,543 228,130,543 174,271,978
Operating expense of investment properties - - -
Corporate social responsibility expense 5,320,899 5,320,899 15,189,247
Onerous lease provisions - - -
Other 70,917,893 67,735,653 38,312,017
Total 800,067,062 796,698,563 696,351,599
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The Rental expense of the year under accrual basis is Rs. 199,979,562. Additional rental expense amounting 27,927,592 has
been recognized under SLM basis for operating lease rental recognition

Directors Expenses for the year includes Rs. 3.31 mil incurred in orientation/ refresher programs organized for directors as
required by directives issued by the Regulator. Details of directors expenses are as follows:

Particulars Asar 2076
Rs.

Orientation / Refresher Training Expenses 3,310,106
Travelling Expenses 1,137,936
Newspaper & Communication Expenses 2,661,285
Insurance Expenses 158,896
Miscellaneous Expenses 313,865
Total 7,582,088

4.37.1 Office Administration Expense

Group Bank
Particulars Asar 2076 Asar 2075 Asar 2076 Asar 2075
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.
Water and Electricity 30,941,431 30,941,431 29,327,210
Repair and Maintenance 102,136,862 102,136,862 105,135,336
a) Building 3,292,488 3,292,488 2,771,879
b) Vehicle 2,032,169 2,032,169 2,195,758
c) Other 96,812,205 96,812,205 100,167,699
Insurance 18,458,292 18,458,292 20,974,742
Postage, telex, telephone, fax 39,834,105 39,834,105 36,133,941
Printing and stationery 30,235,317 30,235,317 27,415,582
Newspaper, books and journals 612,243 612,243 562,418
Advertisement 49,279,263 49,252,577 72,645,235
Donation - - -
Security Expense 68,058,023 68,058,023 39,996,790
Deposit and Loan Guarantee Premium 32,845,768 32,845,768 31,320,857
Travel allowance and expenses 27,276,579 27,276,579 24,839,842
Entertainment 2,075,390 2,075,390 1,566,348
Annual/ Special General meeting Expense 2,487,775 2,487,775 1,968,256
Other 47,215,319 47,190,947 42,635,525
a) Fuel, Janitorial and cleaning 44,961,697 44,961,697 39,483,563
b) Expense for Capital ltems 1,117,731 1,117,731 653,908
c) Other 1,135,891 1,111,519 2,498,054
Total 451,456,368 451,405,309 434,522,082

4.38 Depreciation & Amortisation

Depreciation has been recognized under written down value method for tangible fixed assets and amortization has been
recognized for intangible assets under straight line method basis. The details on the policy adopted by the bank for the
depreciation and amortization has been disclosed in note 3.7 (B).

Group Bank
Particulars Asar 2076 Asar 2075 Asar 2076 Asar 2075
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.
Depreciation on property and equipment 135,818,008 135,813,773 132,792,701
Depreciation on investment property - 5 -
Amortisation of intangible assets 34,384,442 34,384,442 35,483,476
Total 170,202,450 170,198,215 168,276,177
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4.39 Non operating income

Any income received which is beyond the normal income generating activities of the bank has been recognized as non operating

income.
Group Bank
Particulars Asar 2076 Asar 2075 Asar 2076 Asar 2075
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.
Recovery of written off loan 8,743,336 8,743,336 16,371,060
Share of the profit of investment in associate 267,770,684 - -
Other income 40,583,928 40,583,928 293,154,178
Total 317,097,948 49,327,264 309,525,238

Share of the profit of the associate is the differential net worth of the associates in the current fiscal year.

Other income represents write back of provision against other assets amounting Rs. 38,284,621 in the current fiscal year.

4.40 Non operating expense

Any expense incurred for activities which is beyond the normal activities of the bank has been recognized as non operating

expense
Group Bank
Particulars Asar 2076 Asar 2075 Asar 2076 Asar 2075
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.
Loan write offs* 540,418 540,418 20,936,778
Redundancy provision - - -
Expense of restructuring - - -
Other expense 57,837,977 57,837,977 512,074,634
Total 58,378,395 58,378,395 533,011,412

Other Expense in the current fiscal year represents amount paid under voluntary retirement scheme amounting Rs. 16,301,570
and provision against other assets amounting to Rs. 41,465,092.

*The loan write off pertains to old outstanding on credit cards which have been written off in line with procedures enumerated

in the Bank's Loan Write-off Policy.

4.41 Income tax expense

Income Tax has been assessed as per Income Tax Act, which is shown as current year tax. Adjustment for prior period is the

income tax of previous year that was assessed after the closing of books of previous year.

Deferred tax is provided on temporary differences at the statement of financial position date between the tax bases of assets
and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Group Bank
Particulars Asar 2076 Asar 2075 Asar 2076 Asar 2075
Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Current tax expense
Current year 1,188,315,640 1,186,058,888 875,040,440
Adjustments for prior years 6,064,553 6,064,553 2,571,952

1,194,380,193 1,192,123,441 877,612,392
Deferred tax expense
Origination and reversal of temporary differences (22,760,671) (22,811,316) 11,956,544
Changes in tax rate -
Recognition of previously unrecognised tax losses - = -
Total income tax expense 1,171,619,522 1,169,312,125 889,568,936
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4.41.1: Reconciliation of tax expense and accounting profit

Group

Bank

Particulars

Asar 2076
Rs.

Asar 2075
Rs.

Asar 2076
Rs.

Asar 2075
Rs.

Profit before tax
Tax amount at the rate of 30%

Add: Tax effect of expenses that aren't
deductible for tax purpose

Less: Tax effect on exempt items
Add/ Less: Tax effect on other items
Total income tax expense

Effective tax rate

3,933,160,600
1,179,948,180
206,521,814

(200,411,106)
(16,746,763)
1,169,312,125
29.73%

2,765,179,403
829,553,821
240,712,691

(195,552,229)
14,854,653
889,568,936
32.17%
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5. DISCLOSURE & ADDITIONAL INFORMATION
5.1 Risk management

HBL realizes the ever-increasing need for a comprehensive risk assessment & management system at all levels of
operation and has therefore instilled a strong control & monitoring environment within the bank. An effective internal
control system is in place which defines rights, authorities, responsibilities and accountability at different levels of
management with detailed working procedures laid out for various operational aspects. A systematic assessment process
has been developed to ensure compliance with the requirements of the Capital Adequacy Framework based on Basel
accord as well as other statutory and regulatory requirements. The entire risk assessment and internal control system
is reviewed periodically by Senior Management to address loopholes and risk areas identified in the course of operation
as well as those considered potential given the dynamic environment of the banking industry.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Bank if a borrower or counterparty to a financial instrument, fails to meet
its contractual obligations and arises principally from the Bank's loans and advances to customers/other banks and
investments in debt securities. In addition to the direct funding exposure, the bank would also be exposed to credit risk
on account of indirect liabilities such as letters of credit, guarantees etc.

Credit Risk at HBL is being managed through implementation of Credit Policy Guidelines, Credit Policy Manual, and
specific Product Documents developed for each banking product. These policies, manual & product documents lay
down the basic framework for credit appraisal & authority for approval. A comprehensive credit risk assessment process
has been defined which involves individual appraisal of all borrowers including corporate, institutional & SME borrowers
against stipulated criteria & also encompasses assignment of systematic credit ratings. The Risk Management Department
reviews and assesses the risk associated with individual credit proposals above the set threshold and also reviews &
appraises the overall loan portfolio of the bank with respect to risk concentration, market scenario & recommends
initiatives to be taken for improved risk management. The Board of Directors on its own & also through Risk Management
Committee under coordination of a non-executive director further reviews the overall credit & other risk in the light of
the current market conditions & management analysis & issues necessary instructions including amendments to policies
in order to strengthen the bank's credit portfolio. The credit administration function of the bank is centralized, and all
approved facilities are implemented only after scrutiny of related security and other documents and after reasonable
assurance of compliance with approving conditions.

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of financial instruments will fluctuate due to adverse
movements in market variables such as interest rates, foreign exchange rates, commodity prices and equity prices. This
risk is continuously monitored by the Treasury Department under direct supervision of the Senior Executives. A
comprehensive treasury manual is in place which defines procedures & authority aimed at regulating the related activities
including setting up of various risk limits & risk hedging. Net open position of all currencies is prepared on daily basis
and reported to the management for necessary review & risk / return assessment. Periodic reporting is done to Assets
Liabilities Management Committee which reviews the associated risks and returns, assesses the impact of the exposure
on the bank's capital adequacy position and makes periodic reports to the Board of Directors.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Bank may encounter difficulties in meeting its financial commitments that are settled
by delivering cash or another financial asset. Due to this risk, the bank may be unable to meet its payment obligations
when they fall due under both normal and stress circumstances. With the objective of limiting this risk, the management
has arranged for diversified funding sources in addition to its core deposit base and adopted a policy of continuously
managing assets with liquidity in mind and of monitoring future cash flows and liquidity on a daily basis. The bank has
developed internal control processes and contingency plans for managing liquidity risk. This incorporates an assessment
of expected cash flows and ensuring availability of high grade collateral which could be used to secure additional funding
at any given time.

Operational and Other Risk

Operational risk is perceived as a significant potential risk faced by financial institutions. In order to ensure proper
management of the risk, the bank has developed and implemented different manuals like Cash & Customer Service
Manual, Bills and Remittance Manual, Fund Transfer Manual, SMS and Internet Banking Manual, IT Policy, IT Security
Policy, Document Retention Manual, Record & Reconciliation Manual etc. which define procedural matters for banking
activities at different levels. Compliance to these policy & procedures, prudential guidelines and other directives and

98 | 27th Annual Report



YHimalayan Bank Ltd.

5.2

circulars issued by Nepal Rastra Bank is monitored at branch level by KYC Officers & centrally by Compliance & Internal
Control Department. The Executive Operating Officer reporting to General Manager compiles data related to operational
risks observed at branch level and takes necessary precautionary and remedial steps as may be required. The senior
management working as a team further analyses these data, assesses risk and related internal control systems and
takes corrective & preventive actions to remedy any breakdown in the system. The bank is PCIDSS certified, which
provides additional assurance as regards the effectiveness and adequacy of control system relating to card operations
in the bank. The management is strongly committed towards maintaining a strong internal control system at all levels
of banking activities in order to mitigate operational risks to the maximum possible extent.

The scope of Risk Management Department has been expanded to include oversight of overall operational risk
management in the bank which is achieved through systematic reports obtained independently at defined intervals from
various levels of management.

In addition to the credit, operational and market risk, the bank gives due significance to legal, reputation & other risks
associated with banking activities as well. These risks are identified, assessed and monitored at regular intervals by
the senior management. The Board of Directors also reviews these risks on the basis of feedback from the management
& the prevailing market scenario & issue necessary instructions to the management. An effective MIS is in place which
provides factual data on all risks, including credit, operational and market exposures which is instrumental in analysis
& management of the risks & assessment of capital requirement.

A strong & effective internal control system continuously in operation is inevitable for smooth functioning of any
organization. Management assumes the primary responsibility of ensuring that all control systems are in place & are
functioning as perceived within the bank. Compliance & Internal Control Department at Head Office monitors the day
to day functioning of the bank through off-site & on-site reviews with particular emphasis on proper functioning of internal
control systems and adherence to prudential & regulatory requirements & makes reporting to the senior management
along with recommendations for necessary corrective actions. Internal Audit function within the bank is fully independent
with the department directly reporting to the Audit Committee of the Board. Any lapses or non-compliance with the
stipulated control systems as identified during the audit of various business units, branches & departments is reported
to the Audit Committee & the Board where upon instructions are issued to the management to remedy such reported
instances.

Capital management

(i) Qualitative disclosures

The Bank aims to have a comfortable capital position with adequate cushion over the regulatory requirement. Higher
dependency is placed on equity which is being strengthened by the Bank's policy of distribution of dividend in both
script and cash form. The Bank further issues subordinated bonds on need basis as a part of Tier Il capital. The
capital base position is monitored on a daily basis to avoid any unwanted capital constraints and to ensure that
required capital is there to pave way for the planned growth.

(ii) Quantitative disclosures

1. Capital structure and capital adequacy

A. Capital structure and capital adequacy as per BASEL Il

1. Tier 1 Capital and Breakdown of its Components:

S. No. Particulars Amount
A Core Capital (Tier 1) 14,650,186,178
1 Paid up Equity Share Capital 8,520,255,844
2 Statutory General Reserves 3,736,889,575
3 Retained Earnings 2,171,146,878
4 Debenture Redemption Reserve 600,000,000
5 Less: Investment in equity of institutions with financial interests 298,124,000
6 Less: Purchase of land & building in excess of limit and unutilized 79,982,119
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2. Tier 2 Capital and Breakdown of its Components

S. No. Particulars Amount
A Supplementary Capital (Tier 2) 1,221,401,023
1 Subordinated Term Debt 120,000,000
2 General loan loss provision 1,061,130,071
3 Exchange Equalization Reserve 39,056,093
4 Investment Adjustment Reserve 1,214,859
5 Other Reserves -

3. Information on Subordinated Term Debt:

Bond Issued HBL Bond 2077
Outstanding amount 600,000,000
Interest rate 8%

Maturity Date Ashad 2077
Interest payment Half yearly basis
Tenor 7 years

Amount to be reckoned as capital 120,000,000

4. Total deductions from Capital: N/a

5. Total Qualifying Capital

S. No. Particulars Amount
1 Core Capital (Tier 1) 14,650,186,178
2 Supplementary Capital (Tier 2) 1,221,401,023
Total 15,871,587,201

6. Capital Adequacy Ratio:

Tier 1 Capital to Total Risk Weighted Exposures 11.63%
Tier 1 and Tier 2 Capital to Total Risk Weighted Exposures 12.60%

2. Risk exposures

1. Risk Weighted Exposures for Credit Risk, Market Risk & Operational Risks

RISK WEIGHTED EXPOSURES Amount
a Risk Weighted Exposure for Credit Risk 111,281,585,449
b Risk Weighted Exposure for Operational Risk 7,973,401,790
c Risk Weighted Exposure for Market Risk 218,354,049

Adjustment under Pillar Il
Add 5% of gross income for operational risk 2,926,688,843
Add: 3% of total RWE for overall risk 3,584,200,239
Total Risk Weighted Exposures @ 125,984,230,370
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2. Risk Weighted Exposures under each of 12 categories of Credit Risk

S. No. Particulars Amount
1 Claims on government & central bank 320,600,988
2 Claims on other official entities 1,010,903,822
3 Claims on banks 2,710,316,496
4 Claims on domestic corporate and securities firms 73,711,806,050
5 Claims on regulatory retail portfolio 7,002,262,049
6 Claims secured by residential properties 3,402,598,937
7 Claims secured by commercial real estate 1,616,316,955
8 Past due claims 621,768,641
9 High risk claims 5,624,129,991
10 Lending against securities (Bonds and Share) 1,503,677,438
11 Other assets 3,525,200,241
12 Off balance sheet items 10,232,003,841
Total 111,281,585,449

3. Total Risk Weighted Exposures calculation table:

S. No. Particulars Amount
1 Total Risk Weighted Exposure 125,984,230,370
2 Total Core Capital Fund (Tier 1) 14,650,186,178
3 Total Capital Fund (Tier 1 & Tier 2) 15,871,587,201
4 Total Core Capital to Total Risk Weighted Exposures 11.63%
5 Total Capital to Total Risk Weighted Exposures 12.60%

4. Amount of NPA

S. No. Loan Classification Gross Amount Provision Held Net NPA
1 Restructured Loan 19,469,480 3,762,538 15,706,943
2 Substandard Loan 91,252,194 22,813,048 68,439,145
3 Doubtful Loan 52,011,896 26,005,948 26,005,948
4 Loss Loan 935,845,119 935,845,119 -
Total 1,098,578,689 988,426,653 110,152,036

5. NPA Ratios

Gross NPA to Gross Advances 1.12%

Net NPA to Net Advances: 0.11%

(iii) Compliance with external requirement

The Bank through-out the reporting period has fully complied with the capital requirements imposed by the Regular

for 'A' class commercial banks operating in the country.
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5.3 Classification of financial assets and financial liabilities

Financial instruments are measured on an ongoing basis either at fair value or at amortized cost. The accounting policies
describe the manner each category of financial instrument is measured and also the manner in which income and
expenses, including fair value gains and losses, are recognized.

5.4 Operating Segment Information

1. General information

a) The Bank has branches operating in different provinces across the country. All the branches are full scope
branches and are entitled to carry out all types of transactions that the Bank is licensed for. The Bank has
therefore identified reporting segments on the basis of provinces in which the branches are located. However,
two independent profit centers, namely, Remittance Center and Card Center have been reported as a separate
segment along with the Corporate Office.

b) Following are the main products and services from which each reportable segment derives its revenues:
a) Loan and Advances
b) Letter of Credit
c) Guarantee

d

-~

Remittance

f) Locker Service
g) Bills purchase and discounting

(

(

(

(d)

(e) Card service
(

(

(h) Collection service
(

i) Other ancillary services

2. Information about profit or loss, assets and liabilities

Province Head Office
Particulars and other Total
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 profit center
(@) Revenues from external
customers 932,094,050 1,183,435,768 = 7,100,551,512 320,178,853 | 1,793,248,624 = 4,672,009 161,673,322  1,893,469,162  13,389,323,300
(b) Intersegment revenues 35,064,578 14,670,840 = 2,838,918,044 121,214,369 63,330,101 3,294,374 2,903,699 48,308,996  3,127,705,001
(c) NetRevenue 967,158,628  1,198,106,609 = 9,939,469,556 441,393,222 1,856,578,725 = 7,966,383 164,577,022 = 1,941,778,158  16,517,028,301
(d) Interest revenue 867,574,028 1,117,190,986 = 6,614,426,029 306,178,287 = 1,740,003,002 4,063,835 158,316,306 817,662,576 = 11,625,415,050
(e) Interest expense 173,539,451 148,607,696 = 5,612,581,627 ~ 180,820,919 232,893,226 2,797,605 = 13,119,191 229,714,493 6,594,074,206
(f) Net interest revenue 694,034,577 968,583,290 = 1,001,844,402 125,357,368 ' 1,507,109,777 = 1,266,230 = 145,197,116 587,948,084  5,031,340,844
(9) Depreciation and amortisation 9,879,967 3,519,234 25,034,479 3,883,713 6,148,557 = 1,043,064 2,151,101 118,538,101 170,198,215
(h) Segment profit /(loss) 1,448,498185 267,190,362 = 3,886,209,825 192,802,737 = 493,711,931 = (3,090,018) = 19,672,412 (1,934,816,990)  4,370,178,444
(i) Entity's interest in the profit or
loss of associates accounted
for using equity method
(j) Other material non-cash items:
(k) Impairment of assets 137,280,463 = 104,250,042 = 1,588,058,570 26,681,270 | 166,148,739 528,116 | 13,089,110 24,220,414 2,060,256,724
() Segment assets 4,477,455,684  3,258,687,155 = 97,363,849,368 4,140,845,287 = 6,318,359,628 180,350,490 = 492,509,082 16,919,085,380 ' 133,151,142,073
(m) Segment liabilities 4,477,455,684 | 3,258,687,155 | 97,363,849,368 4,140,845,287 ' 6,318,359,628 180,350,490 = 492,509,082 ' 16,919,085,380 133,151,142,073
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3. Measurement of operating segment profit or loss, assets and liabilities

(a) Basis of accounting for transactions between reportable segments.

(b)

()

(d)

(e)

Each segment account is prepared on accrual basis and transactions between segments are conducted at a

pre-determined price.

Differences between the measurements of the reportable segments profits or losses and the entity's

profit or loss before income tax.

Profit or losses of the reportable segments before staff bonus are measured on accrual basis based on NFRS.
Inter-segmental revenue is accordingly set off against related inter-segmental expenses in order to arrive at the

entity's profit or loss.

Differences between the measurements of the reportable segments' assets and the entity's asset.

There are no difference between the reportable segment assets and entity's assets.

Nature of any changes from prior periods in the measurement methods used to determine reported

segment profit or loss.

None.

Nature and effect of any asymmetrical allocations to reportable segments.

All allocations are symmetrically done.

4. Reconciliations of reportable segment revenues, profit or loss, assets and liabilities

1.

2,

3.

4,

Revenue
Total revenues for reportable segments
Other revenues
Elimination of intersegment revenues

Entity’s revenues

Profit or loss

Total profit or loss for reportable segments
Other profit or loss
Elimination of intersegment profits
Unallocated amounts:

Staff bonus
Profit before income tax

Assets

Total assets for reportable segments
Other assets

Unallocated amounts

Entity’s assets

Liabilities
Total liabilities for reportable segments
Other liabilities
Unallocated liabilities
Entity’s liabilities

16,517,028,301

(3,127,705,001)
13,389,323,300

4,370,178,444

(437,017,844)
3,933,160,600

133,151,142,073

133,151,142,073

133,151,142,073

133,151,142,073
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5. Information about products and services

Revenue from each type of product and services described in point no. 1 (b) above:

(a) Loan and Advances 11,020,475,362
(b) | Letter of Credit 79,216,965
(c) Guarantee 81,416,436
(d) Remittance 104,423,463
(e) = Card service 238,839,936
U] Locker Service 21,016,466
(g) | Bills purchase and discounting 7,409,806
(h) Collection service 52,588,224
(i) Other ancillary services 1,783,936,642

Total 13,389,323,300

6. Information about geographical areas
Revenue from following geographical areas:

(a) | Domestic 13,389,323,300

Province 1 932,094,050
Province 2 1,183,435,768
Province 3 8,994,020,674
Province 4 320,178,853
Province 5 1,793,248,624
Province 6 4,672,009
Province 7 161,673,322
(b) | Foreign -
Total 13,389,323,300

7. Information about major customers

The customers of the Bank do not individually / singly contribute 10% or more of the entity’s revenue.

5.5 Share options and share based payment

As per NFRS 2, an entity shall recognize the goods or services received or acquired in a share-based payment transaction
when it obtains the goods or as the services are received. Corresponding increase in equity is recognized if the goods
or services are received in an equity-settled share-based payment transaction or a liability if the goods or services are
acquired in a cash-settled share-based payment transaction.

The Bank has not entered into any share options and share based payment transaction till date.

5.6 Contingent liabilities and commitment

The Bank creates a provision when there is a present obligation as a result of past events that probably require an
outflow of resources and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. A disclosure for contingent
liability is made when there is a possible obligation or a present obligation that may, but probably will not, require an
outflow of resources. The details regarding the contingent liabilities are disclosed in Note 4.28.

5.7 Related parties disclosures

The Bank carries out transactions in the ordinary course of business with parties that fall within the ambit of related
parties as defined in Nepal Accounting Standard - NAS 24 (Related Party Disclosures). The pricing applicable to such
transactions is based on the assessment of risk and pricing model of the Bank and is comparable with what is applied
to transactions between the Bank and its unrelated customers.
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By virtue of its shareholding of over 10 per cent in the Bank and representation in the Board of Directors, Habib Bank
Limited and Karmachari Sanchaya Kosh are related parties to the Bank. Transactions with related parties during the
reporting period is given below:

Transaction with Habib Bank Ltd.

Particulars This Year Ending Immediate Previous
Year Ending
Deposits with Habib Bank - -
Due from Habib Bank 3,191,260 2,660,179

Placements in Habib bank
Due to Habib bank

Total

For the Year Ended
Interest Received

Total
Cash Dividend Paid
Total

Transaction with Karmachari Sanchaya Kosh

1,096,500,000

1,099,691,260

35,422,851
35,422,851
175,103,429
175,103,429

1,096,500,000

1,099,160,179

34,626,252
34,626,252
17,137,886
17,137,886

Particulars This Year Ending Immediate Previous

Year Ending
Rental Expense paid 59,679,730 54,654,600
Cash Dividend paid 122,572,400 11,996,520
Total 182,252,130 66,651,120
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Transaction with Parent, Subsidiary and Other Affiliates

The Bank doesn't have an identifiable parent. It has a wholly owned subsidiary named Himalayan Capital Limited and
5 associates:

- RMDC Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd

- Nirdhan Utthan Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd.
- Chhimek Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd.

- Swabalamban Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd.

- Smart Choice Technologies Limited

Transaction with Subsidiary

Transaction with Subsidiary This Year Ending Immediate Previous

Year Ending
Deposit of Subsidiary in the bank 202,510,008 -
Total 202,510,008 -

Transaction with Associate

Transaction with Associate This Year Ending Immediate Previous
Year Ending

Loans and Advances provided to associate under deprived
sector lending

RMDC Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd. 602,934,247 500,137,945
Nirdhan Utthan Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd. 597,171,740 497,687,269
Chhimek Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd. 644,556,661 596,695,459
Swabalamban Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd. 609,545,057 535,378,022
2,454,207,704 2,129,898,696

Interest Income received from associate
RMDC Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd. 50,619,014 45,418,188
Nirdhan Utthan Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd. 53,341,475 50,160,014
Chhimek Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd. 63,118,845 53,274,201
Swabalamban Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd. 59,849,164 47,524,285
226,928,498 196,376,688

* [ oans and advances to associate stated above are inclusive of AlIR.

Transactions with Key Managerial Personnel (KMPs)

According to Nepal Accounting Standard NAS 24 (Related Party Disclosure) Key Management Personnel (KMP) are
those having authority and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the entity. Such KMPs
include the Board of Directors and Senior Executives of the Bank. Transactions with Key Managerial Personnel are
summarized below:
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Transaction with Key Managerial Personnel (KMPs)

This Year Ending

Immediate Previous

Year Ending
Board of Directors
Benefits 4,197,181 3,662,407
Total 4,197,181 3,662,407
Chief Executive Officer
Short term employee benefits 15,600,000 14,498,630
Other Benefits 1,323,277 1,129,477
Post-employment benefits - -
Total 16,923,277 15,628,107
Key Management Executives
Short term employee benefits 86,569,127 68,263,576
Other Benefits 1,035,725 851,916
Post-employment benefits - -
Total 87,604,852 69,115,492

Key Management Executives are entitled to Gratuity and Leave Encashment Facilities as post-employment benefits as
per the Employees' Service Bye- Laws of the Bank. They are further provided with subsidized loans and advances and
vehicle facility. However, where such executives are employed under a contract the compensation is determined by
terms of such contract. The Deputy Chief Executive Officer, an expat on secondment deputation from Habib Bank
Limited, is further provided with a full furnished residence.

Transaction with HBL Retirement Fund

Bank has established an approved retirement fund which has been identified as related party to the bank.

Immediate Previous
Year Ending

Transaction with HBL Retirement Fund This Year Ending

Deposit with the Bank 1,282,713,570 1,205,364,748

Interest Paid by the Bank 142,856,895 155,408,900

5.8 Merger and acquisition

The Bank has not undergone any merger or acquisition during the reporting period.

5.9 Additional disclosures of non-consolidated entities

There are no unconsolidated entities.

5.10 Events after reporting date

Events after the reporting period are those events, both favorable and unfavorable, that occur between the reporting
date and the date when the Financial Statements are authorized for issue.

No circumstances have arisen since the reporting date which would require adjustments to, or disclosure in the financial
statements, other than the following:
Proposed Dividends

The Board of Directors have recommended 10% stock dividend and 12% cash dividend for the financial year. This dividend
proposal is to be approved by the shareholders in the annual general meeting.

In accordance with Nepal Accounting Standard - NAS 10 (Events after the Reporting Period) this proposed final dividend has
not been recognised as liability as at year end date.
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COMPARISON UNAUDITED AND AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

As of FY 2075/76

Statement of Financial Position As per As per Variance
unaudited Audited )
Financial Financial Reasons for Variance
Assets Statement Statement In amount | 1n %
Cash and Cash Equivalents 4,658,553,979 4,658,553,979 - -
Due from Nepal Rastra Bank 4,883,535,225 = 4,883,535,225 - -
Placements with Bank and Financial Institutions 5,231,235,350 5,231,235,350 - -
Derivative financial instruments 127,145,274 127,145,274 - -
Other trading assets - - -
Loans & Advances to BFls 4772,752,717 | 4,772,752,717 - -
Loans & Advances to Customers 92,820,907,421 = 92,697,318,360 ' (123,589,061) ' -0.13% ' Suspension of accrued interest income based on guidelines issued by NRB
Investment Securities 16,466,029,116 16,466,201,909 172,793 0% ' Post Year end adjustment in Fair Value of investment securities
Current Tax Assets 203,757,077 224,947,032 21,189,955  10%  Post Year End adjustment in tax liability
Investments in subsidiaries - 200,000,000 = 200,000,000 Reclassification from other assets
Investments in Associates 195,785,700 195,785,700 - -
Investment Property 109,134,713 109,134,713 - -
Property & Equipment 2,391,830,155 = 2,391,830,155 - -
Goodwill and Intangible Assets 117,677,347 117,677,347 - -
Deferred Tax Assets - -
Other Assets 1,317,450,139 1,075,024,312 | (242,425,827)  -18% | Reclassification of investment in subsidiary to Investment in
subsidiaries. Additional Provision against other assets
Total Assets 133,295,794,213  133,151,142,073
Liabilities
Due to Bank and Financial Institutions 3,699,494,594 3,702,916,346 3,421,752 1 0.09%  Reclassification from deposit from customer
Due to Nepal Rastra Bank 560,812,042 560,812,042 - -
Derivative financial instruments 6,540,600 6,540,600 - -
Deposits from Customers 109,390,482,184 109,387,060,433  (3,421,751)  0.0% | Reclassification to due to bank and financial institution
Borrowing - - - -
Current Tax Liabilities - - - -
Provisions 114,584,058 - (1 1 4,584,058) -100% | Interest Suspense earlier recognized as provision now suspended
Deferred Tax Liabilities 119,344,357 98,843,796 = (20,500,561) -17% 5;3?11.2?ecnﬁfnfgveal.ﬂeagfcﬁﬁﬁ?f:g g'f‘?gggg ;{Leecrfggsby actuarial
Other Liabilties 2,698,182,324  2777,021,958 78,839,634 3%  laurcise i fefned beneft abligation, staff bonus payable and
Debt Securities Issued 623,148,518 623,148,518 i ;
Subordinated Liabilities - - ;
Total Liabilities 117,212,588,677 117,156,343,693
Equity
Share Capital 8,520,255,844 = 8,520,255,844 - -
Share Premium - - - -
Retained Earnings 2,236,962,434  2,171,146,878 = (65,815,556) -3%
Reserves 5,325,987,259 = 5,303,395,658 = (22,591,601) ' -0.42%
Total Equity attributable to Equity Holders 16,083,205,537  15,994,798,380
Non Controlling Interest
Total Equity 16,083,205,537 15,994,798,380
Total Liabilities and Equity 133,295,794,214  133,151,142,073
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COMPARISON UNAUDITED AND AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

As of FY 2075/76
As pf" As !)er Variance
Statement of Profit or Loss uF':::::;t.ZT F?:::;; Reasons for Variance
Statement Statement In amount In %
Interest income 11,636,372,579 = 11,625,415,050 = (10,957,529) -0.09% ' Adjustment in interest suspense amount
Interest expense 6,594,025,202 6,594,074,206 49,004 0% ' Regrouping of interest expense
Net interest income 5,042,347,377  5,031,340,844 - -
Fee and commission income 821,306,480 821,306,480 - -
Fee and commission expense 67,406,664 65,065,606  (2,341,058) -3%
Net fee and commission income 753,899,816 756,240,874 - -
Net interest, fee and commission income 5,796,247,193  5,787,581,718 - -
Net Trading Income 718,157,896 718,157,896 - -
Other operating income 175,116,610 175,116,610 - -
Total operating income 6,689,521,695 6,680,856,224 - -
Impairment charge/(reversal) for loans and other 133,683,426 133,622,099 (61,327) 0% | Loan written off value adjusted
losses
Net operating income 6,555,838,269 6,547,234,125 - -
Operating expense
Personnel Expenses 1,585,691,024  1,638,125616 52434592 3% [ncreasein defined beneiit obligation expense due to
Other Operating Expenses 771,646,286 796,698,563 25,052,277 3% pocaselnrertal eipenee uqer S Basis. Reversal o
Depreciation & Amortisation 171,237,706 170,198,215 (1,039,491) -1% | Reclassification of expenses
Operating profit 4,027,263,253 3,942,211,731 -
Non operating income 47,649,050 49,327,264 1,678,214 4% | Reversal of provision against NBA
Non operating expense 16,851,975 58,378,395 41,526,420 246% Additional Provision against other assets
Profit before income tax 4,058,060,328  3,933,160,600 - -
Income Tax Expense
Current Tax 1,213,313,396 1,192,123,441  (21,189,955) -2% | Post Year End adjustment in tax liability
Deferred Tax (2,258,917) (22,811,316)  (20,552,399)  910%  Post Year End adjusiments
Profit for the period 2,847,005,849 2,763,848,475 (83,157,374) -3%
Statement of Comprehensive Income
Profit or loss for the year 2,847,005,849 2,763,848,475 - -
Other comprehensive income (22,541,771) (27,353,114)  (4,811,343) 21.3% Increase in defined benefit obligation expense due to
Total comprehensive income for the period 2,824,464,078 2,736,495,361
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HBL

#Himalayan Bank Ltd.

HIMALAYAN BANK LIMITED, Corporate Office

Kamaladi, P.0O. Box: 20590, Kathmandu, Nepal, Tel: 977-1-4227749

Fax: 977-1-4222800, E-mail: himal@himalayanbank.com
Website: www.himalayanbank.com, SWIFT: HIMANPKA

Biratnagar Branch
Shanihat Mainroad, Biratnagar, Morang
Tel: 021-524653, 534944

Dharan Branch
Putali Line, Sunsari
Tel: 025-528966, 528967

Itahari Branch
Dharan Road, Itahari, Sunsari
Tel: 025-587041, 587042

Damak Branch
Highway, Damak, Jhapa
Tel: 023-585291

Birtamod Branch
Sanischarya Road, Birtamod, Jhapa
Tel: 023-545611

Hile Branch
Bhojpur Road, Hile, Dhankuta
Tel: 026-540628, 540629

Madi Branch
Okharbote-4, Sankhuwasabha
Tel: 01-6201751

Birgunj Branch
Mahabir Road, Birgunj, Parsa
Tel: 051-524678, 527504

Bardibas Branch
Mohotari, Nepal
Tel: 044-550161, 550162

Parsauni Branch
Parsauni-5, Bara
Tel.: 053-620000

Baragadi Branch
Khowpawa-3, Bara
Tel: 01-6201363

Subarna Branch
Kabahigoth-6, Bara
Tel: 01-6201366

Janakpur Branch
Janakpurdham
Tel: 041-590240

Lahan Branch
Lahan, Siraha, Ward #1
Tel: 033-561684, 561685

Nijgadh Branch
Nijgadh, Bara, Ward #9
Tel: 053-540262, 540392

Thamel Branch:

Karmachari Sanchaya Kosh Building
Thamel, Kathmandu

Tel: 4227745, 4227756

Maharajgunj Branch
Maharajgunj, Kathmandu
Tel: 01-4425183, 4424292

New Road Branch
Bishal Bazar Complex, Kathmandu
Tel: 01-4243107, 4224787

Bhaktapur Branch
Sukuldhoka, Bhaktapur
Tel: 01-6617493, 6616092

Patan Branch
Pulchowk, Lalitpur
Tel: 01-5010584, 5010593

Tandi Branch
Sauraha Chowk, Tandi, Chitwan
Tel: 056-560750

Bharatpur Branch
Pulchowk, Chitwan
Tel: 056-571474, 572225

Hetauda Branch
Main Road, Hetauda, Makawanpur
Tel: 057-525877,522899

Banepa Branch
Tindobato, Banepa, Kavrepalanchowk
Tel: 011-664734

Teku Branch
Kathmandu Business Park, Kathmandu
Tel: 01-4104572, 4104687

Chabahil Branch
Chuchepati, Chabahil, Kathmandu
Tel: 01-5210045

Swoyambhu Branch
APF Welfare Plaza, Swoyambhu, Ktm.
Tel: 01-4033798, 4285461

Trishuli Branch
Battar, Trishuli, Nuwakot
Tel: 010-561696

New Baneshwor Branch
New Baneshwor Chowk, Kathmandu
Tel: 01-4785583,4784859

Parsa Branch
Naya Road, Parsa, Chitwan
Tel.: 056-583628

Shorakhutte Branch
Shorakhutte Chowk, Kathmandu
Tel: 01-4389035

Sukedhara Branch
Kathmandu 4, Sukedhara
Tel: 01-4015081

Khurkot Branch
Golanjor-7, Sindhuli
Tel: 01-6201749

Dillibazar Branch
Siddhibhawan, Charkhaladda, Ktm.
Tel: 01-4431658

Kalanki Branch
Kalanki Chowk, Kathmandu
Tel: 01-5234762, 5235038

Satdobato Branch
Satdobato Chowk, Lalitpur
Tel: 01-5151945,

Bahrabise Branch
Barhabise Bazar, Sindhupalchowk
Tel: 011-489290

Battisputali Branch
Battisputali, Kathmandu
Tel: 01-4484990

Dhading Branch
Dhadingbesi, Dhading
Tel: 010-521110

Kaushaltar Branch
Gatthaghar, Bhaktapur
Tel: 01-6639564

Betrawati Branch
Laharepauwa, Betrawati, Rasuwa
Tel: 010-681343, 412001

Samakhushi Branch
Gangabu, Samakhushi, Kathmandu
Tel: 01-4354663

Gaurishanker Branch
Gurumphi-6, Dolakha
Tel: 01-6201748

Myagang Branch
Deurali-3, Nuwakot
Tel: 01-6201463

Tarkeshwor Branch
Dansingh-1, Nuwakot
Tel: 01-6201365

Pokhara Branch
New Road, Pokhara, Kaski
Tel: 061-538907, 540230

Baglung Branch
Jeep Park, Baglung
Tel: 068-522690

Gorkha Branch
Bus Park, Gorkha
Tel: 064-421520

Kawasoti Branch
Shabhapati Chowk-5, Nawalparasi
Tel: 078-541040

Ram Bazar Branch
Amarsingh Chowk, Pokhara, Kaski
Tel: 061-430301

Bhairahawa Branch
PrahariTole, Siddharthanagar, Rupandehi
Tel: 071-526945, 524395

Butwal Branch
Traffic Chowk, Butwal, Rupandehi
Tel: 071-551016, 551017

Palpa Branch
Silkhan Tole, Tansen, Palpa
Tel: 075-522641, 520095

Ghorahi Branch
New Road, Ghorahi, Dang
Tel: 082-562901

Nepalgunj Branch
Dhamboji, Nepalgunj, Banke
Tel: 081-411290

Lamahi Branch
Lamahi Bus Park, Dang
Tel: 082-540842, 540843

Raptisonari Branch
Samshergunj-8, Banke
Tel: 081-400089, 400091

Kohalpur Branch

Kohalpur Municipality, ward #11
Kohalpur, Banke

Tel: 081-542146/ 48

Salyan Branch
Srinagar, Salyan
Tel: 088-400012

Kumakha Branch
Marmaparikada, Ragechaur-8, Salyan
Tel: 01-6201752

Surkhet Branch

Ward #3, Chinal Pul, Jumla Road
Birendranagar, Surkhet

Tel: 083-523902/524101

Province 7

Dhangadi Branch
Ratopool, Dhangadi, Kailali
Tel: 091-520202

Lamki Branch
Tikapur road, Kailali
Tel: 091-540513

Chhededaha Branch
Dogadi Bazaar-5, Bajura
Tel: 01-6201754

Card Centre

Kamaladi, Kathmandu

Tel: 01-4227749

Toll Free No.: 16-600-112-000

Global FI & Remittance Centre
Kamaladi, Kathmandu

Tel: 01-4227749, 4250354
Toll Free No.: 16-600-111-000

Outside Country

Himalayan Bank Limited- Kuala Lumpur
Representative Office

2nd Floor, Wisma Maran, 28 Medan Pasar
50050 Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia

Tel: +603 2022 3664
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Wheel Chair Handover-Spinal Injury Rehabilation Center

Computer Donatin to Janagagriti Assistance to HeIing Hand

Aadharbhoot-Kholmatol-Nijgadh

Assistance to Navékiran Orphan a
Children Society



} www.himalayanbank.com ) www.facebook.com/himalayanbankltd
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